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DEFINITIONS

GF BE Term Definition
fFEg E Board The board of the Directors
Vi N/NE]! BRBBFEREEAR QA Company Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,,
Limited
F PAN/NETE=== Director(s) The directors of the Company
BREH BREBERAE - —HRFTE Fusheng Group Fusheng Group Co., Ltd.*, a Company
KB BR AR established in the PRC with limited liability
AEE KRBERENE QT Group The Company and its subsidiaries
aE BRI Hong Kong The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
BIT & HK$/HKD Hong Kong dollars
LEmRAl B2 Fr a8 5 LR Al Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange
RAEST A LIBETAERETELRZSHN Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by
1ZAESFH Directors of Listed Issuers
FE/ 0191 A1HZE2019%128318 Year/ 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
A During the Year
FE hEE AR - ghAREm PRC/Mainland China  The People’s Republic of China, excluding
AR A i TREEE  RFIEFRITT Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative
k&E Region and Taiwan for the purpose of this
report
BT HAfA 018F4A1HZE2018F 128318 Previous Period 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
AR®TT ARMTT RMB Renminbi Yuan
785 BH N EFEES) SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance
B 161
Az 5 PN/NEI RS Shares Ordinary shares of the Company
BiE 22 BERBERXSHPBRAR Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ETT EViH usD United States dollars
"L G *Note:
ERBES - For the purpose of this report and unless otherwise specified, the English translation of

K%%%ﬁ FAIN - R EEMKZAHAF N

the name of the companies incorporated in the PRC are used for identification purpose

only.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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STATEMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, the property market is still subject to relatively stringent controls.
The government has been insisting that “houses are built for people to
live in, not for speculation” and continued the policy of implementing
differential measures to address different situations in different cities.
With performance varying among cities, the property market maintained
reasonable and stable growth.

According to the data of National Bureau of Statistics, the sales data of
the real estate market continued to grow positively in 2019. The sales
of commodity housing amounted to RMB15,972.5 billion for the Year,
representing an increase of 6.5% as compared with 2018, while sales area
of commodity housing amounted to 1,715.58 million sg.m. for the Year,
approximately the same as last year. During the year, the recognised
revenue of the Group was approximately RMB1.6 billion and the
contracted sales during the year reached RMB2.8 billion, both of which
were increased over the year and also reached a record highs.

The development and growth of real estate not only depend on the
industry itself, but also follow the macroeconomic condition. Since 2020,
the economy has been affected by internal and external uncertainties
that have weakened the demand side, on the other hand, funding on
the supply side has also become tight. A meeting of the Political Bureau
of the CPC Central Committee was held at the beginning of this year.
The meeting emphasized that this year is the completion of building a
well-off and fully established society and the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”.
It is necessary to intensify the adjustment of macro policies, and at the
same time, formulate corresponding policies and measures in response
to the impact of the epidemic situation. It is expected that the relevant
measures will gradually restore the market in the short term and stabilize
the development of the economy and real estate in the long run.
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PROSPECTS

In 2020, the Group will focus on developing our core business. We
will continuously explore projects that hold the potential for business
expansion in the industry. As the Greater Bay Area gradually matures,
we will closely monitor the region and seize business development
opportunities that arise. During the Year, the Group acquired project
Qianlong Bay in Zhongshan City which becomes our first project for
business expansion as in the Greater Bay Area. The Group will also review
the development of the existing projects and consider to adjust the
existing project portfolio from time to time. It aims at improving the
liquidity and facilitating the Group to intensify the acquisitions of projects
with potential. The Group seeks for development opportunities and will
consider to cooperate with peers to participate in projects in high quality
locations. Co-operation not only creates synergies but also improves the
profitability of the Group.

Looking ahead, we will continue to follow closely the government
policies as to explore business opportunities in the mainland China
and Hong Kong property sectors for broadening income streams of
the Group. In the meanwhile, we will direct resources towards raising
the quality of our products so as to bolster the Group’s reputation in
the industry and drive overall business development, with the aim of
delivering better returns to our shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders and employees for supporting the
Group.

Pan Haoran
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Breakdown of the projects held for development/sales of the Group as at

FR4RLNT 31 December 2019 was as follows:
AEEER"Y BirAREER" HERR
ER e (FHK) & (FHx)  (M&E) RABRRER
Total GFA™
attributable to
Total GFA™ the shareholding  Type of project Expected
Project Location (sq.m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) completion year
HEERYS
Changsha City, Hunan Province
B S RLE 4313 100% 4313 R BT
Qianlong Academy Tianxin District Completed
BREER ROE 8,708 100% 8708  CR BET
Qianlong Fine Art Tianxin District Completed
BEEN ROE 8,563 100% 85%3 R BT
Qianlong Premier Mansion Tianxin District Completed
BREHR R 78,655 100% 78655 C/R/A BT
Qian Royal Family Kaifu District Completed
BB FiEE
Qianlong International Kaifu District
—H 12422 100% 12422 C BRT
Phase 1 Completed
- 110987 100% 110987 C/R/A 2019-2020
Phase 2
= 32634 100% 32634 C 2020
Phase 3
e RLE
Xingru Jincheng Tianxin District
= 159,645 51% 81419 CR 2022
Phase 3
BRERSRTL EER 97935 100% 97935 C BRI
Fullsun International Financial Centre  Yuelu District Completed
RAXEILG RLE
Kela Meili Shanzhuang Tianxin District
— 24932 100% 24932 CR B¥RT
Phase 1 Completed
—H 197,288 100% 197,288 CR 2020
Phase 2
=5 90,971 100% 90,971 C/R/A 2021
Phase 3
TABERERA RLE 40,986 100% 40986  C/RIA 2021
Yatai Muyun Road Project Tianxin District
BRERE EBR 168997 100% 168997 C/R/A 2021
Fullsun Emerald Bay Yuelu District

BREBZEREEEGRAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ(%) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
BREER" ElrAZEER" HAKE
EH B (FAXK) B (FAx) (W& R EAEH
Total GFA"
attributable to
Total GFA™ the shareholding  Type of project Expected
Project Location (sq. m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) completion year
FREEED
Ningde City, Fujian Province
EERREER. KB EnE 117,270 34% 39872 (R 2021
Ningde Fullsun Country Garden Jiaocheng District
+ Tianjiao
LEm
Shanghai City
A BREEERC BRITE 96,445 20% 19289 CR 2019
Qiantan « Fusheng Qianlong Square™  Pudong
New District
HIERED
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province
EBES REER
Fuli Plaza Jiaxing Port District
—H 134330 75% 100748 C/R/A 2020
Phase 1
—H 99,521 75% 74,641 A 2021
Phase 2
BREPLT
Zhongshan City,
Guangdong Province
fam - HRER NEFRER 27,099 100% 2709 (R BET
Fullsun « Qianlong Bay Torch Completed
Development
Zone
)
Hong Kong
R HEeRER far H 3,048 100% 3048 R BRI
No. 6 LaSalle Road Project Ho Man Tin Completed
1,514,749 1,223,507

(1) AEEmE((AzE@EDE)ERTY O
SRR EmAE LA AR ER
8 ()RR REERAE - (i)FHE
RERRBEMENBEETMBER(VIFES -
P E R M B AR SEE AR AR A -

Total GFA represents the sum of (i) gross floor area ("GFA") available
for sale and total leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) GFA
for properties under development, (iii) GFA for properties held for
future development and (iv) GFA of carparks, ancillary and others.

ek - Note:

CHEm%E C represents commercial
R FEIEE R represents residential
ABERE A represents apartments

0 RIBEEBAAREBEBARE -HAERRES

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
8 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Details of other properties of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was as
follows:

BELEE EihAREEE? HERRD
ER A= (FHK) B (FAx) (W& HERH
Total GFA®
attributable to
Total GFA® the shareholding  Type of project Category
Project Location (sq.m.) Interest (sq.m.) (Note) of lease
HEERYT
Changsha City, Hunan Province
BRERERDL EER 55817 100% 55817 C P
Fullsun International Financial Centre  Yuelu District Medium
REEEMT
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province
RENGE HEG 241 100% 41 C el
Qianlong Gongguan Minhou County Medium
D
Hong Kong
PEES=H e 6763 100% 6763 C P
Enterprise Square 3 Kowloon Bay Medium
62,821 62,821

2 BEEEBEONCRIVEAHESEZE
EAER A A EERBERGEES &
ERERE AR ERMEA AR o

BisE
C B

FR - AEBERWKAL AR1,59,181,000
T BUBEEM EFA27 1% CGREER AR
1,255,548,0007T ) ° A EFIE L H24.6% (B 1T E
M : 25.5%) °

NAalEA AEREARAFEAARYE136,884,000
TOBEEM - AR%S5120680007T) » R IE
LEETEE (A RBRESITEBLNAREE
BEINE ) EE > ARREAARGRFREL
BRI ARYE72507,0007T GEBEEAR © AR
315,632,0007T) ©

EREARBNAARE1 219 CGBERR - KA
KBAFNAREI60D) - BREERT A ARE
0667 GBAEM : SREERNAREE2839) -

(2)  Total GFA represents the sum of (i) GFA available for sale and total
leasable GFA for completed properties and (ii) GFA of carparks,
ancillary and others.

Note:
C represents commercial

During the Year, the total revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB1,596,181,000, increased by 27.1% as compared to that of the
Previous Period (Previous Period: RMB1,255,548,000).The overall gross
profit margin was approximately 24.6% (Previous Period: 25.5%).

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company achieved
RMB136,884,000 (Previous Period: RMB512,068,000). After deduction
of the effect from non-operating items, i.e. gain arising from change in
fair value of derivative components of convertible bonds, the operating
profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB72,507,000 (Previous Period: RMB315,632,000).

The basic earnings per share was RMB1.21 cents (Previous Period: basic
earnings per share RMB4.60 cents). The diluted earnings per share was
RMBO0.66 cents (Previous Period: diluted earnings per share RMB2.83
cents).

EREREZEREEERAR 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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62,821 F 77K »

BHHE

FR - AEEERAYEEBEHARE282ET
CGBAHRE  HARE279ETT) ©

MAREE 21 ABTTIERT R 2{E A RIER B
A BIDEHBEARERER TEPOEEM

YE 395

FA - WMEHEEWMALAREE,522,963,0007T (3B
AHIR - AR¥1,239,003,0007T) ©

VEBEEWATERERNEBILF - BEHEX
FEEFEFNER - FRERNESHESBER
FE K08 _EF22.9% ©

MERE

AREFHS WAL ARE732180007T (i@ 3 H
Al AR¥16,5450007T) « HEWAEERB Y
¥RV EREESRPOAESCEES = -

FR - BTHHMAOMERGTEENS>EARER
ME - TERmeBELEAODERAEHEER
MARBEEZYEGFEXNARAREBEZEH
ER - REMENAAEBEEDREMERE
EREREWERHANEEEMOGHERKES
FEE A ARB105,707,000C GBI - AR
440,022,0007T) °

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group owned 15 projects under
development and for sale and had a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,514,749 sq.m. with gross floor area attributable to
the Group of approximately 1,223,507 sg.m.. The Group also owned 3
investment properties with gross floor area attributable to the Group of
62,821 sgq.m..

CONTRACTED SALES

During the Year, the Group achieved contracted sales of approximately
RMB2.82 billion (Previous Period: approximately RMB2.79 billion).

Approximately RMB2.14 billion is estimated to be recognised as income in
the coming 12 months upon the time of the actual transfer of the title of
the properties to customers.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, revenue from sales of properties was approximately
RMB1,522,963,000 (Previous Period: RMB1,239,003,000).

The revenue from sales of properties was mainly contributed by
projects of Kela Meili Shanzhuang, Qianlong Royal Family and Qianlong
International. The recognised sales during the Year has significantly
increased by 22.9% as compared to that of the Previous Period.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental income for the Year was approximately RMB73,218,000 (Previous
Period: RMB16,545,000). Rental income was mainly contributed by the
premises Fullsun International Financial Centre in Changsha and the
Enterprise Square Three in Hong Kong.

During the Year, certain properties leased out were reclassified from
inventory to investment properties. The major gain amount represents
the difference between the fair value of the properties leased on the date
of the lease compared to the original costs recorded in inventory of such
properties. The net valuation gain from change in fair value of investment
properties and increase in fair value upon transfer from inventory of
properties to investment properties was RMB105,707,000 (Previous
Period: RMB440,022,000).

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

] O ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATING EXPENSES

During the Year, the selling and distribution expenses was approximately
RMB97,018,000 (Previous Period: RMB43,605,000), the cost-income
ratio calculated as the relevant expenses divided by the revenue for
the Year was 6.08% (Previous Period: 3.47%). During the Year, the
administrative expenses was approximately RMB87,936,000 (Previous
Period: RMB55,206,000), the cost-income ratio calculated as the relevant
expenses divided by the revenue for the Year was 5.51% (Previous Period:
4.40%). The increase in operating expenses was primarily driven by sales
growth during the Year.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs comprised of interest on bank and other borrowings,
interest on convertible bonds, interest on lease liabilities and interest on
contract liabilities and net of capitalised interest relating to properties
under development. The finance costs was approximately RMB99,671,000
for the Year (Previous Period: RMB78,470,000).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the Year, income tax expense amounted to approximately
RMB153,553,000 (Previous Period: RMB263,409,000). The decrease in
income tax expense was mainly due to the reduction of provision for
deferred tax in relation to the valuation gains from properties.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year (Previous Period: Nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB879,478,000 (2018: RMB1,290,224,000), which were
principally denominated in RMB and HKD. The Group had total bank
and other borrowings of approximately RMB4,414,448,000 (2018:
RMB4,326,419,000) which carried interest at fixed or floating interest rates
and were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD. The Group's total bank
and other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2019
was 31.8% (2018: 37.1%). The Group had carrying amounts of convertible
bonds and its derivative components of approximately RMB23,400,000
(2018: RMB93,089,000). The carrying amounts of convertible bonds and
its derivative components divided by total assets as at 31 December
2019 was 0.2% (2018: 0.8%). The net gearing ratio calculated as total
borrowings including the debt component of the convertible bonds net
of bank balances and cash and restricted bank deposits divided by total
equity of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was 122.6% (2018: 164.8%).

EREREZEREEERAR 1 1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GEARING RATIO (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB11,075,750,000 (2018: RMB9,482,426,000) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB9,379,695,000 (2018: RMB6,240,841,000). The
net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB2,851,181,000 (2018: RMB1,781,393,000) increased by approximately
60.1%.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s principal business operations and investments are in
mainland China and Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2019, all outstanding
balances of its loans are denominated in RMB, USD and HKD. The Group
is exposed to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates of the RMB, USD
and HKD, but does not have any instruments to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange rates as it considers the potential exposure to foreign
exchange rate risks is limited. The Group nonetheless closely monitors the
fluctuations in exchange rates and will take appropriate actions to reduce
the exchange rate exposure.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business, financial conditions or results of operations are
affected by a number of key risks and uncertainties outlined below. There
may be other risks or uncertainties, including those which are not known
to the Group or which the Group currently deems to be immaterial but
may affect the Group in future.

The majority of the Group's assets are located in the PRC, and the
majority of the Group's revenue is derived from the PRC. As a result, the
Group is subject to extensive government regulations in most aspects
of its operations and is highly susceptible to changes in the regulatory
environment in the PRC. Those regulations may have a significant impact
on the Group's business, operating results and financial condition.

The Group's business also exposes to market risk (including interest rate
and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk which are directly
related to the economic condition of the PRC and the global economy.
An analysis of the Group's financial risk management is provided in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The pledge of assets and contingent liabilities of the Group are disclosed
in the notes 39 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The other commitments of the Group is disclosed in the note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The number of issued Shares as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019
were 11,351,749,796 and 11,365,386,067 Shares respectively.

CB PLACING ON 1 DECEMBER 2017 AND CONVERSION

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the Company
and the placing agent on 20 October 2017, convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) at
the rate of 9% per annum and conversion price at HK$0.22 per Shares
were issued to various convertible bonds holders on 1 December 2017.
During the Year, convertible bonds with principal amount in aggregate
of HK$3,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,697,000) were converted into
13,636,271 conversion shares (“Conversion Shares”). Such Conversion
Shares were issued and allotted on 22 August 2019. The principal of the
convertible bonds outstanding as at 31 December 2019 is HK$27,000,000.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND INVESTMENTS

CAPITAL INJECTION IN THE PROJECT COMPANY OF
XINRU JINCHENG

In March 2019, the registered capital of the project company of Xinru
Jincheng in Hunan, namely Hunan Xingru Cheng Property Development
Co., Ltd.* (the "Project Company”), increased from RMB50,000,000 to
RMB1,020,000,000, by way of capital injection by the Group and AVIC
Trust Co., Ltd.* ("AVIC Trust”) in cash for the future development and
construction of phase Ill of the project. Upon completion of such capital
injection, the equity interest of the Project Company owned by the Group
reduced from 100% to 51%, and the registered capital in the Project
Company is currently registered as to 51% and 49% in the name under
the Group and AVIC Trust respectively.

Details of the capital injection were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2019.
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ACQUISITION OF FULLSUN - QIANLONG BAY
PROPERTY PROJECT, GUANGDONG PROVINCE

In September 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Zhongshan Zhengpei Electronic Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongshan
Zhengpei”) and its shareholder’s loan at consideration of approximately
RMB150,000,000. The principal asset of Zhongshan Zhengpei is a
property project, namely Fullsun « Qianlong Bay* under development
located beside Zhongshan Port, Zhongshan Torch Development Zone*,
Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

Since Guangzhou Fusheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (the "Vendor”), the
Vendor, is an indirect 88% owned subsidiary of Fusheng Group which
is owned as to 90% by Mr. Pan Weiming and as to 10% by Ms. Chen
Weihong, both of whom have been executive Directors within 12 months
before the date of the relevant equity transfer agreement. Therefore,
the Vendor is an associate of connected persons of the Company.
Accordingly, the acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 September 2019.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 240 employees,
including the Directors. Remuneration of employees is determined by
reference to the market terms and commensurate with the level of pay
for similar positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses
are payable to employees based on individual performance. The Group
provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government
of the PRC, and the employees in Hong Kong are members of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the Reporting Period are set out in the note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details and
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activities
of the Group are development and sale of properties and property
investment in the PRC including Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results and the cash flows of the Group for the Year and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 66 of this Annual
Report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018.
The Board shall consider the following factors before recommending or
declaring dividends.

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends under the applicable laws,
the relevant regulations and the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws"); and

other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion of the business review of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

The principal properties owned by the Group as at 31 December 2019 are
set out on pages 7 to 9 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank loans and other loans of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

Details relating to the interest capitalised by the Group during the Year
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in the Company'’s reserves during the Year are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to RMB1,454,041,000 (31 December 2018: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No donation for charitable purposes were made by the Group during the
Year (Previous Period: RMB Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 1.5% (Previous Period: 9.5%), with the
largest customer accounted for approximately 0.6% (Previous Period:
5.8%) of the Group's total revenue. The five largest suppliers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 57.6% (Previous Period: 11.8%),
with the largest supplier accounted for approximately 27.3% (Previous
Period: 5.9%) of the Group's total purchases during the Year.

The third largest supplier, Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd, is indirectly owned
as to 51% by Fusheng Group. Fusheng Group is owned as to 90% by Mr.
Pan Weiming and as to 10% by Ms. Chen Weihong (being ex-Directors
of the Company who resigned on 7 September 2019 and 3 September
2019 respectively). Save as disclosed above, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, at no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws, or there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group are set out in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial periods is set out on pages 195 to 196 of this Annual
Report.
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EEREEHRBEN DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

REAFENEERFRAH  EFF5 The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

HITES EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

EER A Mr. Pan Haoran®

BIRRA(TTEAAE) Mr. Tong Wentao (Chief Executive Officer)

FEREE A Mr. Li Jinrong

RO B4t o A Mr. Tang Kwok Hung

FR{ZAT 22 L+ Ms. Chen Weihong*

EEAR ST Mr. Pan Weiming?

& R 5 e Mr. Pan Jungang##

RAGHT ZrLww Ms. Wu Jihong###

RS Mr. Wu Yang##

BYFHITES INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

REWE L L FHL Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles, J.P.

FERB LT Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon

BN EE A Mr. Yang Xiaoping

RB LA Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl

o MR2019F9 A3 HEZR (T s appointed on 3 September 2019

# R2019F9 A3HEHE i resigned on 3 September 2019

o 201989 A7H BT #  resigned on 7 September 2019

e FA20209E3 H12H BT i resigned on 12 March 2020

RIBAFIMBIESE AR EEESLTER Pursuant to Bye-law 83, any Director appointed by the Board to fill

RN EENTHEEREZEENE a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of

KRR ARE AL MEERZAS EEESBT - members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such

MEEECLZTARAEETENHIEKENT meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to

MEENTHEEEARRA TERRBFRE A the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual

IF - BRBREERERET - general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

RIBE AR MMBIES3E  FBIEARLEERH/RET - BFF In accordance with Bye-law 83, Mr. Pan Haoran shall retire from office and,
AERUTEERERERRBFERS FHIEET - being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

] 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years. As such, Dr. Cheung Wai
Bun, Charles, J.P., Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl will retire
from office by rotation. Mr. Yang Xiaoping has notified the Company that
he would like to devote more time to his other business commitments
and engagements. For this reason, he will not offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting while Dr. Cheung and
Mr. Yuen, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 33 to 37 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”, no transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or a supervisor or his/her connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”,
at no time during the Year was the Company or its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report, there is
permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being
in force. The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 24 October 2017, Mr. Pan Weiming (“Mr. Pan WM") (being an
executive Director and beneficial owner of the controlling shareholder
of the Company during the year up to 7 September 2019) and Tongda
Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”) (the controlling shareholder of the
Company) entered into the deed of non-competition ("“Deed of Non-
competition”) in favour of the Company.

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, among other things, Mr. Pan
WM and Tongda will not, and will procure that his/its close associates
(other than any members of the Group) not to, following the completion
of Very Substantial Acquisition and during the Non-Compete Period (as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017), other
than the Excluded Projects (as defined in the circular of the Company
dated 27 October 2017), directly or indirectly, either on its/his own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, own, invest in, carry on, participate in, develop, operate or
be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee, or otherwise, and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which is
or may be in competition, directly or indirectly, with the existing principal
business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-competition were set
out in the section headed “Relationship with the controlling shareholders
— 3. Non — competition Undertakings” in the circular of the Company
dated 27 October 2017. As from 7 September 2019, the Deed of Non-
competition no longer applies to Mr. Pan WM upon him ceasing to hold
or control any shares in the Company.

Mr. Pan WM and Tongda confirmed to the Company that each of
them has complied with his/its undertakings under the Deed of Non-
competition and the disclosure of details of his/its compliance with and
the enforcement of the non-competition undertakings under the Deed of
Non-competition is consistent with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report, save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is considered to have any
interest in a business apart from the business operated by the Group
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in the (i) paragraph
headed "Acquisition of Fullsun - Qianlong Bay Property Project,
Guangdong Province” on page 14 of this Annual Report; and (ii)
paragraph headed “Deruida Financing Arrangement” on page 25 of this
Annual Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to requirements of the Listing Rules, the continuing connected
transactions conducted by the Group during the Year are disclosed
below.
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FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is principally engaged in property development in the PRC and
requires external funding in its business operations. In addition to bank
loans, the Group has obtained other financing with repurchase obligation
from lenders which are generally trust companies or other financial
institutions in the PRC. Such other financing with repurchase obligation is
an alternative source of funds for property developers in the PRC and are
available to borrowers in various forms, including equity transfers, capital
injections, equity acquisition, shareholder loans, or secured entrusted
loans.

1. HUNAN FULLSUN FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into between Daye
Trust Co,, Ltd ("Daye Trust”) (a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level) and Hunan Fullsun Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.* ("Hunan Fullsun”) on 22 December 2016, a maximum
amount of available financing of RMB500,000,000 (the “Hunan
Fullsun Financing Arrangement”) was provided by Daye Trust to
Hunan Fullsun for a term not exceeding 48 months, comprising
an initial term of 24 months and a further term of 24 months (such
further term of 24 months was confirmed by way of a consent letter
dated 20 December 2018 given by Daye Trust to Hunan Fullsun).
The interest rate was 9% per annum for the first year and 10% per
annum for each subsequent year.

To secure the performance and payment obligations of Hunan
Fullsun in respect of the Hunan Fullsun Financing Arrangement,
49% equity interest in Hunan Fullsun was transferred by Hunan
Fullsun Group Co., Ltd.* ("Hunan Fullsun Group”) to Daye Trust to
be held as collateral to secure the repayment obligation of Hunan
Fullsun and the following has been provided to Daye Trust as
security for the repayment obligations of Hunan Fullsun, including
(i) a pledge of 51% of the equity interest in Hunan Fullsun provided
by Hunan Fullsun Group; and (ii) a mortgage over the land use
rights of four parcels of land located in Hunan Province together
with the buildings and constructions erected thereon provided by
Hunan Fullsun. Daye Trust is obliged under the terms of the Hunan
Fullsun Financing Arrangement to transfer back to the Group such
equity interests in Hunan Fullsun upon its repayment of the agreed
amounts, comprising the principal and the fixed income return. The
interest expenses to Daye Trust in relation to the Hunan Fullsun
Financing Arrangement during the Year was RMB7,998,000.

Details of the transactions were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 27 October 2017 and the announcements of the
Company dated 1 December 2017 and 20 December 2018.
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XINGRU FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into between Daye
Trust and Hunan Xingru Cheng Property Development Co., Ltd.*
("Hunan Xingru”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, on
26 November 2016, a maximum amount of available financing
of approximately RMB690,000,000 (the “Xingru Financing
Arrangement”) was provided by Daye Trust to Hunan Xingru for a
term of two years, renewable with the consent of Daye Trust. The
interest rate was 8.5% per annum for the first year and 10% per
annum for the second year.

Changsha Qiantai Property Development Co., Ltd.*, the previous
owner of Hunan Xingru had transferred 49% equity interest in
Hunan Xingru to Daye Trust as collateral to secure the repayment
obligations of Hunan Xingru under the financing arrangement
and the following has been provided to Daye Trust as security for
the repayment obligations of Hunan Xingru, including (i) a pledge
of 51% of the equity interest in Hunan Xingru provided by Hunan
Fullsun Group; and (i) a mortgage over the land use rights of the
lands of the property project of Hunan Xingru with a total area of
approximately 66,000 square meters located in Hunan province
provided by Hunan Xingru. Daye Trust is obliged under the terms
of the financing arrangement to release and transfer to the Group
such equity interests in Hunan Xingru upon its repayment of the
agreed amounts, comprising the principal of the loan and the fixed
income return. The interest expenses to Daye Trust in relation to
the Xingru Financing Arrangement for the period from 1 January
2019 to 20 February 2019 was RMB2,851,000.

Following the settlement in full by Hunan Xingru of all repayment
obligations under the Xingru Financing Arrangement, the
continuing connected transaction of the Company constituted
by the Xingru Financing Arrangement ceased to subsist on 20
February 2019

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 12 February 2018, 14 March 2018, 28 March
2018 and 20 February 2019

EREREZEREEERAR 23
20195 5]



.

=

GRS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

24

ERBMEZH

BB A Z T E AR B8 E W B A 54
MERBEERERAF(HEEZ DR
201659 A21 HFsI B E 2 8E - RS
SRR IE 2 R &% A R 900,000,000
THRE( EE2RELHE]) - BEMT -
AEAXEARETEE BFFNEE
85E  F_FFFEKEISE - KEE
BRI R IE 272018510 831 HE] MM T
FoOBY (EheR) KEETREE
EEEMHEARES500,00000THEE - &
F R & B AR #200,000,0007T M A R #
300,000,0007C 7B 53 R 20194 10 H20H K&
2020F4 208 EE - WHARFFE1N%ET
B o

WMHEERAHEARD EHFHERES
FRABIHE R E249% M EEE T A EE
HOEAREBENEEZBITEEMELRH
HTEREANERS - WERREHE
FEMNEEEARMAEGTRBEUATE
e (VEEREEMRERNEEE
Z51% MR © RNV ANEEBEE
49348000 F KK HRIEESWEBEMN L
M AREERE EYMEMNILE - BRIERE
ZHEMER  REETBEENMELESR
EEHESHE(RELS RETERARR)
5 1% B B8 m SR L IR RE AR B K 82 Bl TR
BREE - 52019F 1 H1B#ZE2019F2A
26R I ERMEL ST T ARESE
FERF B A AR KE3,398,0007T °

RHEERBREELERELTHETY
FTEERERE  EE2MATHEMBRLN
NARFHEBELIHER2019F2A268 T
BIFE -

RGHFBEHNART BEA218F6H19
H - 201856 H28H ~ 2018108318 &
2019%F2 A26 HEY A -

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ZHENGHAO FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into between Daye
Trust and Hunan Zhenghao Property Development Co., Ltd.*
("Hunan Zhenghao”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, on
21 September 2016, a maximum amount of available financing
of approximately RMB900,000,000 (the “Zhenghao Financing
Arrangement”) was provided by Daye Trust to Hunan Zhenghao
for a term of two years, renewable with the consent of Daye Trust.
The interest rate was 8.5% per annum for the first year and 9.5%
per annum for the second year. Daye Trust and Hunan Zhenghao
entered into a supplemental agreement on 31 October 2018,
pursuant to which, among others, financing of RMB500,000,000
was provided by Daye Trust to Hunan Zhenghao, whereby
RMB200,000,000 and RMB300,000,000 of such financing amount
shall be repaid on 20 October 2019 and 20 April 2020 respectively
and shall bear interest at a rate of 11% per annum.

Changsha Hongya Property Development Co., Ltd.*, the previous
owner of Hunan Zhenghao had, transferred 49% equity interest
in Hunan Zhenghao to Daye Trust as collateral to secure the
repayment obligations of Hunan Zhenghao under the Zhenghao
Financing Arrangement, and the following has been provided to
Daye Trust as security for the repayment obligations of Hunan
Zhenghao, including (i) a pledge of 51% of the equity interest in
Hunan Zhenghao provided by Hunan Fullsun Group; and (ii) a
mortgage over the land use rights of the property project of Hunan
Zhenghao with a total area of approximately of 348,000 square
meters together with the properties erected thereon in Hunan
province. Daye Trust is obliged under the terms of the financing
arrangement to release and transfer back to Hunan Fullsun Group
such equity interests in Hunan Zhenghao upon its repayment of
the agreed amounts, comprising the principal and the fixed income
return. The interest expenses to Daye Trust in relation to the
Zhenghao Financing Arrangement for the period from 1 January
2019 to 26 February 2019 was RMB3,398,000.

Following the repayment settlement in full by Hunan Zhenghao
of all repayment obligations under the Zhenghao Financing
Arrangement, the continuing connected transaction of the
Company constituted by the Zhenghao Financing Arrangement
ceased to subsist on 26 February 2019.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 19 June 2018, 28 June 2018, 31 October 2018
and 26 February 2019.
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DERUIDA FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into between Fuzhou
Kangan Lixin Investment Co., Ltd.* ("Fuzhou Kangan”), an indirect
subsidiary of the Company, and Sichuan Trust Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan
Trust”) (@ connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level)
on 3 August 2018 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
entered into on 26 September 2018 among Fuzhou Kangan,
Sichuan Trust and Hunan Deruida Property Development Co,,
Ltd.* ("Hunan Deruida”), a maximum amount of available financing
of RMB900 million (the “Deruida Financing Arrangement”) was
provided to Fuzhou Kangan by way of injection into Hunan Deruida
as capital reserve for a term ranging from 12 to 24 months. The
interest rate is 12.1% to 13.2% per annum.

Fuzhou Kangan had transferred 49% equity interest in Hunan
Deruida to Sichuan Trust by way of security as collateral for the
repayment obligations of Hunan Deruida in respect of the Deruida
Financing Arrangement, and the following has been given in
favour of Sichuan Trust as security for the repayment of the
Deruida Financing Arrangement and other obligations of Hunan
Deruida, including (i) a charge of 51% of the equity interest in
Hunan Deruida provided by Fuzhou Kangan; and (i) a pledge of
the land use rights of the land owned by Hunan Deruida in Hunan
province. Sichuan Trust is obliged under the terms of the financing
arrangement to transfer to the Group such equity interests in
Hunan Deruida upon its repayment of the agreed amounts,
comprising the principal and the interest. The interest expenses to
Sichuan Trust for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019 was RMB33,196,000.

Following the repayment in full by Hunan Deruida of all repayment
obligations under the Deruida Financing Arrangement, the
continuing connected transaction of the Company constituted
by the Deruida Financing Arrangement ceased to subsist on 30
September 2019. All collateral and security given in favour of
Sichuan Trust were discharged and released on 30 September 2019
in accordance with terms of the Deruida Financing Arrangement,
including, among others, the re-transfer (the “Re-transfer”) of the
49% equity interest in Hunan Deruida by Sichuan Trust to Fuzhou
Kangan at nil monetary consideration.

As Sichuan Trust was immediately before the Re-transfer a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level, the
Re-transfer constitutes a connected transaction for the Company.
Given that the Re-transfer is essentially the release of the 49%
equity interest in Hunan Deruida which was transferred to Sichuan
Trust as collateral for the repayment of the loan, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
the Re-Transfer is fair and reasonable, are on normal commercial
terms or better but not in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 25 July 2018, 21 August 2018, 26 September
2018 and 30 September 2019.
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PROVISION OF CONSTRUCTION WORKS

On 22 October 2018, Fuzhou Fullsun Group Co., Ltd.* entered into a
master construction agreement with Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd.*
("Fujian Liujian Group”) in relation to the provision of the pile foundation
engineering, earthwork and structural supporting engineering,
construction works and other relevant services (“Construction Works") to
the Group by Fujian Liujian Group for the projects for a term commencing
from 1 September 2018 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive) (the
“Master Construction Agreement”).

Fusheng Group indirectly held 51% equity interest in Fujuan Liujian
Group. Fusheng Group is owned as to 90% by Mr. Pan WM and as to 10%
by Ms. Chen Weihong. Therefore, Fujian Liujian Group is a close associate
of Mr. Pan WM and a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Construction Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the approval obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 5 December 2018, the proposed caps for the provision
of the Construction Works under the Master Construction Agreement for
the four months ended 31 December 2018 and the two years ending 31
December 2020 were RMB150 million, RMB1,500 million and RMB1,500
million respectively.

During the Year, Fujian Liujian Group provided Construction Works to the
Group amounted to approximately RMB308,809,000.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 September 2018, 22 October 2018 and 5 December
2018 and the circular of the Company dated 19 November 2018.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms which are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The balance with Fujian Liujian Group as at 31 December 2019 and the
guarantee as provided by Mr. Pan WM, Ms. Chen Weihong, Fusheng
Group, Fujian Fusheng Group and Tongda as at 31 December 2019, as
disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, constituted
continuing connected transactions and are fully exempted under Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, all applicable percentage
ratios of other continuing connected transactions which took place
during the Year are lower than 5% and the total consideration is less
than HK$3,000,000, and are therefore fully exempted from independent
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction and the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the following Directors or chief executives of
the Company or his associates had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

HRRAERITRAN

3 L RER

EEME CiEa) (H&E2)
Approximate percentage of

Total the Company’s issued

chief executive Capacity Nature of interests (Note 1) share capital (Note 2)
RERLE REEHEENER NEER 6,416,140,000 (1) 56.45%
Mr. Pan Haoran Interest of controlled Corporate interest GES)

corporation (Note 3)

=
o
i

1. (IR, RERD TR -

2. 201912 431 BB B1TIR1 48 %011,365,386,067 1%
RYEEBIANB G -

3. 6,416,140,000M 10 RIBIEHS - BEHRRTESE
SEREAEREERE - At - BERTEWRARBE
EMFARZKE RGP HEEERS -

Notes:
1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. The total number of 11,365,386,067 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019 has
been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

3. 6,416,140,000 Shares are owned by Tongda which is wholly owned by Mr.
Pan Haoran, an executive Director. As such, Mr. Pan Haoran is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Tongda.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
as follows:

(ERN|
2 BITRAK
et BABESH
=18 4 (PfF&ET) (PffEE2)
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Total issued share
Name Capacity (Note 1) capital (Note 2)
iz BEREAA 6,416,140,000(L) 56.45%
Tongda Beneficial owner
B R (FI5E3) f B 6,416,140,000(L) 56.45%
Zheng Jiaying (Note 3) Interest of spouse
Dragons 215 Limited Em#BA 590,000,000(L) 5.19%
Dragons 215 Limited Beneficial owner
DCP China Credit Fund I, L.P. REEGDER RS 590,000,000(L) 5.19%
DCP China Credit Fund |, L.P. Interest in controlled corporation
Dignari Capital Partners GP Limited RS2 #HABRELS 590,000,000(L) 5.19%
Dignari Capital Partners GP Limited  Interest in controlled corporation
BREE (PiT5E4) RREGDER RS 590,000,000(L) 5.19%

Tan Mei Zie Grace (Note 4)

MaE
1. (LRI, HERER D BEFE -

Interest in controlled corporation

Notes:

2. 2019512 A31 B E BT % £ 2011,365,386,067 %
REHEBABE DT -

3. BRert  BEREENER  HEAREER
S RBEMFSAREE RO S ER -

4. 590,000,000 A% % 5 £ Dragons 215 Limited ¥ A& * 1M
Dragons 215 Limited EADCP China Credit Fund |, LP. &
A ¥ M DCP China Credit Fund |, L.P. F Dignari
Capital Partners GP Limited % ] - FRE 2 Z L% %
Dignari Capital Partners GP Limited#799% ° F It » &R
2 LR AR 590,000,0008 Bk 15 R B #E RS

1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. The total number of 11,365,386,067 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019 has
been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

3. Ms. Zheng Jiaying, being the spouse of Mr. Pan Haoran, is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Mr. Pan Haoran and Tongda.

4. 590,000,000 Shares are owned by Dragons 215 Limited which is wholly owned
by DCP China Credit Fund I, L.P. which is in turn controlled by Dignari Capital
Partners GP Limited. Dignari Capital Partners GP Limited is owned as to 99% by
Ms. Tan Mei Zie Grace. As such, Ms. Tan Mei Zie Grace is deemed to be interested
in 590,000,000 Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 December 2017, convertible bonds (“CB") with principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) at the rate of 9% per
annum were issued to the CB placees. The net proceeds from the issued
CB was approximately HK$199,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB168,506,000).

Details of the CB are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report and section headed “Share Capital” of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme were set out in the paragraph
headed “H. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IX Statutory and general
information to the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 and
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

The total number of share option that could be granted was
1,123,674,979 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each, representing
approximately 9.89% of the total issued shares of the Company at the
date of this Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and
long-term goals. The management will continue to develop efficient
communication platform to enhance relationships with individual and
corporate customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

Employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted on the
basis of their merit, qualifications, competence and contribution to the
Group. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as a
long-term incentive scheme of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses
and other compensation are determined by the remuneration committee
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group's
performance and results.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement benefit plans of the Group are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is well aware of the importance of energy conservation and
low carbon development so that it has implemented various measures
to protect environment, like focusing on some key areas’ energy
conservation, carrying out circular economy and raising employees’
awareness of emission reduction. The Group is committed to integrating
the concept of low carbon development into every aspect of work for the
purpose of protecting environment as well as making contributions to
the society. The Company has been closely following the development
of international environmental laws for the purpose of ensuring the
successful implementation of Company’s environmental policies under
international standards as well as industrial standards.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code (as defined in the
Corporate Governance Report) and comprises four independent non-
executive Directors as at 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
company and the external auditor the Group’s annual results for the
Year, and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
share capital were held by members of the public as at the date of this
report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as auditor of the
Company on 5 January 2018 following the resignation of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Deloitte who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

PAN Haoran
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Mr. Pan Haoran (“Mr. Pan”), aged 28, has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company, a member of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board with effect from 3 September 2019. Mr. Pan has also been appointed as an
executive Director during the period from 1 December 2017 to 4 June 2018. Mr. Pan has been a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company since December 2014 and is mainly responsible for assisting the investment and financing management. Mr. Pan performs
the duties of the chairman of the Board. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Jinan University (B F A 22) in the
PRC in June 2013 and further obtained a master’s degree in finance and accounting from the University of Sheffield in the United
Kingdom in November 2014.

Mr. Pan is the son of Mr. Pan Weiming, a former executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and Ms. Chen Weihong, a
former executive Director. Mr. Pan is also a nephew of Mr. Pan Jungang, a former executive Director, and also a nephew of Ms. Wu
Jihong, a former executive Director, respectively.
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Mr. Tong Wentao (“Mr. Tong"”), aged 53, was appointed as the chief executive officer and an executive Director of the Company
on 20 September 2018. Mr. Tong is currently a member of the nomination committee of the Board. Mr. Tong has worked for China
Construction Bank (the “Bank”), one of the “China’s four largest banks”, in the PRC for over 20 years. He has held senior management
positions and acted as general manager in various departments of Fujian Branch of the Bank, and acted as head of sub-branches
of the Bank in Fujian Province and vice general manager of the credit department and the asset management department of
the headquarter of the Bank. He was appointed as senior economic analyst of the Bank in 2002. Mr. Tong has extensive working
experience and knowledge in bank operations management, industrial finance capital operation, financial risk prevention and

investment banking asset management. Mr. Tong graduated with a bachelor’s degree in education from Fujian Normal University in
Fujian Province in 1989 and obtained a master's degree in economics from Fujian Normal University in Fujian Province in 1995.
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Mr. Li Jinrong (“Mr. Li”), aged 45, has been an executive Director of the Company since 1 December 2017. He has extensive
working experience in engineering management and cost management in real estate industry. Mr. Li has joined the Group
since 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked as an assistant to the general manager at Guangzhou Yunxing Real Estate
Development Group Company Ltd.*, a real estate and property developer in the PRC, during 2001 to 2004. Mr. Li joined Fusheng
Group in 2004 and served as vice president during 2007 to 2015.

Mr. Li has been the vice executive president of Guangdong Chamber of Commerce in Fujian since 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree in finance and accounting from Renmin University in the PRC in 1999. Mr. Li also completed the real estate entrepreneurs MBA
course in Sun Yat-sen University in 2009 and completed the course for presidents of real estate development and finance from Peking
University in 2013.
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Mr. Tang Kwok Hung (“Mr. Tang”), aged 53, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience
in the strategic management, business development, corporate finance, and investment management in garment, retail, real estate
development, hotel, high-tech business, logistics, international trade and manufacturing industries. He has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company for the period from 1 February 2010 to 18 September 2013 and from 5 November 2013 to the
present. Mr. Tang was the chief executive officer of the Company for the period from 18 September 2014 to 1 December 2017.

Mr. Tang obtained a Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in June
2005 and a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1989. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Management Accountants in the
United States of America, a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, and an ordinary member of Hong Kong
Institute of Real Estate Administrators.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P. (“Dr. Cheung”), aged 83, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company, a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board with effect from 14 December 2017. He has
appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise. He is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer Global
Group Limited (stock code: 224), an independent non-executive director
of Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026), a non-
executive director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (stock code:
27), an independent non-executive director of Jiayuan International
Group Limited (stock code: 2768), and an independent non-executive
Director of Modern Dental Group Limited (stock code: 3600), which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Yin He Holdings Limited (stock code: 8260),
which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of Stock Exchange.

He was an executive Director and chairman of the board of directors of
Roma Group Limited (stock code: 8072) from 2 June 2017 to 18 December
2017. He was an independent non-executive director of China Financial
International Investments Limited (stock code: 721) from 1 March 2001 to
24 September 2018 and an independent non-executive director of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873) from 20 April 2017 to
31 July 2018.

Dr. Cheung obtained an honorary doctorate degree in business
administration from John Dewey University in the United States in 1984,
a master's degree in business administration and a bachelor of science
degree in accounts and finance from New York University in the United
States in 1962 and 1960 respectively.

Dr. Cheung is currently a non-executive director of the board and the vice
chairman of executive committee of Metropolitan Bank (China) Ltd., and
he was formerly an independent non-executive director and the director
general of the audit committee of China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co.
Ltd. Dr. Cheung is a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon Hospital and a member of the
Regional Advisory Committee of Kowloon of the Hospital Authority. Dr.
Cheung is a council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
is also the special advisor to the president of the University of Victoria in
Canada.
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Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, (“Dr. Tse”), aged 55, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company, chairman
of both remuneration committee and nomination committee, and a
member of audit committee of the Board with effect from 15 August
2018. Mr. Tse is a partner at a law firm in Hong Kong providing corporate
and commercial legal services and has over 20 years of experience in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, private equity, joint ventures
and compliance matters. Dr. Tse is qualified to practise law in Hong Kong,
England and Wales and the PRC. He graduated with a bachelor's degree in
law from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou in 1986. Dr. Tse obtained a
master's degree in law and a doctorate degree in law from the University
of London, the United Kingdom in 1989 and 1993 respectively. He is
a China appointed attesting officer, and a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. He is also a member of the China Political Consultative
Committee of Giuzhou Province.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping (“Mr. Yang”), aged 66, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Board with effect from 1 December 2017. Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in property and construction industry. During the period from
2007 to 2015, Mr. Yang worked as a vice president at ETON Properties
Group, a property company principally engaged in development
of hotels and commercial buildings in Dalian and Xiamen, the PRC,
where Mr. Yang was responsible for the management of the project
development, including management of engineering design, cost control
and marketing. From 1994 to 2007, he worked as senior management of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited (a PRC property developer listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 754), Tianjin subsidiary Tianjin
Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Development Limited, and China Overseas
Property Group Co,, Ltd, a leading state-owned property developer in the
PRC. Mr. Yang was in charge of design, project management, engineering
management, cost control and marketing of property projects. From 1969
to 1994, Mr. Yang worked at the Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China
Construction First Group, during the period from 1978 to 1994, he worked
as the head of the production control division and was responsible for
management of construction.

Mr. Yang graduated from East China University of Science and
Technology (formerly known as Shanghai Institute of Chemical
Engineering) in 1978 majoring in Chemical Engineering. Mr. Yang
attained the qualification of senior engineer accredited by China State
Construction Engineering Corporation in 1994.
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Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 46, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company, chairman of
audit committee, a member of remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board with effect from 1 December 2017. Mr. Yuen
obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Master of
Business Administration degree from University of Houston, United States
in 1997 and 1998 respectively. Mr. Yuen is currently the chief executive
officer and the financial controller of Courage Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 1145), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the
“SGX-ST"). Mr. Yuen has rich experience in finance and accounting both
in Hong Kong and the United States. Mr. Yuen commenced his career in
the United States and served as chief accountant and managerial position
in several companies between 1998 and 2003. Mr. Yuen joined Courage
Investment Group Limited in 2004 and has been appointed as financial
controller since May 2006. Mr. Yuen has taken up the additional role as
chief executive officer since September 2019. Mr. Yuen is responsible
for the company’s overall operations, and is in charge of the company’s
finance and accounting control, as well as the company'’s reporting, SGX-
ST and the Stock Exchange compliance. Mr. Yuen is currently a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Association of Hong
Kong Accountants. Mr. Yuen is an independent non-executive director of
Qianhai Health Holdings Limited (stock code: 911), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (“Mr. Chan”), aged 37 has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with
effect from 15 January 2018. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experiences
in accounting, audit, financial management and company secretarial
works. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) majoring in
Accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest standard
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of
its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders, and the Board
is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high standards
of corporate governance provide a framework and solid foundation for
the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high
standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix
14 (the “CG Code") to the Listing Rules throughout the Year and, where
appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiries made by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversee the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The directors take decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company. Some functions including, inter alia, monitor and
approval of material transactions, matters involving conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder or director(s) of the Company, the approval
of the interim and annual results, other disclosures to the public or
regulators and the internal control system are reserved by the Board and
the decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to the decision of
the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for
the daily operations of the Company are delegated to the management
under the supervision of the respective Directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Haoran, Mr. Tong Wentao (Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Li Jinrong and Mr. Tang Kwok Hung and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P., Dr.
Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl.
Mr. Pan Jungang, Ms. Wu Jihong and Mr. Wu Yang have been executive
Directors during the Year and resigned on 12 March 2020.

The biographies of the current Directors and their relationship, if any, are
set out in“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 33 to 37 of this Annual Report.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review
and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. All Directors
are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for regular Board
meetings, and have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all
Board procedures and rules and regulations are followed. Full minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. During the Year, 7 Board meetings were
held and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out
in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice where necessary at the expense of the Company. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has
been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, a director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re- election.

According to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, the shareholders of the Company may by
an ordinary resolution remove a director (but without prejudice to any
claim for damages under any such agreement) before the expiration of
his period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint another
person in his stead.

Save and except as disclosed in the “Biographical details of Directors
and Senior Management”, there are family relationship among Mr. Pan
Haoran, Mr. Pan Weiming, Ms. Chen Weihong, Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms.
Wu Jihong, there is no relationship among other members of the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The chairman focuses on the business strategy and
direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning
of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The chief executive
officer is accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of
the Company's strategies and the co-ordination of overall business
operations.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer carrying the title
of “Chairman” since the resignation of Mr. Pan Weiming, the ex-chairman
of the Company, on 7 September 2019. Mr. Pan Haoran, an executive
Director, performs the duties as chairman during the Year under review.
Mr. Tong Wentao has been appointed as the chief executive officer
since 20 September 2018. In the opinion of the Directors, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer was properly segregated.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each of
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles J.P,, Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr. Yuen
Chee Lap, Carl, in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has also reviewed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not
aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe
that the independence of any of the independent non-executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures of the
Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge
and skills at the expenses of the Company where applicable. The
Company has also provided reading materials to all Directors to develop
and refresh their professional knowledge.

All Directors have provided the Company their training records for
the Year. During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the duties
and/or responsibility of the directors and the business of the Group,
including reading relevant Listing Rules, the general business or
responsibilities of the directors and other relevant training materials; and/
or attended seminars and/or lectures.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board. The
Company believes that a diversified perspective can be achieved through
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The diversity of the Board
members should be assessed on a diversity of perspectives including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria, merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 31 December 2018. Such policy applies to the directors of
the Company and where applicable, senior management prepared for
the Board positions under the succession planning for the Company.
The Board may delegate its authority and duties for matters relating to
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.
Details of the criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors are
disclosed in the Nomination Policy which is uploaded on the Company’s
website. The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board (the “"Audit Committee”) comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles J.P,, Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr. Yuen
Chee Lap, Carl. Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the Group's
financial information; (i) oversight of the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control and risk management system; (iii) make
recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor; and (iv) review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity. In addition, the Audit Committee
discusses matters raised by the external auditor and regulatory bodies to
ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has performed its duties, reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management of
the Company and reviewed the appointment of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed with the management of the
Company the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and also with the external auditor the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, and was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results was in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms. Wu Jihong and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P., Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr. Yuen Chee Lap Carl. Dr. Tse Hiu Tung,
Sheldon is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

With effect from 12 March 2020, Mr. Pan Jungang and Ms. Wu Jihong have
ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Pan
Haoran was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for remuneration
policy; (ii) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors, non-executive directors and
senior management; and (iii) review and approve compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment. The Remuneration Committee is regulated by
the terms of reference which follow closely the requirements of the CG
Code and shall be modified and approved by the Board from time to time.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policies of the Company, reviewed and made
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board members
for approval by the Board and made recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of the newly appointed Director during the Year for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
operation model where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the
Board retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics, for Board approval. Each
of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed
annually. In addition, each of the executive Directors may receive a
discretionary bonus as the Remuneration Committee may recommend.
Such amount has to be approved by the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Jungang and Mr. Tong Wentao, and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles J.P., Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon, Mr. Yang Xiaoping and Mr.
Yuen Chee Lap, Carl. Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

With effect from 12 March 2020, Mr. Pan Jungang has ceased to be
a member of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Pan Haoran was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors; and (v) develop and maintain a policy for nomination of
Board members. The Nomination Committee is regulated by the terms of
reference which follow closely the requirements of the CG Code and shall
be modified and approved by the Board from time to time.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, considered the
appointment of the new Director and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the various

meetings of the Company during the Year are set out below:

Annual
general Audit Remuneration Nomination
meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EEpg BRREBFAE g ERZEEE FHZEEE REZEE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Pan Haoran® GRS - 4/4 - - -
Mr. Tong Wentao EXREE(TTRER)

(Chief Executive Officer) il 5/7 - - 2/2
Mr. Li Jinrong S /1 7/7 - - -
Mr. Tang Kwok Hung B & 0/1 7/7 - - -
Ms. Chen Weihong? PRIE 4T et 1 1/5 - - -
Mr. Pan Weiming (Chairman)#* EEBELE (L) /1 3/7 - - -
Mr. Pan Jungang " EE /1 6/7 - 1/1 22
Ms. Wu Jihong#* REEHT Ar L 11 7/7 - 0/1 -
Mr. Wu Yang?# RyFfgE /1 7/7 - - -
Independent Non-executive BUHHITEE

Directors
Dr.Cheung WaiBun, Charles JP.  REEL A P4+ 1/1 7/7 22 1/1 22
Dr. Tse Hiu Tung, Sheldon AEREL 0/1 5/7 22 0/1 1/2
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BN E 1/1 7/7 22 1/1 22
Mr. Yuen Chee Lap, Carl REMEE I 7/7 2/2 11 2/2

8 20199 A3 EER(T
' 201959 A3H BHT
o FA2019F9 A7 HEHT
wi FA2020F3 12 B BHT

ESERUBRERNEM

EXNEWEAE RSN BHIMREY R
K NEEMRFHRRARBNEBRR © 4R
HHEMANBHRERE  EFCERTERE
REENEBE  FERELATFEENHE K
et - URIRFER 2 R RBMBEEREK -

R

EEREMRARENSHCRESEL EEL
BEARENPHERR - EMREZESHA
SRMOB BN BHRE LN RBEIBEEREK -

4 appointed on 3 September 2019
# resigned on 3 September 2019
# resigned on 7 September 2019
#t resigned on 12 March 2020

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the Reporting Period, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was appointed
as auditor of the Company following the resignation of ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited on 5 January 2018.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor. The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services, during the Reporting
Period is set out below:

Bt ERER
Frig AR 7% Services rendered Fee paid/payable
AR¥T T
RMB’000
ENZRRTE Audit services 2,538
EMIEEZRE (BIECEmMERBERE Other non-audit services (including corporate
MBERERY - BTG RN e 2 AR financial advisory services, tax advisory
REBESRE) services, risk assessment and internal control
consulting services and due diligence services) 2,203
4,741

P BREE 1R K b i TR

EEEWRHEYEY MEFARERERRREE
MEEEME  BRAXAMGEHE  2&E AR
KREREZRTH  WRERRZENREENE
REEHNRN EFEGCRRARAEEERE
ZERE HEEFSEET  BEEECHUE
BF - ARG R ERAEERMESNER
[\ o
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining the internal controls and risk management which covers
financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management of the
Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such
internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The Board and the Audit Committee review the effectiveness of internal
control system and risk management that are significant to the Group
annually or at any time necessary. The Board and the Audit Committee
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, as well as
their training programmes and budgets.

(A) THE PROCESS USED TO IDENTIFY, EVALUATE AND
MANAGE SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group's
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk
and ensures that appropriate internal control processes are
in place;

Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

Reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

(B) THE MAIN FEATURES OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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AN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY THE BOARD THAT
ITIS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
REVIEWING THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

THE PROCESS USED TO REVIEW THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND TO RESOLVE
MATERIAL INTERNAL CONTROL DEFECTS

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP as its risk management and internal control
review adviser (“the Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of
the risk management and internal control systems for the Year.
Such review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rotation basis. The scope of review was previously determined
and approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and
areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and management.
The Board/Audit Committee are of the view that there are no
material internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from
the Adviser are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that
they are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.
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(E) THE PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
policy regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information, which includes:

Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

Designated persons and departments to determine
further escalation and disclosure as required; and

Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the Year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective and
adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ming Kei has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 15 January 2018. He is a full time employee of
the Company and has adequate professional knowledge to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Chan supported the chairman, the
Board and the Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and
that Board policy and procedures were followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All Directors may call upon him for advice and assistance at any
time in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board
and the Board Committees. During the Year, Mr. Chan has confirmed that
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING (“SGM”)

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to require the convening of a SGM. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene the SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, themselves may convene a SGM, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from twenty-one days of the deposit.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT A GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-laws (as amended from time to time), the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition
convene a SGM follow the procedures as set out above.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRES AND PROPOSALS

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by email at
cs@fullsun.com.hk or by post to the principal office of the Company at
Room 2407, 24/F., World-wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong. Shareholders can also make enquires with the Board directly at the
general meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group's business. The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and other general meetings.

The website of the Company at http://www.fullsun.com.hk has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Currently approved Bye-laws by the shareholders is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58
to 194, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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BARETSEER

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BEMREAROMEERRESNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERYFHEHRA

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

HRERYEHEN A FEBEREME
HRmAMEBHEEEAN  RMEEEERH
REFTEE -

We identified revenue recognised from sales
of properties as a key audit matter as it is
quantitatively significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EREREE2019F12A3BIEFEAMER
ENRANBARK 1 52388 16 EXE
B A95.4% » BERFE M IEMKRMToMWEE -
WMANERE B TE MR ML 4P IRER - MEHEN
WARBE %R TR AIEGIEER Z % SRR
R RFIREERIMELHER BE
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The Group's revenue from sales of properties for
the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB1,523 million, which is disclosed
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements,
representing 95.4% of the Group's total revenue.
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when control of completed property is
transferred to the customer, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

B Pzt A R R Y X i E WA Z FF 8245
Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of properties
included:

TEIWE BSEEREERIVEREHREEREEFRIENA
EREC IR R A R EE TE HER ) SR SH S BV W A BB B

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control over the process of transferring the control of
completed properties to the customers and determining the point of
time at which revenue from sales of properties is recognised;

BHEEERESEEGEMEGIUATHREFEGSERIMEN
PERIRE &

Inspecting, on a sample basis, the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreements to understand the point that the customers obtain the
control of the completed properties; and

RHEGEEETHERIVENEFESTERBEEEHZNK
FoRBETREATIZERTETEFPHRIMBAEBRERF -
Evaluating whether the control of completed properties have been
transferred to the customers by checking, on a sample basis, to the terms
of the sale and purchase agreements, the relevant completion certificate
for construction work and the delivery notice sent to the customers.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRREAROMEERRENER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

E LA

Valuation of inventory of properties
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We identified the valuation of inventory of
properties, which includes properties under
development for sale (the “PUD") and completed
properties held for sale (the “PFS”) (collectively
referred to as the “Properties”) as a key audit matter
as it is quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined
with significant estimates are involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV")
of the Properties.
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The Group’s PUD of approximately RMB7,379
million and PFS of approximately RMB1,801 million
are situated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") and in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2019 as disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements which in aggregate represent
66.0% of the Group's total assets. As set out in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group determined the NRV
of the PUD with reference to the current market
price of properties of a comparable standard and
location and construction costs to be incurred
to complete the development based on existing
asset structure and construction material price lists.
The management determined the NRV of the PFS
with reference to the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

BMSMEFERENEF B

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventory of properties included:

TREBRENATKREEERDYEMEERENRIARTEZ
EWMENAIRE FENIEF

Obtaining an understanding on the management’s process of
estimating the construction costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the PUD and estimating the NRV of the Properties;

RHREE BB BEEKATES BHOERERTNE RN
N BEEERBALUERIVENBRFENLR  WRBHMERLR
EEERRAMSHEBIELNAR - SHETKERFYENGET
ARG &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated cost to completion of
the PUD, on a sample basis, by comparing the budgeted construction
costs, to the signed contracts with subcontractors, and actual
development cost of similar completed properties of the Group and
comparing the adjustments made by the management, on a sample
basis, to current market data; and

RAEEE BB RZSFYEMATEEEBRBEAHTLEY
EAHTISER  REHME SEEXBAPELRFERM
ETENTE®R  FEZSEVREFTEENSEE -

Assessing the appropriateness of estimated selling price of the
Properties, on a sample basis, by comparing it to the recent market prices
achieved in the same project or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the PRC and Hong Kong real
estate industry.
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BARETSEER

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BEMREAROMEERRESNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REYRG1EE

Valuation of investment properties
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We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter as it is
quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
significant estimates associated with determining
the fair value. As disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties of the Group mainly represent
commercial properties and office units located in
the PRC and, office units, car parking spaces and
signboards areas located in the Hong Kong and
are carried at RMB2,222 million as at 31 December
2019, which represents 16.0% of the Group's total
assets.
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All of the Group's investment properties are stated
at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers (the
"Valuers”). The valuation of investment properties
are dependent on certain key inputs that involve
the management’s and the Valuers' judgments,
including the capitalised rental incomes derived
from the existing tenancies with due provision for
any reversionary income potential of the property
interests and market observable transactions of
similar properties. The key inputs in valuating the
investment properties are term yield, reversionary
yield, market rent of comparable properties
and market observable transactions of similar
properties. Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BMBERRENEGHENREFERE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties included:

AHEEER B BER - e RFEIME - I T AREEMN TIESE
Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuers
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuers' scope of work;

MEER TREERN - WETISRE  RNEEREAERR
BEETEHABEHNEIE &

Obtaining an understanding from Valuers about the valuation
techniques, the performance of the property markets, significant
assumption adopted, key inputs and data used in the valuation; and

ERNABOMSBBEAMBFPERTELTENYEITEN T #
AEARKREMEREENEREABBNSIEL - THEFHK
BmE - ERENESEX  JERBRYENTSES REMBAYERL
ENTSEABERS °

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs used in the valuation
of investment properties, in particular the term yield, reversionary
yield, market rent of comparable properties and market observable
transactions for valuation with other similar properties based on
available market data and our knowledge of the property industry in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Pik Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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SERERREMEEHKER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 2018%F
1818 AHNBE
2019 2018%F
12A31H 123181
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
BaE ARET T AREFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
A Revenue 6
BEEEH Contracts with customers 1,522,963 1,239,003
HE Leases 73,218 16,545
FEUON Total revenue 1,596,181 1,255,548
SHE BN Cost of sales (1,203,155) (934,982)
ER Gross profit 393,026 320,566
E A Other income 8 10,558 7,741
Hb e & B8 Other gains and losses 8 (2,592) (7,445)
HERDHEA Selling and distribution expenses (97,018) (43,605)
TR Administrative expenses (87,936) (55,206)
REWMEN AR EBEEZE Change in fair value of investment properties
gy EFEERE and increase in fair value upon the transfer
KB ER from inventory of properties to investment
R EEE N properties 18 105,707 440,022
BAREBEFT AR Change in fair value of financial asset at
([BERARBEFAEBZAN fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
CREBEEANBEY 20 (315) S
ARREFITELD Change in fair value of derivative
KA EEEE components of convertible bonds 37 64,377 196,436
HihE A Other expenses 9 (7,958) (12,412)
EBiE—RE&aEhENEE Share of loss of a joint venture (740) (1,760)
BB A Finance costs 10 (99,671) (78,470)
B 5 B A Profit before taxation 277,438 765,867
FTiSfiA > Income tax expense 11 (153,553) (263,409)
FHRFE Profit for the year/period 12 123,885 502,458

5 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 2018%F
1818 4AF1B=E
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12A318
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
BitEE ARET T AREFTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Hit 2wk Other comprehensive income
HEHTe8ETHEE Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to
BafyEE : profit or loss:
Y% - BERRBERE Surplus on revaluation of transferring
WEYENEH B from property, plant and equipment to
investment properties - 308
HZR[fEER DR Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BafyEE : profit or loss:
HE G INETS EE A K Exchange differences arising on translating
bE 5 =58 foreign operations 39,718 65,962
& HRNHE MRS Other comprehensive income
for the year/period 39,718 66,270
F /AN EK SRR Total comprehensive income
for the year/period 163,603 568,728
T IBREMLE, BRFE Profit for the year/period attributable to
ZIN/NEIEZZEN Owners of the Company 136,884 512,068
PR AE 2 Non-controlling interests (12,999) (9,610)
123,885 502,458
NTEBERIEEZEY AT ©  Total comprehensive income attributable to:
KARIER A Owners of the Company 176,602 578,338
FEIE IR A Non-controlling interests (12,999) (9,610)
163,603 568,728
BREF Earnings per share
—EXRAR%ESD) — Basic (RMB cents) 15 1.21 460
—#HHEARED) - Diluted (RMB cents) 15 0.66 2.83
ERERZEREEFRAA
20195 3R 5 9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20195128318 At 31 December 2019

20195 R2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
At 31 December At 31 December
2019 2018
i ARBT T AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current Assets
M - BRE KRR Property, plant and equipment 16 145,340 148,849
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 17 24,544 -
B Investment properties 18 2,221,547 1,935,921
AN ERIE Prepaid lease payments - 22,870
R—HEEEREER Interest in a joint venture 19 - 740
BARBEFABZHNLEEE Finandial asset at FVTPL 20 8,283 -
EERARBEFAEMEEY Equity instrument designated at fair value
#H([RAABESTAHMEE  through other comprehensive income
Yegs D RBRAR T A (“FVTOCI") 21 500 500
IR & AR E iR e Deposits paid for acquisition of an associate 22 270,000 =
KRS Long-term deposits 24 82,739 18,440
FERIBE E Deferred tax assets 34 76,896 66,391
2,829,849 2,193,711
RBEE Current Assets
TR ERIE Prepaid lease payments - 680
BEPYE FEYE Properties under development/
properties for sale 23 9,180,644 7,823,611
JE IR 7R B HoAth FE UK SRR Trade and other receivables and
LA R FE A< 5RI8 prepayments 24 418,588 154,723
FEUR SEHE AR A% 3R SR IE Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders 25 374,056 -
SN Prepaid income tax 158,739 86,740
Z R HIRITER Restricted bank deposits 26 64,245 126,448
IRITHEB NS Bank balances and cash 26 879,478 1,290,224
11,075,750 9,482,426
REBEE Current Liabilities
B BRFA R HAth BN FIEPA K. Trade and other payables and accruals
st &R 27 729,751 1,083,207
BHEE Contract liabilities 28 5,307,480 3,793,314
FEAS FEFE AR AR BR SRR Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders 29 - 93,263
FERETSEL Income tax payable 268,590 254,033
AT AR E S Convertible bonds 31 23,400 =
EE R —FRE Borrowings — due within one year 30 3,049,352 1,017,024
HEAE Lease liabilities 32 1,122 =
9,379,695 6,240,841
REBEEEE Net Current Assets 1,696,055 3,241,585
EEHABERARBER Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 4,525,904 5,435,296

60 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

720194£12H318 At 31 December 2019

20195 20184
12A31H 12A318
At 31 December At 31 December
2019 2018
Bi5E ARET T ARETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
EXRHE Capital and Reserves

A& AN Share capital 33 96,031 95,916
(it Reserves 1,851,785 1,669,113
RNARER AEIE R Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,947,816 1,765,029
FEPERR Non-controlling interests 903,365 16,364
A% Total Equity 2,851,181 1,781,393

FREEE Non-current Liabilities
BE-—R—F&3H Borrowings — due after one year 30 1,365,096 3,309,395
Al (E S Convertible bonds 31 - 25,120
AR E S B STE D Derivative components of convertible bonds 31 - 67,969
HEaFE Lease liabilities 32 459 _
FEEFIB B F Deferred tax liabilities 34 309,168 251,419
1,674,723 3,653,903
4,525,904 5,435,296

FBEERIMANGENBREAAAAES
R2020F3A31 AR R FEE L - WHNTE
EREEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 194 were approved
and authorised for issue by the directors of the Company on 31 March
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Pan Haoran Mr. Li Jinrong

BIERTE lE b
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
EREBZREEERAT 61
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZE2019%12A31H LS E For the year ended 31 December 2019

BATER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company

(BitHR)/

RE  ROEE B4RE ERERE  RERE  0ER i iERE REWNE & FERER &3t
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-

Share Share  Capital Revaluation Translation Other  Capital Statutory  retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve contribution reserve profits Total interests Total

ARSI ARMTT ARETT ARBTRL ARETR ARMTR ARMTE ARETT ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO  AVBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOO  RMBODD  RMBOOO  AVBOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOND  RMBOID

(i) (B i) (Hiztiv)
(Note i) (Note il (Note iv)

R018E4A 1A (ERZ) At T April 2018 (audited) 88605 4682051 (518960) - - 61295 3 52967 (4420218 281561 - 281561
HANFE Profit for the period - - - - - - - - 512,068 512,008 (9610) 502458
BRE MR ERR Other comprehensive income

for the period - - - 308 65,962 - - - - 66,270 - 66,270
HnzEhaeE Total comprehensive income

for the period - - - 308 65,962 - - - 512,068 578338 (9610) 568728
HEETERE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 4033 (40336) - - -
REWBATHERER  Capital contribution from

JEA(H3E30) non-controlling interests of

the subsidiaries (note 36) - - - - - - - - - - 25974 25974
ERTRRER(H31)  Conversion of convertible bonds

(note 31) 6,301 808924 - - - - - - - 815,225 - 815,225
REARD(ER)  Poeementofnewsharesnote33) 1010 838% 5 5 5 5 - - -9 - 8990
018128318 At 31 December 2018 95916 5579870 (518,960) 308 65,962 61,295 335821 93303 (3948486) 1765029 16364 1781393
ERFE Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 136,884 136,884 (12,999) 123885
EnAtzEks Other comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 39718 - - - - 39718 - 39718
EREENESEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 39718 - - - 136,884 176,602 (12,999 163,003
SHEAT R Appropriation to statutory reserve = = = = = = = oL (04 = = =
ARMEB(FEE)  Share premium reduction (Note ) - (550000 - - - - 500000 - 5000000 - - -
ERTRRER(HE31)  Conversion of convertible bonds

(note 31) 115 6,070 - - - - - - - 6,185 - 6,185
RENBARHERES  Capital contribution from

i) non-controling interests of

the subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 900,000 900,000

019%128318 At 31 December 2019 96,031 85,940 (518.960) 308 105,680 61,29 835821 135721 1145974 1947816 903365 2851181

62 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BEERERBERE  ERARBRRIER AR
RIMBR D s BRI AR I RTS8 - IBREERIE
REBAREHEEER o )R2019F58 + KARKE
HEAE BB A% 17 748 B A R #55,000,000,000 7T LA 85 2 51
E518 & AR ¥500,000,0007C AR EE A A F] °

ARFEEERWBER(ERLARR A A2017
F10H27 B RVE ) BT AR B B BT KD 5 (E
HfEAERAA (RHEET ) MEAR 2 MR ZHE -

Hith B BEREAR A2 ENBAREBERAR
B T8 8 B B AR A el (2 B 5 A (T AT S AR AR
BRDZEHNAAEETRBERAR  BRER
RE P ATRAE B R MY B A R R T & A 1 R
BEZRMEHE -

RIBRPEARLME ([HE ) RZHFEHNEA
AIMASERAA  ZEMERRASKRBERNE
E10%EEEEAERE  EERREZIEMER
M50% 4 1E - BREEZRHEARRERTE ADIK
BB ZAIEL - AEREA A NBRBEFENE
1B WARBEEEBRERRZSHE R RN
SNEA o

Notes:

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

According to the related laws of the Bermuda, the share premium of the
Company can be used to offset accumulated losses, expand the scale of
production and business and transfer to capital upon approval from the
shareholders of the Company. In May 2019, the shareholders of the Company
approved to reduce the share premium of RMB5,000,000,000 to offset the
accumulated losses and RMB500,000,000 applied to capital contribution of the
Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the issued share capital
and share premium of the Company and the share capital of Vivalink Limited
(the accounting acquirer) immediately before the Acquisition (as defined the
Company's circular dated 27 October 2017).

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by
Vivalink Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the carrying
amount of registered capital of certain subsidiaries of Vivalink Limited, in respect
of the transfer of equity interests of those subsidiaries to Vivalink Limited from
the companies controlled by Mr. Pan Weiming (the “Former Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), those subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserve until the reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before
distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up for previous years' losses, expand the existing operation or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 2018%F
1818 AHNBE
20194 2018%F
12A31H 123181
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
BaE ARET T AR#ET T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
REED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
F HRF)H Profit for the year/period 123,885 502,458
T BIEAFHEE - Adjustments for:
FTSfi 2 Income tax expense 153,553 263,409
M - WE REETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 11,365 5,773
FREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,447 =
BhE A Finance costs 99,671 78,470
REUA Interest income (4,172) (4,743)
P& 5 518 Exchange loss 2,592 7,445
FEh—E& &b RER Share of loss of a joint venture 740 1,760
WEMEN AR EEE Change in fair value of investment
properties 49,889 (100)
HYFFEERE Increase in fair value upon the transfer
LB Y ER R from inventory of properties to
RN EEEM investment properties (155,596) (439,922)
BARBEFABRRN Change in fair value of financial asset at
CREEAABEE FVTPL 315 ~
AR EHHTEZ D HY Change in fair value of derivative
AR BEZS components of convertible bonds (64,377) (196,436)
FFEYENRERE Impairment loss on properties for sales 10,939 =
RETEEESEBATH Operating cash flows before movements in
KEFEME working capital 230,251 218,114
BREBYE FFEMEEM Increase in properties under development/
properties for sale (793,287) (524,546)
LAt B R e LA W IE (Increase) decrease in trade and other
AR FB 2RE (32 00) 53> receivables, and prepayments (20,790) 23,043
JEAST BR 3 N EL A i A5 RIE (Decrease) increase in trade and other
AN et B OR8N payables and accruals (251,343) 129,266
S4B &N Increase in contract liabilities 1,413,667 2,185,548
EEASRE Cash generated from operations 578,498 2,031,425
B X ARS8 Income tax paid (164,300) (117,631)
RETHMEBRTFH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 414,198 1,913,794
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 20184F
1A1BZ& AH1BEE
20194 20184F
12A31H 12H31H
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
BaE ARBT R AREET T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEME  WEMERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,630) (5,625)
BEERARBEFABRN Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL
TREE (8,275) —
WHEHTBARMIRES R EE  Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 36 (140,373) (1,922,030)
EEIWBER S AT NIESE  Deposits paid for potential acquisitions of
an associate (270,000) -
m—fEaEhETE Capital contribution to a joint venture - (2,500)
SR B ATRIERRE  Settlement of consideration receivable from
disposal of subsidiaries - 4,723
FRANE G =N |5 Settlement of consideration payable for
ERRE acquisition of subsidiaries (204,735) (117,497)
F—RE =R Advance to a third party 24 (174,742) -
AIFEIE AR AR R EA TR Advance to non-controlling shareholders (374,056) =
EINZ IR BRI TR Additions of restricted bank deposits (48,675) (71,717)
IRV IR R TR Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 110,878 22,444
Y HRES Payments of guarantee deposits (66,621) (23,713)
EUHLE Interest received 4,172 4743
BETEHARESEEE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,178,057) (2,111,172)

BREBZREEGRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE20199F12A31HLESFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 20184
1B1HZ AR1HZE
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
1.1.2019 to 142018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A& EE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EAFE Interest paid (529,343) (304,000)
ENEE Additions of borrowings 3,235,734 2,745,668
BREE Repayments of borrowings (3,170,003) (1,361,702)
EBEREasE Repayments of leases liabilities (860) -
AIFEIE AR AR R B 3N Repayments to non-controlling shareholders (93,263) (172,273)
BTG TS RIRFRE Net proceeds from issue of new share - 89,905
RENEB AT IEIRARHEZR)EE  Capital contributions from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries 900,000 -
RMEETEBESFEE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 342,265 997,598
RERBESEEER NET(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
(R 1EhnEEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (421,594) 800,220
RE/HBINEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
REeEEEE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR/PERIOD 1,290,224 483,328
IMNEERSBNHE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 10,848 6,676
RE/HRNRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
HESZMEEE AT THE END OF THE YEAR/PERIOD,
EIRITHEB MRS representing bank balances and cash 879,478 1,290,224

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—RER
BREEEREEERAB([ARF] -
HERHEMBARSE [ AKE]) KRB HEE
HMKZABRAR - HIRMHDREBES
REGAARAT([BERFT]) EMRLETT o A
N Al it % = Bt sk & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° &
BEEWM R AEHERIGRERIRNE
24182407 F - AR AN EEZEBR/IKREE
R mMEMBARIRGECEZTEREY
EBRREMFEREFE -

RATMEERGRRIER AR ARERE
ERAR([BE])  ZAAREBER
FRES([RBERRES DK IMNERA
7 AAEPEEREHRE - K2019F9A
9 - ARABEEEFERLAEMNE - HIARE
TRARZEHENEBER()BEDIE ETR
P EEBILENT FEEARTE ¢+ K
% (R BR 5L & B B 45 A 191,080,000 % 3 3
B FimiE - EER  BEAREERAERR
AREERRE  SRBREREFELAD
A2 HEETTIRN £956.45% ©

HAEMBHREUNARB(TARE D (ETR
RRREWEEE) 27 -

AN AR AT R 2018F 108308 FIEER A&
sl - AR RASBENTRFELER
H3A31HEMA12H318 » LAFEARQF]
R REENEEZERBREMN
FHRFEAERA N - Bt - AFERNER
B EHRIEZE2019F1 A1 B#EE20194F
12A318E12@ R 88 - Sfe B R EAM
FHWNEE  SKEAEZEDE  HKEERD
mE RPN B LB 58 A & B B KRR
Z2018F4 1 H#EZE2018F12A31H 1FfE
REIME - e r AN FERMRESREL
g o

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

GENERAL

Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as a limited liability company and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business is Unit 2407, 24/F., World-
wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries and joint venture are principally
engaged in property development and property investment
business.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
is Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”), a company established
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") with limited liability and was
previously 100% owned by Mr. Pan Weiming. On 9 September
2019, the Company has been notified by Mr. Pan Weiming that he
transferred (i) all the issued shares in Tongda to Mr. Pan Haoran,
the son of Mr. Pan Weiming; and (ii) the 1,080,000 ordinary shares
of par value HK$0.01 each in the Company directly held by Mr.
Pan Weiming to Tongda, by way of a gift with no monetary
consideration as part of a family succession plan. After the transfer,
Mr. Pan Haoran became the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, indirectly holding approximately 56.45% of all the shares
in issue of the Company through Tongda.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

As set out in the announcement of the Company issued on 30
October 2018, the financial year end date of the Company and
the Group was changed from 31 March to 31 December to align
the financial year end date of the Company’s principal operating
subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements for the current year cover
a twelve months period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. The corresponding comparative amounts shown for the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes cover a nine months
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 and therefore may
not be comparable with amounts shown for the current year.

BRERZEREESRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20199F12A31HLESFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group in light of the fact that the Group will have RMB3,049
million bank and other borrowings which will be due within 12
months according to the repayment schedule of the relevant loan
agreements.

In March 2020, the Group has extended the loan facilities of HK$380
million (equivalent to RMB348 million) with extended repayment
periods of 12 months. The Group is currently negotiating with
a trust company for renewal and extension of loans facilities of
RMB1,200 million, which will be due in May 2020, for extended
repayment periods of 24 months. The approval procedures for the
loan extension is yet to complete up to the date of the approval
of the consolidated financial statements. Based on the recent
discussion with the trust company and the available information
on hand, the Directors believed that the loans extension will be
approved as the loans are secured by inventory of properties
with the fair value higher than the carrying amount of the loans.
The Directors are of the opinion that taking into account of the
internally generated funds of the Group and the likelihood of
the extension of existing loan facilities, the Group has sufficient
working capital for its present requirements for the next twelve
months from 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16")

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS
17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

iii.  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in the PRC and in Hong Kong; and

iv.  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 5.3% to 10%.

20194
1R18
At 1 January 2019
ARETTT
RMB'000
2018512 431 HIRFER) Operating lease commitments disclosed
AT R as at 31 December 2018 1,780
HEaERARLE Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental
fEE KB borrowing rates 1,681
FERE BB BHME LD F 165518  Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised upon
BRELHEHEERERE - application of HKFRS 16:
R2019F 1 A1EMEERRE Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 1,681
ST Analysed as:
Mk Current 1,503
IERED Non-current 178
ERERZEREEFRAA
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January
2019 comprises the following:

EREEE
Right-of-use
assets
B aE ARETTT
NOTE RMB'000
JERB BT BHMELERFE165%7%  Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases
HRECEHNERBERAEEE recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 1,681
BUTEEEHR S Reclassification from
—TEHEERNR — Prepaid lease payments @) 23,550
25,231
ZHR By class:
HELHRIESF Leasehold land and buildings 25,231
BisE Note:

@ HREBEHNEREAETHHBEMNFIEA
R ¥23,550,0007C7A20185F 12 A31H %
EABNEENRK REREBHB
WwEERFE165% BRAE T HH
AR SRR R IERI B A
R#23,550,000tE EFHEEFERE
BE -

H2019F1 A1H#E  ENBEAZEER
ME FEMENHETHRIERE
B 765 3 45 2 BI| 551657 LA B AN R0 (£ fa] 2
FTTE RAEMREEEE -

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(a) Upfront payments for leasehold land in the PRC, amounting
to RMB23,550,000 for own use were classified as prepaid lease
payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the current and non-current portion of prepaid lease payments,
in relation to the leasehold land for own use, amounting to
RMB23,550,000, were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which were
classified as properties under development/properties
for sale are measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from
the date of initial application and comparative information
has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered
into but commence after the date of initial application
relating to the same underlying assets under existing
lease contracts are accounted as if the existing leases are
modified as at 1 January 2019. The application has had no
impact on the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. However, effective 1 January
2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line basis
over the extended lease term.

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in the contract to each lease and non-
lease components. The change in allocation basis has had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the current year.
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FE ¥ 5] &8 B % Z 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

BUKREER |) R EBEFTAR TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

(&) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

RAFERFERNHFTE BT NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

REER R ARSI %) MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

31 EARAUNEHREEAE16KEHE ] 3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16"”) (Continued)

((EBMBHREENFE 1658 ) (&)

TERMHTA ()

RIERT B SRS ERF 1650
(TEAEEFAN) - BEEAREER2019
B AR R R E AR
Bk HEHA

F12A31HH
FEMESERE
2ERERBE S REXRELEMH

Ko

BER2019F1 H1HK
NHERHN SR EL THIFHE - &8

BFAR R

As a lessor (Continued)

and cash flows for the current year.

No adjustments have been made, in the application
of HKFRS 16 as a lessor, on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and
its consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

BIERZEE) position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
R20194F
1R1BBI%
20184 HEW
12A31H HEAER
FRIZ 5 E165%
R AREE T HEREE
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
ARETTT ARBTT AR®ETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current Assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets = 25,231 25,231
EAEENR Prepaid lease payments 22,870 (22,870) -
REBEE Current Assets
EABEENR Prepaid lease payments 680 (680) -
REBEE Current Liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities - 1,503 1,503
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities = 178 178

st BBERE S A2 MEE2019F12 7

NHIEFENKEEBMBRERE
s @ BEREEXEER2019F1 A1

2)

B FNHERRRFHEEEESE

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as
disclosed above.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

BREKZEREEERAF
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material
by including additional guidance and explanations in making
materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too broad
when deciding what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will
be mandatorily effective for the Group's annual period beginning
on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

states that the primary measure of financial performance
is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used and only for
income or expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of the
framework. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer to the
previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining the accounting
policies especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not
otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment"("HKFRS 2"), leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
(since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets"("HKAS 36”).

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

has the power over the investee;

is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes" and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or
at fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
("HKFRS 9”) would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously held
equity interest.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT
CONSTITUTING A BUSINESS

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair value, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group'’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group's policy for the goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
joint venture is described below.



AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESTHER®)
Pap
|

REELENRE
RRELEE-RAERH  HLHHEEHR
RGOS REHAERFNEE
FERGEN - HEEHREZREOH
EHRBLBERHAEES - KREZEHIE
HEERBEHERARNZFENENET
EH —BREBRRERFE

BELENEXELEERARNERESR
EEABR AR B ERE - R ANKEZ
FHRURZEMURBFRHENSTE 4
EREANBRETOHBRERA—TE
ATHRER - REEDE - REELEN
BREVSERAR G S MR RER -
TREEAERANRERAEZEEDLEDN
BEkHEMEPEBEMELRE - KBS
REMEZEKDI  GECEBSEREM
EEWEAINEEFEED TS AR
BRIEREFEHEUAKERT B AAEE
mHIREE  EAEEEEEELENE
BEOASERZALCENER(BRE
ELRBARENZAELEREFE—
Mo EMRBER) R - AEBERK LR
HAEE—FEE - ERAKBEEELDE
RAEEERME  RCRRZEELESN
FERERAT - HEE—PHEREE

REEHRKR—HEELEER HE
LSRN ERBBIAAR - RIE—
FAEELENRER  RERABBAE
B G EHRABMBEERABAR
FEMEAED DR REE - Wit AR
BHREE - MAKBEATER BB EER
BERBEFAHRNAAFESRREK
A RlgR B R A /0 B B i AR 1R 2R A

X7
e

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group'’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint venture.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that
are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For sale of properties, revenue is recognised when control of
completed property is transferred to the customer, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commission) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a leasee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to component of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles and equipment that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a leasee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property and
inventory are presented within “investment properties” and
“"properties under development”/"properties for sale” respectively.

Leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is presented as
property, plant and equipment of the Group when the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a leasee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a leasee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integrated part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
a lease includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted for as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is under
finance lease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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B ZE2019F12A318LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group's interests in joint
ventures. For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group i.e. RMB,
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation), or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowing. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year/
period. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes" requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administration
purposes, are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon
application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments” (before
application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments under HKAS17) at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

BRERZEREESRAR
20195 3R]

97



iR MRS R MY AT
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20199F12A31HLESFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.

98

FESHBE®)

REWE
BREMERRSKRBREES R HEREEN
RBENYE -

BRENEVTZRA(BREETAERKX
R)FHE - RYIFHERIK - WEMETIRR
REEFE - FHEBANREMENSER
MR EHEWA o

BA YN D 1 B A 2
BRI E R R AR -

BEMENHERFRERENFEKABT
BERAREHEZEERRTISELEM
RIREEN B4 1L TR o RIEHERYE
PrEAMER K BREZEENLE
PSR F B M REENZ BT E) RK L
R EN PR AR

BRPWEFEWE

RBERRTIKEREENERTOVERGE
MERDERRDEE - REE LY
RERBEV B RELENF165RRIZIRE
FR#EENSTHREAANRAGESN -
REBR BRTWE/FEWEAKR
KA BB FEMENREE AR - KAR
FEBSBELEETE  BRIKMEENE
B AR (WER) BN EERERAE -
AERFEEDEREAEERTKEEDN
fEEt A RAEH SHE M BB -

BRPHFEVENTRREBEFEDE -
EREMENRERE-REBKBEDH

EEEYERTEHARENE - WER
BEEHNAABERESAREEZHE
M EERBRER -

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
FOR SALE

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS 16,
properties for/under development/properties for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to properties
for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the inception
of an operating lease to another party. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income and interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis for financial assets and financial liabilities.



AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESHBEX®)

SRIT A (#)

SREE

SHEEMS PR E

A TR S Y& B BB IR B A A

5

AR EHRERER B RN EBKR
AABENEREE &

TREENANRFTREREER B
EENRERE  BEREAS N
RBEREHOF SR -

HATHRENSREERKEALBE
A2 ERRE -

MHERERENRSRER B IRH
EBRANBENEREE &

BNEFAENEEAHEENRS
mE  EERUAERRABELRS
BV B EI K -

FrEEMEREELRRAR BEN AR
@At E - BEEBXEREEMBHREER
FoW VI HALHMEEL R - MZRE
BREVFFHIEEER » MIFERNKBESTER
BRI [FHA 0 PTER R
EBAMTRIBNAARE  AEEAT
A BHMEEN AR EKE 25 EET
AEMERAAEEES -

HEBTIIER  SMEESFIEEE :
WESHMEENTERNANERE
HERZE 3

TREENVTEREBNASES
HEENDHAER T AMESHN—
7 WABSRAEREHRENEN
%

TREE/FEENITETARATE
MIERE R TH -

B5h + ARETTAMEIS T — BB
W30 AR SRR A £ R A A 2 E G
SEMSRAENRA L BEH AR
£ - JIRABMEETHRAKEAL®
SRR -

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

0]

(i)

(iif)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC]

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred
to retain profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income line item in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.



AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESHBEX®)

EMITEE)

SREEE)

THEERNEE
AEERERBT B IERE LN FREZIR
EBEREHAEERLX([BHEERLEAY
SREE(BERUERR R E M ERFIE
JEWHERTE - REFEERBERE « %
FRHISRITIER - BITHEBREIIEEREL)
EITRER S - BHEEBEANSERS
MEBHER  URMBVIREREBEE
[R\B Y B (L o

FEMBHREERAEREBETRNEL
FEMAMABAENBEOEHELNTE
HEERX - Bk REAAEHREERX
(T2EAEMEERX D EEHNKRSEA
HRR12EANATREELENEDSTHERN
FEMBHEERLLS - FEDREXR
SENELEERRAERET  ULREE
BABENRER  —REBERRARH T
& B HEVE AT I A R DA K SR GO B
FERIVEHFEEE

7N 5% B B B PR WBR R % e W A B FRIE B
REEREYREERR - ZFEENEY
EEBKETEGIFGE -

HRBEMT AR  NREBEAENERE
wERREARBEERL  KIFaNS
HRAREERRBEZEN  AEEERF
BHEHEEERX RORERFERRE
HEEBRANTEDER B VI FHERIAR
BA RO AR SR R BN o

iy (EERREZEEIN

RFEENTHEREEERRESHE
EENE  AEEHRREB RS
TEAZFEMELYRREYZERA
BeMTAEFENBEORKRETL
8o TR R AEEEEE
AEARTENTENESEER &
BHE AN TNBERK A i A
1SHYFE 2 4880 M ATIE A K} o

B ZE2019F12A318LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, lease receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
financial guarantee contracts) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and lease
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since recognition of
financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1
January 2019).

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that
are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, borrowings and debt
component of convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their
fair values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
components are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative components are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included
in the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern when preparing the consolidated
financial statements. In assessing whether the going concern
assumption is appropriate, management takes into account all
available information about the future, which is at least, but is not
limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group is dependent upon future projections of the Group's
cash inflows from the operations and the ability of the Group
to obtain continued bank and other financing to finance its
continuing operations. Management believes the Group is able
to continue as a going concern after taking into account future
projections of the Group's cash inflows from operations and the
ability of the Group to obtain continued bank and other financing
to finance its continuing operation. Accordingly, management has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAlNTY(Com/nued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Development costs directly attributable to property
development activities

The Group allocates portions of land and development costs to
properties held and under development for sale. As certain of
the Group'’s property development projects are developed and
completed by phases, the budgeted development costs of the
whole project are dependent on the estimate on the outcome of
total development. Based on the experience and the nature of the
development undertaken, the management makes estimates and
assumptions, concerning the future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Given the uncertainties
involved in the property development activities, the related actual
results may be higher or lower than the amount estimated at
the end of the reporting period. Any change in estimates and
assumptions would affect the Group’s operating performance in
future years.

Determination of net realisable value of inventory of
properties

The assessment of the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale involves, inter-alia, considerable analysis of
current market price of properties of a comparable standard and
location and construction costs to be incurred to complete the
development based on existing asset structure and construction
material price lists. If the actual net realisable value of the
underlying properties under development for sale are more or less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost, reversal of
or provision for impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of properties under development for sale at 31 December 2019 is
RMB7,379,305,000 (31 December 2018: RMB6,305,019,000).

In addition, management estimates the allowance for inventory
of completed properties held for sale with reference to the
existing market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated net realisable value of the properties, i.e. the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A specific allowance
for completed properties held for sale is made if the estimated net
realisable value of the properties is lower than its carrying amount.
If the actual net realisable value of the completed properties held
for sale are less than expected as a result of change in market
condition, provision for impairment losses may result. The carrying
amount of the completed properties held for sale at 31 December
2019 is RMB1,801,339,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,518,592,000).
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FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Directors assigned the Group's
financial controller to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The Group's
financial controller works closely with the independent qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs to the model. The Group's financial controller
reports the findings to the Directors to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of investment properties.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include key inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value.
Further details about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value are set out
in note 18.

Investment properties of RMB2,221,547,000 at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: RMB1,935,921,000) is stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent qualified external
valuers. In determining the fair value, the independent qualified
external valuers have based on valuation methods which involve
certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors have exercised their judgments on the
key inputs, i.e. term yield, market yield, market rent and market
comparable transactions, and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group's investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss would be recognised in
profit or loss.



AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXRGHHABR AT FABREE
NEERR &)

(CREOEEEPSES R - L YE )
EETRRESTEBINA LEE

KRB PTEAT AT R IR (B 5 0 & A1 )& BB T %
BB MEBEAREETAGEAREE
REERTETE - A RERESFTE G
BEmEALEE B REREZ (AR E)
B BEEAEETRIEE/HE - 1L
FEERLRATRARIALBERER - WiE
JFTEF (A ET AT R E ST ER DB A R
BEABZEABEEEEANEZHGHA
FEEY AT ERR AR T ZEAAKX
TR EBRMEE - R20185F12H8318 » 7]
BMBREBHFTEBINAABERARK
67,969,0007T °

Tt BEB ([ LB ES )
AEBERHATE L EBED - A - &
BE MM ARBT DAE B E AR IES
WkEEHTAGBEMRTE - MAEE K
A THERFEMW T HEHEARTEE
HAEMIREROFEREM T - Bt
BELHIRESERERBMESHRER
BEEHEXMA - AREEREEENR
EfFT R L MIRER - RERBEERNK
SERRVLIRNEEE  MEFERH
FEEMTRGHEAETZSHANEA
B PTG TRF X R ABRA PR S T -

IEFER I

i) JRE =R A58 761 B AT £ 0 /5 18 K AT 30 B
=% AR A RSB IERE &A1
HREREZHERRARCHEEE - BT #
RELEHRBEESHEE  BEEARER
BE IR R R E SR A B A B R B ]
R IEET B R B E H EAREET ° 12019
F12A318  AEERGEETBARALERN
HRELERIEE E N A K %76896,0007T
(20185128318 : AR¥66,391,0007T) °
sl B R 2 AR O AR PR ADEE A TE AR - RIIRIE
TRl & E Rl AL H IR B B A B P RERR o

B ZE2019F12A318LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are not traded in
an active market and the respective fair value is determined
by valuation techniques to estimate the fair value. The use of
methodologies, models and assumptions in pricing and valuing
convertible bonds i.e. expected volatility requires varying degrees
of judgement by management, which may result in different fair
values and results. The changes of the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing model for the estimation of the fair value of
derivative components of convertible bonds detailed in note 31
might cause a material adjustment to their carrying amounts within
the next twelve months. The fair value of the derivate components
of convertible bonds as at 31 December 2018 was RMB67,969,000.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain
projects of the Group have not finalised their land appreciation
tax calculations and payments with the local tax authorities in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant estimate is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related income tax
provisions. The Group recognised the LAT based on management'’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the income tax expense and the related income tax
provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets of
approximately RMB76,896,000 (31 December 2018: RMB66,391,000)
have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. In case where the actual future profits generated
are less than expected, reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss.

BRERZEREESRAR
20195 3R]
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6. WA 6. REVENUE
) BEFEHNWADF () DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
20195 20184
1B1HZ AH1HZE
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
1.1.2019 to 142018 to
31.12.2019 31122018
ARMT T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
VIR 5 EB Property development segment
EmER Types of goods
SHED B T W= Sales of completed properties 1,522,963 1,239,003
1 I8 T 45 Geographical market
es PRC 1,522,963 1,239,003
ON A Timing of revenue recognition
RF 2L A point in time 1,522,963 1,239,003
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

REVENUE (Continued)
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

(1

20191818 £2019%F12831H

1.1.2019t0 31.12.2019

E 3 MERE i meMst

Property Property Consolidated

development  investment  Elimination total

ARETRT AR¥TR AR®BTR AR¥®TxR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HEERTIWE Sales of completed properties 1,522,963 - - 1,522,963
EEEHRA Revenue from contracts

with customers 1,522,963 - - 1,522,963

HE Leases - 73,218 - 73,218

Nt ] Total revenue 1,522,963 73,218 - 1,596,181

AT REEFEKHKARD BERPT

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

WESELR contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information:
201854 1B E2018512H31H
14.20181t031.12.2018
MEER MERE 35 IRA1EE
Property Property Consolidated
development investment Elimination total
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEDKRTYE Sales of completed properties 1,239,003 - - 1,239,003
EEEHBA Revenue from contracts with
customers 1,239,003 - - 1,239,003
neE Leases - 16,545 = 16,545
PNt Total revenue 1,239,003 16,545 = 1,255,548
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6.

REVENUE (continued)

(1

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are based on customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Based on the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group
concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties
to customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property
is transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The Group receives 30%-100% of the contract value from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement.
For the customers who use mortgage loans provided by the
banks, the remaining portion of the total contract value will
be paid to the Group from the banks once the customers
meet the requirements of the banks. Such advance payment
schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period for the full
amount of the contract price while construction work of
properties is still ongoing.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes
contain significant financing component and accordingly
the amount of consideration is adjusted for the effects
of the time value of money taking into consideration the
credit characteristics of the Group. As this accrual increases
the amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is transferred to the
customer. The Group has applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15 and has not considered the financing component
of contracts which are expected to be completed within one
year from the date of payment made by customers.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

6. REVENUE (Continued)

(1) TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TO THE
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
FOR CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, and the expected timing
of recognising revenue related to sales of properties are as

follows:
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 3,279,141 1,233,114
HBiE—F More than one year 2,326,878 2,960,000
5,606,019 4,193,114
(v) HE (IV) LEASES
20194 20184
1A1BE 4H1BZE
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H8
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
AR¥T R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
PLERE - For operating leases:

B E S KFBIN S BE AR ) Lease payments that are fixed or depend on

HENFK an index or a rate 73,218 16,545
ESEBEREEERAD
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Property development Developing and selling of commercial
and residential properties in the PRC
and Hong Kong

Property investment Leasing of investment properties in
the PRC and Hong Kong

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

IERE MERE o EpHAE
Property Property Segment
development  investment total
AR¥TR AR®BTR AR®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEUA(GPR) Segment revenue (external) 1,522,963 73,218 1,596,181
D EBAI Segment profit 338,071 6,105 344,176
BARBEFABZNS R Change in fair value of financial asset
BEAREEZS at FVTPL (315)
ABRESITEL DO AR Change in fair value of derivative
EEZ components of convertible bonds 64,377
Eh—EAEtEER Share of loss of a joint venture (740)
BEMA Finance costs (99,671)
RITHS WA Bank interest income 4,172
BEE 55 ez Exchange gain (2,592)
AAERAY Unallocated expenses (31,969)
BR A% Bl A Profit before taxation 277,438
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T EER ()
DEMARELSE (&)
£Z20185128318 1918 B

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
For the nine months ended 31 December 2018

MEER MEHRE o Eb AT

Property Property Segment

development investment total

ARBETIT ARBTT ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

D EUA (GPR) Segment revenue (external) 1,239,003 16,545 1,255,548

7 &R FIE Segment profit 677,927 11,395 689,322
AHRRESFITEBIH AR Change in fair value of derivative components

EBEZ of convertible bonds 196,436

Eh—EAELEER Share of loss of a joint venture (1,760)

AR Finance costs (78470)

SRITHBUA Bank interest income 4743

b i B 18 Exchange loss (7,445)

KOBCRS Unallocated expenses (36,959)

PR A% R A E Profit before taxation 765,867

REDHMERRART4MAREEE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

STRERARR » 2 REAEE AR D P RITI
A EEZME BRAOABEAABED
TREEAABEED ABRERESFITE
MOMAREBEES  EBE—HAZLE
BiE - ROTABRA - EXEENREERK
ZRHE D BB RERAE o e I E 0 BLE IR
FHERBRAEBLLARARERBNE ©

the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned incurred by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors” emoluments,
change in fair value of financial asset at FVTPL, change in fair value
of derivative components of convertible bonds, share of loss of
a joint venture, bank interest income, exchange loss and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

reportable segment:

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

PMEE Segment assets
2019 12H31H At 31 December 2019
E 3 MERE o Ep Gt
Property Property Segment
development  investment total
AR®ETRT AR¥TR AR%TrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment assets 9,629,977 2,223,124 11,853,101
RAEC Unallocated 2,052,498
RAEEREAE Consolidated total assets 13,905,599
2018 12A31H At 31 December 2018
MEER MERE DEbiEEt
Property Property Segment
development investment total
ARETT ARBTT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DEEE Segment assets 7,950,756 1,940,166 9,890,922
AL Unallocated 1785215
REBERE Consolidated total assets 11,676,137
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DEER (&) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
TEPEEHEBE %) SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
PWEE Segment liabilities
F2019%F12H31H At 31 December 2019
L35 MHERE P
Property Property Segment
development  investment total
ARETRE AR®BTR AR¥ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
nNEaE Segment liabilities 5,910,726 57,245 5,967,971
KAES Unallocated 5,086,447
rEaEes Consolidated total liabilities 11,054,418
H2018F12H31H At 31 December 2018
MEER MERE DEbiEEt
Property Property Segment
development investment total
ARETT AR®TT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEEE Segment liabilities 4,811,706 35,005 4,846,711
AAd Unallocated 5,048,033
REBERE Consolidated total liabilities 9,894,744
MERSHRIBERDBEDEERME : For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

FMTBEEEDEELZEDE  ETEHE . all assets are allocated to operating segments other than,
R—EELP¥ENEZR  BEALEBE interest in a joint venture, financial asset at FVTPL, equity
SFTABZHNEREE  BAREBER instrument at FVTOCI, long-term deposits, deposit paid
AHMEEKREORATE - REET for acquisition of an associate, amounts due from non-
& WE—EBEATNEMEZES - controlling shareholders, bank balances and cash, deferred
FEUS T AR AR SR FRIE ~ SRITERR IR tax assets, right-of-use assets, restricted bank deposits and
L REBREEE  FHRREE T prepaid income tax and unallocated corporate assets of
R HIRITFE R RFBNAAEHARKRD headquarter.

feia AR EE o

FTEBEIEEEEDE  ETEHE . all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
FETIEFERG A R R IE - R ATIE R amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, income tax
BE  RRkES(BFEEELITE payable, borrowings, convertible bonds including debt and
;o) HMEAE -  BEEHEEEU derivative components, lease liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
RARSEBEAFEE - and unallocated corporate liabilities of headquarter.

BERERRE £l AT
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7. ZEER ) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
H o ZRE# OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
BZ2019F12831HILLFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
IES NERE A EAT AW st
Property Property Segment
development  investment total  Unallocated Total

ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

HADEEZEHIAZLE  Amounts included in the measure of

EFTERHE | segment profit or loss or segment assets:
IETRENEEEIN(MIzE) Additions to non-current assets (note) 4,159 - - 2,231 6,390
EBIEEHIBARK  Additions of non-current assets through
FEMBEELEM acquisition of subsidiaries 3 - - - 3
4,162 - - 2,231 6,393
¥ - BE RaRMEA K  Depreciation of property, plant and
FRELENE equipment and right-of-use assets 10,336 - - 2,476 12,812
BZ2018F12A31H1L9@A For the nine months ended 31 December 2018
MEER MERE A EpEE AOE @5t
Property Property Segment
development investment total Unallocated Total
ARETT ARE®ETT ARETT ARETT AR%TL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SFADEEZEDEE  Amounts included in the measure of
EFTEMFUE : segment profit or loss or segment assets:
SEREAEEM(MEE) Additions to non-current assets (note) 5,625 = 5,625 2,500 8,125
FBWEEMBARIEIE  Additions of non-current assets through
BN EEE N acquisition of subsidiaries 7012 - 7012 - 7012
12,637 - 12,637 2,500 15,137
W¥ - BB RREITE  Deprediation of property, plant, and
equipment 5522 = 5522 251 5773
MizE - SERBEETRIECRTAKELEHIBEE - Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.
7R &= B 3% T R 5B Bl 215 H U A5 AT SR B The analysis of the Group's revenue by different types is set out in
56 ° note 6.

] 2 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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DEER (#)

HEE R
AEBEBRIATBERMEES - SEA
£ H KA INRES M A BRIZ E B E
E2F - BEAEEEARDEENER
R EFEMEA RS -

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group's operations are located in the mainland China and
Hong Kong. Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on location of the operations.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

RENAEF A ERBEE
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
20194 20184
1A1BZ 4H1BZE
2019 2018%F 20195 20185
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H318
1.1.2019to 142018 to

31122019 31122018 31.12.2019  31.122018
ARBTT ARETT AR®Tr ARETE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

B R Mainland China 1,586,872 1240880 1,264,795 1,029,961
B Hong Kong 9,309 14668 1,102,092 1,077,679
1,596,181 1255548 2,366,887 2,107,640

FRBEETEBRZFESHTA K-
FMa2tXnEs  BEEHBEE  £/F
REE  RUFTMEE-—HBZE2RK
BEffRIE -

RAEE  BETFEHEAEEBKRAR
10% °

Non-current assets excluded those relating to financial
instruments, interest in a joint venture, deferred tax assets, right-of-
use assets, long-term deposits and deposits paid for acquisition of
an associate.

There was no customer who accounted for over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the current year.
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8. HfA - WEKREE

8. OTHERINCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

20194 20184F
1A1BZ& AHNBE
2019 20184F
12A31H 123181
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E AN - Other income:
REHEREHEDRIME Rental income from temporary leases of
Frisf A completed properties held for sales 5,746 1,635
RITIFRF B WA Interest income on bank deposits 4,172 4,743
HAh, Others 640 1,363
10,558 7,741
E e & E1E Other gains and losses
PE 5 &8 - 5 Exchange loss, net (2,592) (7,445)
9. HtEH 9. OTHER EXPENSES
20194 2018%F
1A1BZE 4H18&
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H318
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
AR®T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HUBE B & ARHE Compensation for cancellation of sales and
purchase contracts - 5,402
B Donation 6,207 4830
At Others 1,751 2,180
7,958 12,412
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Rl & B A 10. FINANCE COSTS
20194 20184
1A1BZ 4AH1HZE
20195 20184
12A31H 12A318
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AN & IBAYH S Interests on
—IRITEENEMER — bank borrowings and other loans 541,777 309,451
— AR &S - convertible bonds 2,841 5,620
HEBERE Interest on lease liabilities 161 -
ABHBERNE Interest on contract liabilities 6,624 20,658
551,403 335,729
o AEERRPYERFTERR Less: amount capitalised in properties under
FNIE development for sale (451,732) (257,259)
99,671 78,470
Fri& iRl X 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
20194 20184
118 & AR1HZE
20195 20184
12A31H 12H318
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEATR IR - Current tax:
R ¥EER([1¥FEHRE])  PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) 57,022 28,437
4 iR {E R LAT 49,287 60,158
106,309 88,595
EFERIA (M 5E34) Deferred tax (note 34) 47,244 174,814
153,553 263,409

RAFEMBEHR - BRERFE RSB
EHREAEWNBAREENEREE - B
BN MHRRRBBNEH R -

BIERBRCEMESRE([REREHE]D
ME¥EMBRAERIEN - BB AR
R R 2R £25% o

For current year and prior period, no provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements
as the Hong Kong subsidiaries incurred tax losses during current
year and prior period.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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1. FiISHRAXZ@) 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
+ i AR B A IR A B BB AR 2 ROR The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirement
BATE R EMET - THIBERE L ERE set forth in the relevant PRC tax law and regulations. LAT has been
HRERRGETIREE  FNEE T E provided at ranges of progressive rate of the appreciation value,
FTEA R SRR o with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.
FHANREBRHES A EEA BRI NEM The income tax expense for the year/period can be reconciled to
EHEWERFIRBRRATAELS RO T the profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

20194 20184F
1818 AHBE
2019 20184F
12A31H 123181
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR IRAINE Profit before taxation 277,438 765,867
LHBECEERE25%TER  Taxat PRCEIT rate of 25% (note 1)
RIE(MEE1) 69,360 191,467
T IR (ER LAT 49,287 60,158
Y+ I (E T O T 7 S 2 Tax effect on LAT (12,322) (15,040)
JEMR—RIAEDEEENTIGEZE Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture 185 440
ARG S TR i o & Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 21,792 2,751
B TEFERRE R AR Al SR B UL A Tax effect of income that are not taxable in
EOpN Y determining taxable profit (16,094) (49,109)
RERATEERNHGETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 33,052 16,677
BT FEEAERTIAEEN  Taxeffect to utilisation of tax losses of previous
Mg e years not recognised (2,265) (36,125)
AERAHRERZBOHRETE Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised 3,574 2,147
PR BB A Al AR IR AE AV FE RS Withholding tax on undistributed profits of the
PRC subsidiaries 6,984 5,389
E b (MzE2) Others (note 2) - 84,654
F NSRS Income tax expense for the year/period 153,553 263,409
P Notes:
1. RAFBEAED R ZHRNAREABS X 1. The PRC statutory tax rate used as the PRC is the jurisdiction where the
PRI AEERR AT - operation of the Group is substantially based.
2. HiisR R BIREY R AR BEZSHESE 2. Others represented the difference between the LAT effect arising from
) IR A R B BUR T B RS BB R the change in fair value of investment properties in the PRC and the
5% E RS 2 MR Z5E o income tax at PRC EIT rate of 25%.
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12. £ /HRFE

B B SRR M T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

20194 20184
1A1BZE 4H1BE
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H318
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
AR%TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E SHRAE &M GEA) T Profit for the year/period has been arrived at after
BIHBER charging (crediting):
ZERN B & Auditors’ remuneration 2,538 1,623
sFAHER AN FE W ER AR Cost of properties for sale included in cost of sales 1,062,566 923,788
STAHER AN GFEDERE Impairment loss on properties for sales
8 included in cost of sales 10,939 -
M BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11,365 5,773
EHAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,447 -
FEEsE Total depreciation 12,812 5,773
KEHER T REHEMNR Minimum lease payments under operating leases - 792
HEYESHS WA R Gross rental income from investment properties 73,218 16,545
W APAREHIRE S S UKL Less: direct operating expenses included for
EMENEEZERY investment properties that generated
rental income during the year/period (15,145) (4,993)
58,073 11,552
IR Staff costs
BT #H & M=ERL Staff salaries and allowances 40,054 18,712
RINEFIHEER Retirement benefit contributions 1,350 805
ETRABLE(TEEESHE) Total staff costs, excluding directors' remuneration 41,404 19,517
B REFEERTYERETEAR Less: amount capitalised to properties under
SFE] development for sale (9,750) (4,406)
31,654 15,111

BREBZREEGRAE —I 27
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KRB B SRR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. EE - EERTETHAEHR 13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF
i EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS

RIRE A R R REE R FHE G R 8 Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year/period,
FE/HNEERNTETHAENTMOT ¢ disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
B £2019F12A31HLLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
BREHN
EEHE HeREE AL BIRGTEIGLR @5t
Performance  Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and related scheme
fees  allowances bonus contributions Total
itz AR%TR AR¥Tr AR%¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%Txn
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
HiTES Executive Directors
BERTAE Mr. Pan Haoran 1 129 - - - 129
ABEREE Mr. Pan Weiming 2 269 - - - 269
ENERAE Mr. Tong Wentao 392 - - - 392
AREREE Mr. Pan Jungang 392 776 - - 1,168
BRELLT Ms. Chen Weihong 3 264 - - - 264
FIsRE A Mr. Li Jinrong 392 - - - 392
e Mr. Tang Kwok Hung 392 - - 16 408
Rt Ms. Wu Jihong 392 - - - 392
REFTHE Mr. Wu Yang 392 - - - 392
INet Sub-total 3,014 776 - 16 3,806
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
HEREL Dr. Tse Hiu Tung 107 - - - 107
REMEE Mr. Yuan Chee Lap, Carl 107 - - - 107
BN AE Mr. Yang Xiaoping 107 - - - 107
SREMW AL - A4 Dr.Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles. J.P 107 - - - 107
11N Sub-total 428 - - - 428
3,442 776 - 16 4,234
FiEE - Notes:
1. FENR2019F9A3HERE - 1. The director was appointed on 3 September 2019.
2. BEN2019F9/7HEHE - 2. The director was resigned on 7 September 2019.
3. FEN2019F9A3HBHE - 3. The director was resigned on 3 September 2019.

] 2 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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B B SRR M T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. EE - EERTETHAEHR 13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF

M oe) EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
EZ£2018F12A31H1L9E B FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BRI EN
ESHe  FeloER BITEAL  RIKET BN @at
Performance Retirement
Directors’ Salaries and related scheme
fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
(s ARETT AR®ETT AR®ETT ARETT AR%®TRH
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BTES Executive Directors
ERBLE Mr. Pan Weiming 288 - - _ 288
EXRELE Mr. Tong Wentao 1 108 = - - 108
AR E Mr. Pan Jungang 281 654 _ 17 957
RELLL Ms. Chen Weihong 288 - - _ 288
FISRE R E Mr. Li Jinrong 288 _ _ _ 288
REREE Mr. Pan Haoran 2 40 - - - 40
BB Mr. Tang Kwok Hung 288 - = 12 300
RETLT Ms. Wu Jihong 288 - - - 288
REEE Mr. Wu Yang 288 = - - 288
Nt Sub-total 2,157 654 - 29 2,840
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
BRELE Mr. Mak Ka Wing 3 39 _ _ _ 39
AMEREL Dr. Tse Hiu Tung 4 40 - - - 40
REMEE Mr. Yuan Chee Lap, Carl 79 - - - 79
HINEEE Mr. Yang Xiaoping 79 _ _ _ 79
REWEL - KF#L  Dr.Cheung Wai Bun,
Charles. J.P 79 = - - 79
At Sub-total 316 - - - 316
2473 654 - 29 3,156
s - Notes:
1. FER2018FIAF20HEZRE - 1. The director was appointed on 20 September 2018.
2. FEN2018F6 H4BBHT - 2. The director was resigned on 4 June 2018.
3. EEMN2018F8A15HRIE - 3. The director retired on 15 August 2018.
4. BEEMR2018F8AIHELRE - 4, The director was appointed on 15 August 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. EE - EERTETHAEHR 13. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF

M)
HZ2018F12A31H 9@ B (&)

EXBEBREXSRENTFHEREEIAE
2ITBA B 5 IRHEIRFE S KB -

FRATESNFMER S R EEFEE
ARRRAEBEEHREA RS -

FABIEATEETNHFMER S REF
UARRBEEH DI AR o

RAFE/HH BEERESHEET
HAB#RKFRBAREMFHMOZHE -

HE019F1N2ANBLEEE  ZEBRE
T ATEE 1A (EE2018F12A31H
LWEOE A - 1B)ESE  FHMEFREN L3 °
FAGZERIFATTFHRT4E (B E2018F12
A3181E9ER : 4R)MEFHBmT -

EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

Mr. Tong Wentao's emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year/period.

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included one (nine months ended 31 December 2018: one)
director for the year ended 31 December 2019. Details of the
emolument is set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
four (nine months ended 31 December 2018: four) of the five
highest paid individuals are as follows:

20194 20184F

1A1BZ& 4A18&

20194 2018%F

12A31H 12A31H8

1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

ARET T AR#ET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

g KERL Salaries and allowances 2,573 1,584
EA SR IR B R TEAT Performance related bonus 39 101
BRIRETEIE K Retirement scheme contributions 50 48
2,662 1,733

HZE2019F12 831 B IEFE REE 20184
12A318 19l B - AL ESHA LTS B
ZHENE71,000,00058 TC LA o

HE2019F12A31BIEFE RE E20184F
12A31H YA A + AEBWER AR FME
MES - AEEREESH AL MER
i EABESMAREBE KR INARSE
EEF RS ERRERmE

] 3 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The remunerations of each of the five highest paid individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine months ended
31 December 2018 are within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine months ended
31 December 2018, no emoluments was paid by the Group to any
of the directors of the Company, five highest paid individuals of the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.



B B SRR M T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

14. RE 14. DIVIDENDS
BHE2019F 1231 B ILFE KB E2018%F No dividend was paid to or proposed for shareholders of the
12A3181E9E A - &R AR SRR AT Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine
FEBEAMRE - BMEARARITTERE months ended 31 December 2018, nor has any dividend been
RS ° proposed since the end of the reporting period.

15. BREF 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
HTEARTHEAEBGEREARE SR The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
FTIA RN BAR R B attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

data:
BRNEFHENOT - Earnings figures are calculated as follows:
20194 2018%F
1A1BE 4F1B=E
2019 2018%F
12A31H 12A318
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREREF M E AT Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per
(RAREEE NELE,EIRF share (profit for the year/period attributable
bED) to owners of the Company) 136,884 512,068
BEEELARNTE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
BEEE LB B EISHFIER Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
7 interest on debt component 2,841 5,620
EEEE LB BB HELE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
BRIz E exchange loss on debt component 597 1,394
B ESE LB ORI ESNTAE  Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
oM AR BENTE fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds (64,377) (196,436)
S EBREEBEFREERFMS Eanings for the purpose of diluted earnings
#9232 ) per share from continuing operations 75,945 322,646

BREKRZEREEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R & H

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
15. ZREBR ()

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
NUMBER OF SHARES
RERERRFMS 7L @A
DT

ns

X

20194 20184F
1818 AHNBE
2019 20184F
12A31H 123181
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 11,356,681,269 11,128,513,433
VTS TR AR R R (E A& Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
S0f-A convertible bonds 131,432,070 281,818,182
PEAREEE B R M = 8RR Weighted average number of
hntEFEH S ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share
AEEHZE209F12ABIEFERESR
2018512 431 8 1Ll B B AR E AR & 7 A
B i FHE T2 E B BT EBRE
BETE -

11,488,113,339

11,410,331,615
The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
of calculating basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 and nine months ended 31 December 2018 are
determined by reference to the number of ordinary shares issued.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED



16. Y% - BEKRE

B B SRR M T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B £E
BF HEEB AE &S @5t
Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fixture and
Buildings improvement vehicles  equipment Total
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®TT AR%TT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A CosT
R2018F4 818 At 1 April 2018 98,541 2,768 6,476 4746 112,531
NE Additions - 3,492 - 2133 5,625
BYEFLER Transfer from inventory of properties 30,141 = = = 30,141
WeBE BB A R (ff3E36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) 1351 5661 = = 7,012
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties (note 18)
(Kzk18) (1460) - - - (1,460)
BE 5 AR Exchange adjustments 9412 - - - 9412
#2018 128318 At 31 December 2018 137,985 11,921 6476 6,879 163,261
NE Additions 727 - 4903 5630
ISR B AR (FitsE36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) - - - 3 3
R Exchange adjustments 2,344 - - - 2,344
R2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 140,329 12,648 6476 11,785 171,238
RitiTE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R2018F4A1H At 1 April 2018 307 2491 2,592 3,067 8,457
AERETH Charge for the period 3,687 692 153 1,241 5,773
RERZIREMER  Elimination on transferring to investment
55 (F5E18) properties (note 18) (48) - - _ 48)
RS Exchange adjustments 230 - = - 230
R2018F12831H At 31 December 2018 4,176 3,183 2,745 4308 14,412
AEEYLH Charge for the year 4531 2943 889 3,002 11,365
RS Exchange adjustments 121 - - - 121
#2019 128318 At 31 December 2019 8,828 6,126 3,634 7,310 25,898
REE CARRYING VALUE
R2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 131,501 6,522 2,842 4475 145,340
R2018F 128318 At 31 December 2018 133,809 8,738 3,731 2571 148,849

BREKZEREEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

16. 1% - BMERSZE®) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
FatzE - RERFEEE & L EGE The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
FIABEBUNEGSRIIRUTERFEINE - using the straight-line method after taking into account of their

estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

BgF 3%Z5% Buildings 3%-5%
HEEE HEFTHN=F Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the term
(A5G & BX%E) of lease, or 3 years
AE 20%ZF25% Motor vehicles 20%-25%
BRifh - BB RE 10%Z50% Furniture, fixture and equipment  10%-50%
AEBEEREDEDN A ARE The Group has pledged the buildings with carrying value
100,957,000 (2018 F 12 A 31 H : AR ¥ of approximately RMB100,957,000 (31 December 2018:
132,047,00070) WEEF - ERASBERIR RMB132,047,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
TREE R AR -
17. EAREEE 17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELTH WAEYE st
Leasehold Office
land premises Total
ARETT AREBTT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
"2019F181H As at 1 January 2019
BRHEE Carrying amount 23,550 1,681 25,231
72019512H31H As at 31 December 2019
REE Carrying amount 22,870 1,674 24,544

B Z2019F 128310 ILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

WEZH Depreciation charge 680 767 1,447
REREPYERETER Capitalised in property under development - = =
680 767 1,447

ERASSHATH & M EHAMN EIREA  Expense relating to short-term leases
ERMBEREERE165E B and other leases with lease terms end
B 12@EANAERMOEMFAE  within 12 months of the date of initial

BRANFX application of HKFRS 16 100
G EREEE Additions to right-of-use assets 760
MEEWIR SN AR Total cash outflow for leases 1,121

] 34 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEREEE®)
NAEERBARRE  AEEALLER
MERASYE - BEANNERE=F
BB 5 AE BRET ST - MEBH A T SO R R B B
R IFRIBHE - S IRERRER
B A B IE R E T AR R R A o
ERE T R T A A RS - A%
O ERANMTES - IR ERT
B XML o

WS - AREAE—ENDET - ARE
RS (R AMEE ) B
£ o —RUMRARSZSE RIS -
ERHREHTRHROERT - AEE
S 3P A ST E L5 -

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For the current year and prior period, the Group leases office
premises for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 2 to 3 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office buildings, the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest, including the underlying
leasehold land. Lump sum payment was made upfront to acquire
these property interest. The leasehold land component of the
owned property is presented separately only if the payment made
can be allocated reliably.

REW=E 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ERTIREYHE
Completed
investment
properties
AREBT T
RMB'000
BERTYE  BAREBESIER Completed properties, at fair value
R20184F4 818 At 1 April 2018 989,957
EERAHEEDR ITYE(ME23)  Transfer from completed properties held for sale (note 23) 409,878
EMEFTEERTIREYERA  Increase in fair value upon the transfer from inventory of
RN EEEM properties to investment properties 439,922
BYE - BE KRR Transfer from property, plant and equipment 1,720
WEMEN AR BEEE Change in fair value of investment properties 100
ME 2G|SR EANENZ%  Exchange difference arising on translation to presentation currency 94,344
12018512831 H At 31 December 2018 1,935,921
EEROAED B TYE(MEE23)  Transfer from completed properties held for sale (note 23) 156,704
EMEGTEEEZINEMERR  Increase in fair value upon the transfer from inventory of
RN EEEM properties to investment properties 155,596
REYENR R BEEE) Change in fair value of investment properties (49,889)
ME LT EREANEN Z5  Exchange difference arising on translation to presentation currency 23,215
72019412 A31 B At 31 December 2019 2,221,547
SFAEHZE2019F12 831 B IEFEAR Unrealised change in fair value of investment properties included in
SRFELREMEEMPZRKRANIEE  consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
MHEHARBIR AR EEED) income for the year ended 31 December 2019 105,707

BREKZEREEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20199F12A31HLESFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

18. BEWZE () 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

AEEMERBEEHEFREUARRES
FE BN ARRRESHIEEREER R
MYEED KB AR EBEENGE XD
BRARIBEREDE

BREMEMURTBEREE -

201912 8318 &2018F 12 A31H -+ A
FEMEGEURME  BER&EERE
ER AEEERIREVMENAAEE
DEREAEBEVEHEREFSBEER
MR B R A R R Y S E T E AT 5
KEMB Y A BB EGEMTETHEE

MmEE °

F2019F 128318 AABEINAE=
M DEAEBELBERKRAKERE - B
BELBREADNE2ZAEREMBER S5
it WREZAREMS ENEBRSEE
LI EE L - XA ERERTZE - I
NETNEZ BHEA R E RS R BER
BWAGTIRBEBENREEHOMSERRTE
AHFASWAMEL °

72018F 128318 » AABEINAE=
® o HEBBAEEE - KFEEHEERY
ERZAMEEERKRAGREENRE
OB ERATEANA S W AKEAK
NEBH - BRI ELHANDENS -
HEEEL BN L AR EKTOBRTE &
AEMEMESBETRER -

HAMEIRBER MENKERKE
Fs&TIE B AT ©

R2019%F12A31H - AEEEREBEAAR
#1.857,793,0007 (2018512 A318 : AR
#51,857,126,0007T0 ) K9 IZ & ¥ 3 B & 1 T 1R
17 {ERAEEERIBITREE R -

TERFINEBUMNETLERENEDN
DA EECLEZ RS ES M AR
B WRBREAABEFEMREABE
MABREERAABEFESBERS
NREBEEERNER -
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All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or intended to earn rentals in future or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, and the date
of transfer from inventory of properties and property, plant and
equipment, the fair value of the Group’s completed investment
properties was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
by independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, which have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value was grouped under level 3
and was determined based on the direct comparison method and
income approach method. Direct comparison approach is arrived
at by reference to comparable market transactions and suppose
that evidence of relevant transactions in the market place can be
extrapolated to similar properties, subject to allowance for variable
factors. Income approach method is arrived at the capitalised rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for
any reversionary income potential of the property interests.

As at 31 December 2018, The fair value was grouped under
level 3 and was determined based on the income approach, by
considering the capitalised rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due provision for any reversionary income potential
of the property interests. For the properties which are currently
not rented out, the valuation was based on capitalisation of the
hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a typical lease term.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB1,857,793,000 (at 31 December 2018:
RMB1,857,126,000) were pledged to banks to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

18. BEWH &) 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
R019512A318
ARBARERENE MALEE AABEERHERNRIZRANE EATTERBANE @ €E FIBERAHEEAABEZ BNEE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2019  Hierarchy  andkeyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
AEBTT
RMBI000
IREANBLEEMR 1033003 E=H  —EENBEDERENY STHRER HEATSE 1680002 BYARERER  DABERR-
BBl Level 3 ENMRIBERS -  ERWELBER-¥Z 17900 The higher the price per square meter, the
Office units and car parking AR ReREDE  EUEREMERRZ:  (ARE/ higher the fair value.
spaces in Hong Kong BIRLE RAb o flngE BRRNEE  TAR)
-Direct comparisonmethod 1% 168,000-179,000
based on market Price per square foot, using (RMB/sq.m)

observable transactions market direct comparables
of similar properties and and taking into account of

adjusted toreflect the location and other individual

locations and conditions of  factors such as floor of level,

the subject property. timing and size of property

efc

IRERNREHE 9 F=k  -HAE 1 RENEE 10% EEYEEEN e 8 AL BEXR
Signboards in Hong Kong level3  -FEBABBATALR 1 Reversionaryyield T R27R

MENERREERT Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not

fEfs resultin significant decrease in fair value, and

- Income approach vice versa.

- Key inputs are reversionary

yieldand marketentof 2 HERS(ARE/ 57,000 mEREAE LA/ THESHAABEX

comparable properties. — {&,/A) BEF/ T
2. Market rent (RMB/pc/month) Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
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18. BEWZE ()

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

R19512A31H
ALRBRRENE MALEE DABEERREEWRIZEBAZE EXTIEEEAHE  &E FUBRGAHEEAREEZBNEE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant Relationship of
held by the Group 2019 Hierarchy  and keyinputs unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs to fair value
AEBTTR
RMBO00
BB A E R 8530 =&  —WAE 1 F R EE 400% ERhEEEN A eEH R BEXR
i level3  —EBHABEATENE 1Temyield T R
Commercial properties in MENFRNEE 1/ Aslight increase in term yield would not result
Fujian Province, the PRC FURERmERS « in significant decrease in fair value, and vice
- Income approach VIS,
- key inputs are term yield,
reversionaryyeldand 2. ERMEE 450% ERURREN AT eERA BEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield % R
properties. Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
result in significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
3mERE (ARB/TH 18 TEREAR 1/ THESHAABER
*/B) BEA/THe
3 Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease
infair value.
RPERDIHAE 116209 F=h A% 1 s 550% ERhEEEN oSN BEXR
Office units in Changsha, level3  —FEHATBATELER  1.Termyield T R
the PRC NENFRNEE | A slight increase in term yield would not result
FlmxRmEds in significant decrease in fair value, and vice
- Income approach VIS,
- key inputs are term yield,
reversionary yieldand 2 /EBHER 6,00% RENEEEH AP EBHNL EEAR
market rent of comparable 2. Reversionary yield T R
properties. Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
resultin significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
3mERE (ARB/TF 12175 TEREAR 1/ THESHAABER
*/R) BEA/THe
3 Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease

infair value.

2201547
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18. REWHE #)

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Ha18F12A31R
AEEFRRENR WAREE AABEER  HERWRIEBANE EXTUEEGARE &E FURERAHBEAAEE BNEE
Fair value as at
Investment properties 31December  Fair value Valuation techniques  Significant Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group 2018 Hierarchy and key inputs unobservableinputs  Range inputs to fair value
AR®TR
RMB1000
HRBEMHAZEN W E=H —BAE O LEEhER 2506-600%  FRNETEN ATEEHNLEEAR
BEURES Level3 —IRPAHEATE 1. Temyield TH R
Office units, car parking ttf %%E’]ﬂﬁ%ﬂ Aslight increase in term yield would not result in
spaces and signboards FhmERm significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
areas in Hong Kong ﬁﬁé .
- Income approach L EBURE 260%-600%  BELEREH AFLBHNL BENR
- keyinputsare term yield, 2. Reversionary yield T R27
reversionary yield Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
and market rent of restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
comparable properties. vice versa.
3mEfe (ARE/ 3753084 TERSAR L/ THEEHARBER
¥hr/R) BLH/ Tk -
3. Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
RAEERANER 8600 £=H —HNE L FHRGE 400 FAMEEEN AT EERNA REXE
nE Level3 —IEBAARATE Wermyle\d T RZIR o
Commercial properties in ttf %%E’]ﬂﬂ%ﬂ Aslight increase in term yield would not result in
Fujian Province, the PRC e il significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
ﬁﬁé
- Income approach L EBURE 450% ERhmkay HHAEEH AL BEAR
- keyinputsare term yield, 2. Reversionary yield T R27
reversionary yield Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
and market rent of restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
comparable properties, vice versa.
3mEde (ARE/ 18 TERSAR L/ THEEHARBER
Thk/R) BER/THhe
3 Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
REARDOHLZ B9800 E=H —HNE L FHRGE S00%-550%  FAMEEEN AT EERNAREXE
Office units in Changsha, Level 3 —TEGAHBATE 1 Temyield T RZIR
the PRC ttf Nt Adlightincrease in term yield would not result in
FhmEERm significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
B ) - )
- Income approach L EBUGRE S50-600%  EREUWREEH FATEEHNL EEAR
- keyinputsare term yield, 2. Reversionary yield T R27
reversionary yield Aslight increase in reversionary yield would not
and market rent of restlt in significant decrease in fair value, and
comparable properties. vice versa.
3mEle (AR%/F 11-175 TERSAR L/ THEEHARBER
Ax/R) BLH/ Tk -
3 Market rent Asignificant increase/decrease in market rent
(RMB/sq.m./month) would result in significant increase/decrease
in fair value.
1935921

RAFE  HBBEEASBLE=H -

There were no transfer into or out of level 3 during the year.

BREBZREEGRAE
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HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

19. R—BEELENER 19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

20194 2018%F

12A31H 123181

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARET T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A - JELET Cost of investment, unlisted 2,500 2,500
e E S Share of post-acquisition result (2,500) (1,760)
- 740
2018548 » AEBE—HHEREBLEE In April 2018, the Group entered into a capital increase and
THIMEEARG LIEERREHZ - B subscription agreement with related companies controlled by
It AREERBEREEESRIEEBR AR Mr. Pan Weiming pursuant to which the Group provided capital
([ |))x 8 AR 2,500,0007T ° S contribution of RMB2,500,000 to B2 EE SR E B R A A
B 7B R iR 200 - BEEERF (“Fujian Qianlong”). The Group has 20% equity interest in Fujian
HRMEFEREEYFEERIEE - ~5E Qianlong which is engaged in a commercial and residential
BERESERRRERNG0%RARE - NEE property development project in Pudong, the PRC. The Group has
REZFEE=0 2 BUAREETH KK 20% voting power in the shareholders’ meeting of Fujian Qianlong
ERRRERBET —HRAEE - and has 1 board seat out of 3 and the approval of the major
financial and operating policies requires unanimous consent of all

directors.
20. RAREBEFTABRWEMERE  20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

20195 2018%F

12A31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

b ARET T ARKETTT

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

sl AR EET ABRFTER  Finandial asset mandatorily

TREE : measured at FVTPL:

ASREETE Life insurance plan @) 8,283 -
R EMS DA Analysed for reporting purposes as:

IEMBEE Non-current asset 8,283 -

] 40 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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20. BRNAREBEEFAEZNEREE

(%)

Bi%E

@@  R2019F12A318 + AEEBEE BRR ARG
N—MRRETFENASRE  BEARRE
ERBALZTERIR - BEZIRE - ARAA
Zm ARREFEAA - RIRETE H4,600,000

ETL(HENARKE31,624,0007T) ° NEBA
MR B R S g 2 1 B8 — (R %8 1,233,000 7T (48
ERARYS2750007T) ° N5 B 0] BERF R &
R A BARRERFEE(BRFER]) R
Be SERBEIMNORREINE KNG
ZEHRFF S - BEIRMABIRR B R AR HAT
EHMERKEET - MRE 25+ /R
BEFEHEREIURS - AIZERKESEEMR
ETSHENERFEE - ZRBRAGEHE
FRANEE T (HRRFBFE I E425%T BRI
B AERRREEREHR THEESE SN —
1) 0l 3R (RAKREFIE 52.00%) e

(b)  MR2019%F12A318 * AR REEZR A Lk
RENEFEEAENASRENREES
HARBEMER -

© ARREFERR ReBERATSEERS
HREE + @A MBI Bkt - B
BRIERE -

o) ARERENAREBEEFHBRNMRESC -

21. ?EEE%’D\J‘EE FFARMEEZE K

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL (Continued)

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a US$ denominated life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Ms. Wu Jihong, a director
of the Company. Under this policy, the Company is the beneficiary and
policy holder and the total insured sum is USD4,600,000 (equivalent
to RMB31,624,000). The Group is required to pay a single premium of
USD1,233,000 (equivalent to RMB8,275,000) at inception. The Group can,
at any time, withdraw cash based on the account value of the policy
(“Account Value”) at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
gross premium paid plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and
minus any charges made in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the policy. If withdrawal is made between the 1st to 18th policy year,
there is a specified amount of surrender charge deducted from the
Account Value. The insurance company will pay the Group a guaranteed
interest rate of 4.25% per annum for the first year and a variable return per
annum afterwards (with minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2.00% per
annum) during the effective period of the policy.

(b) The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount of the
above mentioned life insurance policy which is measured at the Account
Value of the policy approximates its fair value as at 31 December 2019.

(@] In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount is not
expected to be withdrawn within twelve months from the end of the

reporting period. Accordingly, the balance is classified as non-current.

(d) Details of the fair value measurement of the investments are set out in
note 38(c).

21. EQUITY INSTRUMENT DESIGNATED AT

mIBRATAR FVTOCI
20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RABEFEEmRATE : Unlisted equity investment in the PRC:
BEZRARBEGTA Equity instrument designated at FVTOC|
B mEama iR AT A 500 500
500 500

ERIERMNERERERR A 5% #E
B ZARIR2018F RN R+
HEMERR - AEBRFRHLAZTET
BEEREESHA o NEBTEN T
BEiRE - AEBIETERERIZARBEA
HEmrmbRst2mlRATE  mMEARE
£2018F 12A31B LA AN AR BEILE

29 -

The balance represented the 5% equity investment in &/ & Fl) 2=
BB AR, which has acquired two pieces of land in Fuzhou
in the early 2018 for property development. The Group had no
board seat in this PRC private entity. The Group does not intend to
dispose the investment in the near future. The Group designated
the investment as equity instrument measured at FVTOCI, there is
no change in fair value during the year ended, and nine months
ended 31 December 2018.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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22.

23.

142

WEHEARNE N RE 22. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE
M2019512 308 » NEEHE—KEIE On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
=HEIMREEERE - B A% agreement with an independent party, pursuant to which the
B ARAE A R 270,000,000 7T U B 56 5 A 3= Group acquired 30% equity interest in R MERL EEBHR A
KRESBBRAR([AEAE])#H30%H8 8] (‘Hunan Heda") at the consideration of RMB270,000,000. Hunan
o MmMNEFEAPEAmENEYME Heda is principally engaged in property development in Hunan,
TR - WHEEHEMK2019F12831HHART the PRC. The acquisition has not been completed at 31 December
B - TR AR AR A Al B Bl R20194 12 A 2019 and the completion is conditional upon and subject to certain
I0HBIRAEFTECE TIRMHEEZERKEZE T SE conditions set out in the announcement of the Company dated on
g 30 December 2019.
BRERPYE FEWE 23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/
PROPERTIES FOR SALE
20194 2018%F
12A31H 123181
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HFEYE Properties for sale 1,801,339 1,518,592
BEPYE Properties under development 7,379,305 6,305,019
9,180,644 7,823,611
METHE DT Analysis of leasehold lands:
"2019F1H1H As at 1 January 2019
ARE{E Carrying amount 2,542,002
712019512A31H As at 31 December 2019
ARTE{E Carrying amount 2,229,134

H2019F 1 A1H#EE  BELHHREER
BB MRS LR F 1650 KT M REHT
ERFEARERBETE - FIREETIER
ELHoMETLEEEEE - K&
R2019F 12 A31 BT EISREE - H&E
ERX -

MEFEMRAPEAMBNES - 2250
EEEEERYEARKI,097,767,0007T
(2018 12 A31 B : AR ¥ 5400868000
70) ¢ TBHEAMS A R E BR R AT+ — 8 A &
TRER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

Effective from 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold
lands is measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual values are
determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land
component. No depreciation charge on the leasehold lands taking
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 December 2019.

The inventory of properties are located in the Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Included in the amount are properties under
development for sale of RMB1,097,767,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB5,400,868,000) which are expected to be completed and
realised more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.
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BEPYE FEVE )

HE019F12AHILEFEE  REALES
A R #156,704,0007T (2018412 A318
409,878,000 ) AFEE R TMXEREE
HEHERERNETREEHEERETR
B - ZEWERER BN AREE
BEEREmEMN ST ARM155596,0007T
(201838318 : AR¥439,922,0007T) R
GEBa R EMEmKERER -

FE W R AR e HL At R WK TR LA IR T
B
BREREBRANPEANENE - D&
)2 ) 118 T 18 9840 A B R 490 0 AR —
R % B B0 B A o BT HE
EXBAATEAESERRHAEYAL
ERAHMSHRIHRE - ERETHS
(3%Z5%) REBRNEESERERMA
REBEEEAESERREN -

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/

PROPERTIES FOR SALE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, completed properties
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB156,704,000 (31
December 2018: RMB409,878,000) were transferred to investment
properties upon change in use as evidenced by signing of relevant
tenancy agreements. The excess of the fair value of these properties
at the date of transfer over their carrying amounts, amounting
to RMB155,596,000 (31 December 2018: RMB439,922,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties in the PRC.
Consideration in respect of properties sold is paid in accordance
with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements,
normally within 90 days from the date of agreement. Certain
property buyers used their housing fund contributions to pay
for the consideration through the application to the Housing
Provident Fund Bureau and certain portion of consideration (3% to
5%) will be settled by the Housing Provident Fund Bureau upon the
release of building ownership certificate to the property buyers.

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARETT AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

W3 SHE FT 1S IE WOAR SR (P 5Ea) Trade receivables from sales of properties

(note a) 1,550 1,620

FEU AR & R IE (FF3Eb) Lease receivables (note b) 23,566 4,132
o pE U 8 N FE B (B sEc)  Other receivables and prepayments (note c) 238,000 32,940
ENREZS Refundable deposits paid 15,067 27,153
RE 2 (FzEd) Guarantee deposits (note d) 100,239 33618
A4k 8 P A TR A SRR Prepayments to suppliers 15,766 7,248
FE S E h T T8 Prepaid other taxes 107,139 66,452
501,327 173,163
B REES Less: Long-term deposits (82,739) (18,440)
mEBEEE T AR (MIRED) Amount shown under current assets (note b) 418,588 154,723
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24, RN Hft B W IR LA R T/

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

NEZCENE )
3E -

a. 2019812 H31H * 2018512 A31H &%2018
F4H18 ' REBFAHNNEBEERD B A
AR #1,550,0007T *+ A R #1,620,0007T & A
R ¥%1,690,0007T °

b. FEKBEERME  ARECEREBE
TSR & 2E Q55 05 AV AL T VR AR I B HR TR R
FEERAGERARE - AEEIREREK
RAMBEERAEERAR - BRHEENREA
MEEBRXERSALTER °

c. R2019F 128318 » EEKNKERERSE
= BRARYE74,742,0007C © X BBR A
EIEAREAER —FRNE - BREER
FERARNEBEEENEME °

d. ZeRIERE TEIEARINNRE
EAASERREERNEGH  ARK
37,364,000 7T } A R # 45,375,000 TL IR 75 & T8
HAA 2021461 B % 2021469 A iRk Bt A 6%

AT A/RERERRZATLINYED
B2 56 U AR SR AR e D AT ©

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

a. As at 31 December 2019, 31 December 2018 and 1 April 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to RMB1,550,000,
RMB1,620,000, and RMB1,690,000, respectively.

b. For lease receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the expected credit losses on individual trade debtors
balances. The credit loss on lease receivables is considered as
insignificant.

C Included in other receivables were advance to a third party of
RMB174,742,000 as at 31 December 2019. The advance is unsecured and
expected to be recovered within one year. The advance comprises mainly
earnest money for potential projects.

d. The amounts represent the guarantee deposits paid to certain trust
companies, as the security for loans provided to the Group. Guarantee
deposits of RMB37,364,000 and RMB45,375,000 are expected to be
released in January 2021 and September 2021 and included in non-
current assets.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on the
date of delivery of the properties to the customers at the end of
each reporting period.

20194 2018%F

12HA31H 12A31H8

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARET T ARKETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0%230H 0 to 30 days 450 1,113
31290H 31 to 90 days - -
912180H 91 to 180 days - =
1814365 H 181 to 365 days - -
HaiE—F Over 1 year 1,100 507
1,550 1,620

RERERARNERERTEEHZZHE
WEEABEHAINRENERERH -
MAEBZERBIEREREREEMARE
RN o BB RS HR A B UER A 54
WARERK - &£ RBERDHRENCEE
FEFRBRER  REAZEFEREAR
15 1t R EERE R - A = 2019F 12 831 H
IFFEREZE2018F12H318 19 A » I
Bk FE IR BR TR TR B 18 o

A R2019912 A31 B H# fEURBR X & H b g
WRIBE R B B SR KT FE3s o

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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The trade receivables at the end of each reporting period mainly
related to those buyers who applied for the Housing Provident
Fund contributions to pay for the consideration and the final
portion will be settled upon the release of building ownership
certificate to the buyers. The trade receivable balances at the
end of each reporting period are insignificant. No impairment
loss on trade receivables was provided during the year ended 31
December 2019 and nine months ended 31 December 2018, taking
into account the past low default rate and the concentration risk is
limited because the customer base is large and unrelated.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 38.
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FE W 3F 428 IR IR SR =R IR

72019412 A 31 B &Y fE g JE 42 IS IR 3R 308
BIEXSHE  AEER  RERERE

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders at 31 December
2019 were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

SIR4IBITHER $B1T4#4 8K  26. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BE BALANCES AND CASH
20194 20184
12A31H 12H318
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR®T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
VA& In relation to:
R BB E R (Misra) Mortgage loans applied by customers (note a) 51,012 103,540
FEBEB BT Security deposit for workers of property
RiEe (H5Eb) projects (note b) 13,233 22,908
64,245 126,448
MiEE - Notes:
a. ZRHIBTFRIEREF IR BRIBER a. The restricted bank deposits are secured for the mortgage loans applied

MER - YERRTEEPIGEEEMEE
B RIS E RIS AR -

b. WERBFRIAB ARARBETERIRE -
& TIRITFRFRRZRARITES - A
B RBAERE QRN ARE A RE
BIHSWBERTAEREZSRT X8
RYIRIA B TERARRR o

AEBF R H R 1717 2R E Bl T35 F Fl| =
N F03%%0.385% (2018512 A31H : 03%
2£0.385%)sT 8. °

IRITEHGBR KRR S
IRITHEBRIETM S EFEN F03%Z20385%
(20185 12H31H : 0.3%ZE0.455 %)5H 2 °

by the customers and will be released upon the banks obtained the
building ownership certificate from the customers as a pledge for the
mortgage loans.

b. The property development project companies are required by the
relevant PRC regulations to place certain bank deposits in restricted bank
accounts and they will be utilised to compensate for the construction
workers in case the contractors of the project companies failed to pay for
the salaries of those workers. They will be released upon the completion
of the property projects.

The Group's restricted bank deposits carry interest at prevailing
market rates which range from 0.3% to 0.385% (31 December 2018:
0.3% to 0.385%) per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.3%
t0 0.385% (31 December 2018: 0.3% to 0.455%) per annum.
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27. BIRA R HL b E(SFRIELA R 8 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

=8 A ACCRUALS

20194 20184F
12A31H 123181
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARBT T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FETERIR Trade payables 58,905 102,139
B REB & Retention payables 1,399 1,272
FES R & Interest payable 39,997 24,837
H e~ 5178 Other payables 41,674 38,081
E At EIIR Other tax payables 56,029 45,971

WEEMT B A R R E Consideration payables for acquisition of
subsidiaries 158,765 363,500
BEETE Deposit received 21,781 34,654
eSS AN Accrued construction costs 346,509 467,618
EEstE A Other accruals 4,692 5,135
729,751 1,083,207

UTRRBERRZEZAR2INARE

I A~ BR R BR e 9 AT

The following is an aged analysis of the Group's trade payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of reporting period.

20194 20184F

12A31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR¥T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0ZE60H 0 to 60 days 32,003 49,472
61Z2180H 61 to 180 days 10,016 25,982
181&365H 181 to 365 days 6,144 12,933
BB —F Over 1 year 10,742 13,752
58,905 102,139

] 46 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



28.

29.

AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EHEaE 28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
20195 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARETT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
M HE Sales of properties 5,307,480 3,793,314

MR2018F481H  AHEBEAARE
1,496,763,0007F °

REE2019F12 31 B IEFE & E £2018
F12A3181E9@R - 5T AT/ BAIEH
BEEBNYEHEERADIABARE
1,166,215,0007T K A R #582,123,0007T °

YEOERANABESEN RN RIER
o :

AEEREFPRIEEMEMMERZET
RADEEITHE - AFPWERE HEED
30%ZE100% ° MIRTTHBRIBERNEF
REREFPHTARITERKEFTSNEE
e THE - ZBNFEEHRNFTFRE
BERTYEIEGEE - TEeREBERYE
EEDRRARRENAE -

AEERSBNFEESEARERD -
B EEREEENTEHKESHEL
HE - BEPFRAEEEERE - BRI
A ERSCANABRSENEENRNEG
e EEFERBRASERERINE
MEGIEEE ERTPRIEM -

AEBERAEBMBEREELFE 155
ATHERE BYEEZEEEHRSERER
MR EHES —FATKNEIRERLD -

FEAY SR 42 IR IR SR =R IR

RN FFEBR R FIABIRRZ L - BE
HH - 2B RBIRERER -

29.

As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RMB1,496,763,000.

Revenue from sale of properties during the year ended 31 December
2019 and nine months ended 31 December 2018 that were included
in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the year/period
were RMB1,166,215,000 and RMB582,123,000, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 30%-100% of the contract value from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement while
construction work of properties is still ongoing. The customers
who apply mortgage loans provided by the banks will settle the
remaining consideration of the total contract value once the
customers meet the requirements of the banks. Such advance
payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period until the customers
obtain control of the completed properties.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount of
consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics of the Group.
As this accrual increases the amount of the contract liability during
the period of construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property is transferred
to the customer.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and
has not considered the financing component of contracts which
are expected to be completed within one year from the date of
payments made by customers.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders were of non-
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3

147



KRB B SRR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

30. B E 30. BORROWINGS
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IRITER(MIEa) Bank loans (note a) 1,271,391 696,391
REF=FHER(KFEDL) Loans from third parties (note b) 3,143,057 3,630,028
4,414,448 4326419

GEE

7 81134108000 B T (HE R AR
1,016,891,00070) (201812 A31H : AR¥
416,391,0007C) MIRTTE KA AEBER S
fBE - REBEARBERERZRERS A
R o RITBERD IR EBRITRIERSFI=X
([EBRITREREFE |) B INEFIR1.80%
ERBRITRERE RSB MNEF E3%5T
B BHREBEUAEBIREMEEET - I
BRI A (R ARBEA T RARRAIE
BE - HER2019F9A7HET) REREE
ERAR(EREEDER - EREEHE
RS A HE B 90% R FRIB AL 20+ (AN A R AT
BE  HER2019F0A3BBHI)BEA10% °

1B A R#254,500,0007C(2018%F 128318 -
AR ¥280,000,0007T) KI$R1TE F A AL EE
FEER o & EZ N F6.50%E6.65%H E F
FRRFE  YHAEEE T RERF
PIZELEHIR -

KEFE=DEFNREERFEHRNTX

Notes:

The bank loans amounting to HK$1,134,108,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,016,891,000) (31 December 2018: RMB416,391,000) were borrowed
by the Group in Hong Kong. The Group is required to make instalment
settlements according to the loan repayment schedule. The bank loans
are interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates ("HIBOR”)
plus 1.80% to HIBOR plus 3% per annum. The borrowings are secured
by investment properties of the Group, and are guaranteed by Mr. Pan
Weiming, a connected person of the Company being a former director
of the Company who resigned on 7 September 2019, and @R &EH
BRZAA] (“Fusheng Group”). Fusheng Group is owned as to 90% by Mr
Pan Weiming and 10% by Ms Chen Weihong, a former director of the
Company who resigned on 3 September 2019.

The bank loans with total amount of RMB254,500,000 (31 December
2018: RMB280,000,000) were borrowed by the Group in the PRC. The
borrowings are at fixed rates of ranging from 6.50% to 6.65% per annum
and secured by certain land and properties under development of the
Group.

The carrying amounts and details of the loans from third parties are set
out below.

20195 2018%F
HhER BEEA FRR A 12A31H 12A31H
Effective 31 December 31 December
Other loans Pledge of assets interest rate 2019 2018
ARBT T ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB'0000
AEBEEENEMER MERAEZETHERR  140%
Other loans with repurchase KR 1 AR 1R (2018512318
obligations equity interests of certain 9.0%Z14.0%)
subsidiaries transferred to  14.0%
lenders as collateral (31 December 2018:
9.0% to 14.0%) 10,000 2,279,578
TEAEEE ENHEMER TE NF3.0%ZE13.0%
Other loans without repurchase N/A (20185128318 :
obligations 34%Z11.7%)
range from 3.0% to 13.0%
(31 December 2018:
3.4% to 11.7%) 3,133,057 1,350,450
3,143,057 3,630,028

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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30. BE (%)

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

B&E Notes:
b (%) b. (Continued)
B &E Notes:
1. M2019612 A31 Bt AE M B A8 1. Included in other loans balance at 31 December 2019,
REAI AR H2,032,000,0007THIFKIE - approximately RMB2,032 million will be settled by the Group
15 A EBR2020F W E BB & at their maturity dates in 2020 and the remaining balance will
FREERE 2021 F B H o mature in 2021.
2. B AR #10,000,0007T (2018 12 A 2. Other loans amounting to RMB10 million (31 December 2018:

318 : AR#2,280,000,0007T ) Ky H 4th
BRIEHE TEEA R RA SR B
ARIREHETER - (FAERRME
ZHBETH B A RERE TN —
B MEBRARMNETAESLRER
HETELAR AEBBRELTE
HEARELETCEROEEE
FELEARMNBRE RAFERBAE
HE - AEEEFEZERBERATN
mEE MZENBARFREAEASE
EN2EHBAR -

RMB2,280 million) represented trust loans provided by certain
trust companies to subsidiaries of the Group. As part of the
securities for the repayment obligations of the subsidiaries under
the loan financing arrangements, certain percentage of the
equity interests of the subsidiaries have been transferred to the
trust companies. The Group will repurchase the equity interests
which have been transferred to the trust companies at a pre-
determined amount at the date of maturity of the trust loans. The
Group maintained the control over those subsidiaries and they
are considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group during
the current year and prior period.

20195 2018%F
12A31H 12H318
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEREKEENEER The carrying amounts of the borrowings that
ARE(EZER T 51 EAfE do not contain a repayment on demand
Eig clause are repayable:
—ER Within one year 2,032,461 1,017,024
ZWN—F - BTRBEWF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 1,365,096 2,645,902
ZRME - B EBRF More than two years, but not exceeding
five years - 663,493
3,397,557 4,326,419
BEREREEBRIRRT The carrying amounts of bank loans that
BEEREE(RBAEET contain a repayment on demand clause
Fr) MR N5 HAR (shown under current liabilities) but
& - repayable:
—FR Within one year - =
— & & W HARE Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 1,008,278 -
M4 E A F A Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 8,613 -
4,414,448 4,326,419
B REBFEE RN Less: Amounts due within one year shown
—FRNE|HFIE under current liabilities (3,049,352) (1,017,024)
R—F1&EIHFE Amounts due after one year 1,365,096 3,309,395

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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30. (EE&(#)

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR®T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

BFEAEE Secured borrowings 3,349,910 4,326,419
EIRIREE Unsecured borrowings 1,064,538 -
4,414,448 4,326,419

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARBT T AREETFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEEE Variable rate borrowings 1,382,216 760,621
TEEEE Fixed rate borrowings 3,032,232 3,565,798
4,414,448 4,326,419

REREPREENERFREEMNT

each reporting period were as follows:

20194
12H31H

31 December
2019

The range of effective interest rates of borrowings at the end of

20184
12H31H

31 December
2018

BERFER(FF) Effective interest rate (per annum):
EEEE Variable-rate borrowings
EREE Fixed-rate borrowings

4.2%-10.4%
6.0%-14.0%

3.4%-11.7%
6.7%—-14.0%

BREAEELDHEE MBI EER
RIFEIE D RIS TE39 K 44 ©

] 5 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Details of Group’s pledge of the assets and the guarantee provided
by the related parties are set out in notes 39 and 44, respectively.
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31. /AR E%

BEANFHEEERE([RERE T
A& ek - AN A RIR2017912 81 B A&
fit A 317N 4 58200,000,00078 7T (FHE A A
R #169,353,0007T ) #) AT AR (& 55 ([ AT 3R A%
BEH]) o A RIREFIRFFERIET B -
B¥ELfH—k  BHAAZTEHRES
F o A[ARRE S TR AL AR IR ER(E
BRR022 TS AT R R EFEBRK AR A
LB ([t ]) - EmEiE 217 H
REEIHA = EZE XA ([EIRE]) -
ARBRESFEITELSITRRESASEDN
100% @ 37T AR E S TS B F 58 (30
B B4 1) £199,000,000/8 T (HHE R AR
#168,506,0007T ) °©

VAR 3 TR AR B 25 1) 3 6K

RN PR

AREASEBAERBRAANTANRES2
Ao TR ESERKEBRRD - H
AR ESHER A BRI MBS
REREHRARRREEETHE LR
BATBRMEERARHRERTE - WEAEE
BEORTTESIE -

AREMH

BRESNEBLEETEHIRELAE
BRASHEREARRRMETERS HX
DY BEBABRFERETEANTT A
BATEATIESR B ¢ RARR A EA
CENYEE S NN R
RERSEENEN  HERRHABRE
AR B BB T B 0% B - LA
AABRREE2HEBRABRMD SE THRERR
FERT A I RE B S R ¢ 1T
AR 5 EL PR AR R T 5 40 B S HR s Y R R BT 3L
BB DOERESAEREHRS ¢ X
BERRMHMARBTIGRRABNSRME
0% K ERFEITEMB D ARREERE

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into by the Company
with the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), the Company issued
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) to the placees on
1 December 2017. The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate
of 9% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and the maturity
date is 3 years from issue date. The Convertible Bonds entitled
the placees to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price of HK$0.22 per
share. The conversion period is from the date of issue until the
third business day prior to maturity (the “Conversion Period”). The
issue price of the Convertible Bonds was at 100% of the principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds and the net proceeds from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds, after deducting commission, was
HK$199,000,000 (equivalent to RMB168,506,000).

Below are the principal terms of the Convertible Bonds:

CONVERSION RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS

Each placee shall have the right to convert the Convertible Bonds
at any time during the Conversion Period, in whole or in part,
into Conversion Shares provided that they may not exercise the
conversion rights as to such number of Convertible Bonds the
conversion of which would trigger a mandatory offer obligation or
cause the Company to be unable to meet the minimum public float
requirement under relevant Listing Rules.

ADJUSTMENT EVENTS

The conversion price shall from time to time be subject to
adjustment upon occurrence of certain events including any
consolidation or sub-division of the shares of the Company, issue
of any shares credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation of profit
or reserves, making any capital distribution to the shareholders or
granting the shareholders rights to acquire for cash assets of the
Company or its subsidiaries, offer of new shares to shareholders for
conversion by way of rights, or grant to shareholders any options
or warrants to subscribe for new shares, at a price which is less than
90% of the market price at the date of the announcement of such
offer or grant, issue of any securities wholly for cash which by their
terms are convertible into or exchangeable for or carry rights of
conversion for new shares; or issue of any shares wholly for cash
at price per share which is less than 90% of the market price at the
date of the announcement of the terms of such issue.

AREREREEEEAT ] 15
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HZE2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

31. AR ES &) 31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

K& REDEMPTION

BERTHB—BAFRE ZEEWRBHNER The Company may, at any time during the period commencing

A& FHIR - ANE T ] FER (A Al % from the first anniversary of the issue date up to the fifth business

BEFEBEAZELETDRI0BNAELN  ER day prior to maturity, having given not less than 30 days’ notice

=R B R A 2 2 sk 2f o Al AR & 5 (SE Al to the holders of the Convertible Bonds, redeem in whole or in

EfED - s AR - BRI BRE part of the Convertible Bonds then outstanding unless previously

Fi5 R B B R R EE AR S RE100%E [F 2 redeemed, converted and cancelled, each Convertible Bond will

AEREER RN EER - AR ES be redeemed upon its maturity at 100% of the principal amount

BEAEREERNIHREED - outstanding together with the accrued and unpaid interest at
maturity. The holders of the Convertible Bonds do not have the
right to demand early redemption before maturity.

HE2019F 128318 LFE REE2018F
12A31HIEYEA - ATBRESFNEBH LD
EOTES D (REERETET ARAAQR
FIRREOETAET R)MESH T -

The movement of the debt component and the derivative
components (including conversion option derivative and the
Company'’s early redemption option derivative) of the Convertible
Bonds for the year ended 31 December 2019 and for the nine
months ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

152

B S PTEZ S st
Debt Derivative

component components Total

ARETT AR¥TR AR%®TxR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

M2018F4H1H At 1 April 2018 153,478 944,258 1,097,736
EERERFE Effective interest recognised 5,620 - 5,620
HAN SR = i o Converted to equity during the period (135,372) (679,353) (815,225)
NREEZS Change in fair value - (196,436) (196,436)
TE 5 &5 18 Exchange loss 1,394 - 1,394
720185 12A31H At 31 December 2018 25,120 67,969 93,089
ERERERAE Effective interest recognised 2,841 - 2,841
BB S i e Converted to equity during the period (2,593) (3,592) (6,185)
EHE Interest paid (2,565) - (2,565)
N BEEES Change in fair value - (64,377) (64,377)
= Exchange loss 597 - 597
F20195F12H31H At 31 December 2019 23,400 - 23,400

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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31. AIERES 2)

RBETEH  BEHFINAABELER
R EREXURNENEERLRS
RERETE  FIRERERTI2REE
SHETKEFRAIRREZR BT ANEEFTR
REEHRIENRSRRREEE

R20184FE5 A48 ~ 201845 A7 H K& 2018
F5H30H - AETAREKRESFFEAR
AARBEHERBA  WITEASEHE
170,000,000 7T ( #8 & 5 A R # 139,114,000
L) A MR ESIE TERE - K218
Fs5H7H ~ 2018F5 A8H Kk 2018%F6 A1
H - HERRRESTE ABRKE RET
272,727,272 8% * 45,454,545 % & 454,545,454
NGRS T

R2019F8 A22H - AT MR EFFAE AR
ARARBEHEBMRN  UITEASEE
3,000,000/ 7T (#8 & 7 A R #2,697,0007T )
B A IRARE 5 IE TN IRME o 70201968 H22
H HERRESFE AERSE KRBT
13,636,271 & 2R A Bl &3 AR o

BERE ARARNIREELENTETA
R2019F 12 A3 1B AR BEWTERX °

Y E RS Al BB AT 88 0 S OTAE &P
DEBNRRBERSREHRATRRES
TEBINRIABENIHEEZ2EBIE
EAEMBERTERAAMETHERE
E e TR MEERA A BREEE
B - ZEATAEERABRBRENT -

B ZE2019F12A318LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

At the date of issuance, the fair value of debt component was
calculated based on the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the required
yield, which was determined with reference to the credit rating
of the issuer of the convertible bonds upon completion of the
Acquisition and remaining time to maturity.

On 4 May 2018, 7 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, certain convertible
bondholders have given written notice to the Company to
exercise the conversion right under the convertible bonds with
an aggregated principal amount of HK$170,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB139,114,000). On 7 May 2018, 8 May 2018 and 1 June 2018,
272,727,272, 45,454,545 and 454,545,454 ordinary shares of the
Company were allotted and issued to the respective convertible
bondholders, respectively.

On 22 August 2019, certain convertible bondholders have given
written notice to the Company to exercise the conversion right
under the convertible bonds with an aggregated principal amount
of HK$3,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,697,000). On 22 August 2019,
13,636,271 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted and
issued to the respective convertible bondholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Company’s
early redemption option derivative at 31 December 2019 were
insignificant.

The fair value of each of the debt and derivative components of the
convertible bonds on initial recognition and the fair value of the
derivative components of the convertible bonds at the end of the
reporting period are determined by the Directors with reference
to the valuation performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an
independent professional valuer. Binomial Option Pricing model
is used for valuation of the derivative components. The key inputs
used in the model are disclosed in below.

AR e | 153
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31. AR ES &)
2019 12H831H

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

154

R20194
12A31HH 2AAREE fRERMT R
IREE EBR TEBARE EXRTERRAHE
Fair value Valuation
At 31 December Fair value techniques and Significant
2019  hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
AR®TR
RMB’000
cREE
Financial liabilities
AR ES - E=ER “EARREEER TE HAK 1866.25%
—ITERD Level 3 BR{E 1 01487 7T BEBAELE LT

Convertible bonds
— derivative components

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

1T (E : 02287T
BHEIEFH : 092F
TEARE IR © 66.25%
ERBRFIE : 1.84%
B - &

Binomial option pricing
model
Stock price: HK$0.148
Exercise price: HK$0.22
Life to maturity: 0.92 years
Expected volatility: 66.25%
Risk-free rate: 1.84%
Dividend yield: nil

NAEEERE ()

5 LR A BB A
SIS A -

B Mz E BARAEB
FEREER

Expected volatility of
66.25% taking into
account the historical
volatility of the
comparable listed
companies (note)

Risk-free rate was
based on Hong Kong
sovereign yield.

Dividend yield taking into
account the historical
dividend payment of
the Company.
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

20184
12A31EY  AREE BT &
~REE EBR + EH ABUR BANA R0 A SR
Fair value Valuation
At 31 December  Fair value techniques and Significant
2018  hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
ARBFT
RMB'000
cHaes
Financial liabilities
AR ES 67,969 HE=% IR HIEEEERN TR AR 1840.95%
—{TES Level 3 IRME : 0768 7T EZRAIELE T

Convertible bonds
— derivative components

BYRE © JBSLEE R RO TE IR R (X8 AT Re BB AT AR AR
FOTER DR A BEFEREEN Rz

1T{EE : 02287
BEEIEFH - 19246
TEHDKRIE © 40.95%
ERRFIE : 1.74%
g S las - A

NAEEERE ()

ERR AR ATBEN
EHR S RELE -

REWZEZBARNRRE

Binomial option pricing RENEMR
model

Stock price: HK$0.76
Exercise price: HK$0.22
Life to maturity: 1.92 years
Expected volatility: 40.95%
Risk-free rate: 1.74%

Dividend yield: nil

Expected volatility of 40.95%
taking into account the
historical volatility of
the comparable listed
companies (note)

Risk-free rate was based on
Hong Kong sovereign
yield.

Dividend yield taking into
account the historical
dividend payment of the
Company.

Note: A slight increase in the expected volatility used in isolation would result

in a significant increase in the fair value measurement of the derivative
components of convertible bonds, and vice versa.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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32. HE&EE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

20194
12A31H
31/12/2019
AR®T
RMB’000
EREEAE Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 1,122
—FEMFHIHE Within a period of more than one year but not more than two years 459
1,581
B oREIBERTRI2EAR Less: Amount due from settlement with 12 months shown under
FEEEN SR current liabilities 1,122
IEmBN A ERTR 218 A Amount due from settlement after 12 months shown under
BEIHEEN TR non-current liabilities 459
33. ®R& 33. SHARE CAPITAL
BRAEE ot | LSEEHE
Number
of shares Amount Equivalent to
TExT ARETTT
HK$'000 RMB'000
FREE0.017S T B Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
VERE Authorised:
MR2018F4H1H ~ 2018512 H31H At 1 April 2018, 31 December 2018
2019512 A31H and 31 December 2019 50,000,000,000 500,000 423,381
BEITRAT : Issued and fully paid:
H2018%F4H1H At 1 April 2018 10,464,022,525 104,640 88,605
SRR E 5 (M 5E31) Conversion of Convertible Bonds
(note 31) 772,727,271 7,727 6,301
PR &S #TAR (A (FFET) Placement of new shares (note 1) 115,000,000 1,150 1,010
2018F12H31H At 31 December 2018 11,351,749,796 113,517 95,916
SR AR E A (M 5E31) Conversion of Convertible Bonds
(note 31) 13,636,271 136 115
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 11,365,386,067 113,653 96,031

] 5 6 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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33. BA& ()

GER

1.

R2018F9H 148 » ARRIEE FTHILFLAR
BENBRNEEZE - AREAQ IR
5 - BREFHIMHN2018FE10F4B K @ R E
[%0.9078 JT A1 8 32 Fh A% & & 3£17115,000,000
A& mAR o MK E1TRI 1,335,000 7T
(HHERAR®1,1750007T0) 1% © AEBEUER
P15 XA F58102,165,00078 7T (FHE R AR
89,905,0007T) ° RN ELEFHTKE * B
SNEEERARR 1% E - REERR
HIAELE % B HA2018479 A 14 B B X FTFT
U E B R0.87B T & E#3.45% © BR1p
fEFTA A EEEME BTG ZE RSN

34. IELEH A
AT REZE2019F12831HIEFEEH®R
MEANELEHAELE(RE) RE

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

1. On 14 September 2018, the Company entered into the share placing
agreements with certain independent private investors for the
placement of new shares of the Company. The placement of new shares
was completed on 4 October 2018 and 115,000,000 new ordinary shares
were issued to the independent private investors at HK$0.90 per share.
The net proceeds received by the Group was HK$102,165,000 (equivalent
to RMB89,905,000) after netting of the issue expenses of HK$ 1,335,000
(equivalent to RMB1,175,000). Upon completion of the share placing,
the independent investors had 1% shareholding in the Company. The
placing price represented a premium of approximately 3.45% to the
closing price of HK$0.87 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
14 September 2018, being the date of placing agreements. The shares
rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements during the year ended 31 December

2019:
THRER
REMEN BENEER GENEN TENEAT
HEEE ANEERE SNERAE 28 PEBE  HRERNH At
Fair value Temporary Impairment
change of Interest differences losson Withholding
investment on contract onLAT  properties  taxof PRC
Taxlosses  properties liabilities  provision forsales subsidiaries Total

ARETL ARBTL AREBTR ARMTT ARETL ARETR ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R01854A18 At 1 April 2018
SEAUNR) B Credit (charge) to profit or loss

1892 = 2334 (4762) = (9,678) (10214)
15,787 (222876) 5165 32499

(5389) (174814)

2018124318 At 31 December 2018 17,679 (222,876) 7,499 27,737 - (15,067) (185,028)
STANR)ER Credit (charge) to profit or loss 8,953 (38,861) 1,656 (9,273) (2,735) (6,984) (47,244)
2019128318 At 31 December 2019 26,632 (261,737) 9,155 18,464 (2,735) (22,051) (232,272)
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34, EEBIE (&) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

MEIEGRATBRRERME - FTELEH
HEENRBEEEE - AT AR HR
B B E L AV EE R IRSE RO

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
taxation balances for financial reporting purposes:

20195 20184
12A31H 12A318
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
IRIEFI A E Deferred tax assets 76,896 66,391
REFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (309,168) (251,419)
(232,272) (185,028)

BEFPEPEMSHE - 5200851 H18
#8 - gk BT B A B AT R ER A E = R A %
BAMMNTEINM o RS E ] 1% 5] & =
B = RE AR B SR R B A B g AR
AR e - B R ARG BT ISR KR Bh A
BB B A Al 72019412 A 31 B Fr R EXA)E
#9 AR #849,421,00070(20184F12 A31H
AR #675,842,0007T ) 18 78 Y & 5 = RERT 1R
BIERITIA o

R2019F 128318 ' AEBEREREAL
AR B) AR IBAEE L A R#125472,0007T
(2018512 A31H : AR #41,503,0007T)
AEEREBEREELEBEARNK
R - 2019128318 - K&EE IR
ERFREEANADAFREBBARE
203,330,0007T (2018F 12 A31H : AR¥
130,442,0007T ) + 7 B8 T TH E5 48 7] ot 7
RAEREARFBORAFEMLES - E5t
BREATIEEEYARE1065280007T (2018
F12A318 : AR#70,716,0007T) B RIE
EFTIBEE o BNEEATERAE R M B
NEIRIRRFERIR - L ERREBE
AT IEEE AR 125472,0007T (2018
F12H318 : AR¥41,503,0007T) & E &
AR R EERTIEEE AR96,802,0007T
(2018512 A31H : AR¥59,726,0007T ) F&
RELEFRIBEE °

] 5 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB849,421,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB675,842,000), as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of approximately RMB125,472,000 (31 December
2018: RMB41,503,000) available indefinitely for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose. As at 31
December 2019, the Group also had unused tax losses arising in
the PRC of RMB203,330,000 (31 December 2018: RMB130,442,000)
and such tax losses can be carried forward for a period of five years
which are available for offsetting future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of such tax losses of approximately
RMB106,528,000 (31 December 2018: RMB70,716,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses
of RMB125,472,000 (31 December 2018: RMB41,503,000) arising
in Hong Kong and remaining tax losses of RMB96,802,000 (31
December 2018: RMB59,726,000) arising in the PRC due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams of the related PRC
subsidiaries.
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the end of each
reporting period will expire in the following years:

20194 20184

12A31H 12A31H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR®T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

20194F 2019 - 11,165
20205 2020 4,949 4,949
202148 2021 1,432 1,432
20226 2022 3,124 3,124
20234 2023 39,056 39,056
20244 2024 48,241 -
96,802 59,726

R2019F12A318 » NEE L 3gE
REBEENABRUINREREZEAAR
#77,769,0007T (2018512 A31H : AR
63,473,0007C) ° AR ARIgEE A 8) A A
R E R R A BRI - B &
AR E R EBEERTARELTEREE

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unrecognised deductible
temporary differences on LAT provision amounting to
RMB77,769,000 (31 December 2018: RMB63,473,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.
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20195
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At
1 January
2019

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

FABE FRMEL Fr  BRITAR R2019%

HERE  ReRE  REAS QAEEED % EXEE  nAnA

Financing  Financecost ~ Changein

cash flows incurred fairvalue  Conversion At
Inception during during during of convertible Exchange  31December
of lease the year the year the year bonds difference 2019

ARETR  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETZ ARETR ARMTR ARMTR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Rf&E31)
(note 31)
FERTHIE Interest payable 24,837 - (526,617) 541,777 - - - 39,997
{5 Borrowings 4,326,419 - 65,731 - - - 2208 4,414,448
IR Amountdueto
S non-controlling
shareholders 93,263 - (93,263) - - - - -
m#RESR  Convertible bonds 25,120 - (2,565) 2,841 - (2,593) 597 23,400
mW#aRES  Derlvative components
k) of convertible bonds 67,969 - - - (64,377) (3,592) § B}
HESR Lease liabllties 1,681 760 (1,021) 161 - - - 1,581
4,539,289 760 (557,735) 544,779 (64,377) (6,185) 22,895 4,479,426

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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35. MEEEMELXEENHER®) 35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

0185 HREE
4A1A BenE

Financing
At cash flows
1 April during

2018 the period
ARBTT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB1000

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

B

HAFEE #A BRIAR IKE 0185
HERAK DAEERY E% HEBAF EiER 12R318

Finance cost Change in

incurred fair value Conversion Acquisition At
during during  of convertible of the Exchange 31 December
the period the period bonds  subsidiaries difference 2018

ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RMB000 RMB00D AMB000
(FHE31) (Htt30)

(note 31) (note 36)
JEfFIS Interest payable 19,386 (304,000) 309451 - - - - 24837
fBE Borrowings 220632% 1,383,966 - - - 700,000 16,127 436419
JEFTIERR Amount due to
REFE non-controlling
shareholders - (172273) - - - 265,536 - 93,263
A#RES  Convertible bonds 153478 = 5620 = (135372) = 1,304 25,120
A#RES  Derivative components of
) convertible bonds 944258 - - (196:436) (679:853) - - 67,969
3343448 907,693 315071 (196436) (815.229) 965,536 17521 4537608

RenBREAFARERERANEE -
PRS- A IRIERBR AR » 5t AR
BmEEsMMEAR RAEFERBEER
F o ENMEREAEREER -

The cash flows from borrowings, interest payable, amount due
to non-controlling shareholders, convertible bonds and lease
liabilities include, the net amount of additions and repayment of
borrowings, interest paid and repayment of lease liabilities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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36. WEBKIE AT 36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

BRWBHEBLARKBEERAR

HZE2019F12A31HILLEE

R2019F 9208 @+ AEBRI R EE
W B AEBEE - ZBEE S EM
EREXERAR(TENER]) KEH
W EHEEFRIBEERAA([FRILMHIE
1) 2R R P L IERE &R EIMN
BRAXHBRRENER  HeREAAR
#5150,000,0007C - EMERAEREEN
MEBAR - AILmEERREEE — 1t
o MATEENEEKATIMTIEE &
BRI IEREEWBAR -

ERAZZYRERBEEFEFBEHL
e

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 20 September 2019, the Group entered into equity transfer
agreement pursuant to which the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in RIUTEREFRIBFZBR DA (“Zhongshan
Zhengpei’) from a related party BEMEREXBGR DA
("Guangzhou Fusheng”) and the shareholder’s loan owed
by Zhongshan Zhengpei to Guangzhou Fusheng, at a cash
consideration of RMB150,000,000. Guangzhou Fusheng is a
subsidiary of Fusheng Group. Zhongshan Zhengpei holds a piece
of land in the PRC with minimal construction costs incurred. The
transaction was accounted for as acquisition of asset.

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the above
transactions are summarised below:

#Et
Total
ARET T
RMB’000

EWEEEFE Net assets acquired
Y - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 3
BERPYIE Properties under development 279,657
JE Ui BR R R L Ath i U R TR A K2 Trade and other receivables and prepayments

TRt IE 66,011
IRITEBRRE S Bank balances and cash 9,627
FEASTBRFR N EAth FEAST FRIE A I Trade and other payables and accruals

FEETE (1,340)
JESFTISHR Income tax payable (549)
JE A AR SRR IR Amount due to shareholders (109,534)
sEHaE Contract liabilities (93,875)
ATHA X EMRERER Total consideration satisfied by:

BEfReRE Cash consideration paid 150,000
WRE S TETEAINSRHIFE ©  Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions:

EfRENKE Cash consideration paid (150,000)

BB RITEMRKEIES Bank balances and cash acquired 9,627

(140,373)

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018

(i)

(ii)

On 22 May 2018, the Group entered into equity transfer
agreement pursuant to which the Group acquired 34%
equity interest in EETMEREMERZEGR QA
("Ningde Bisheng”) from an independent third party (“Party
A") and the shareholder’s loan owed by Ningde Bisheng to
Party A, at a cash consideration of RMB156,882,000. Ningde
Bisheng holds a piece of land in the PRC with minimal
construction costs incurred. On the same date, the Group
entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with two
other shareholders who in total have 33% shareholding in
Ningde Bisheng such that the three shareholders altogether
holds 67% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng agree that
should there be any differences in view on the resolutions
in shareholders’ meeting and board meeting of Ningde
Bisheng, the Group's opinions shall be overriding, final and
conclusive. According to the memorandum and articles
of association of Ningde Bisheng and the Agreement, the
Group can obtain control over the relevant activities of
Ningde Bisheng, which is considered as non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was accounted
for as acquisition of asset.

On 6 June 2018, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with certain independent third parties, pursuant
to which the Group acquired 100% equity interest in J4
MIEAEZFREEXEABR AT ("Hunan Yatai’) at the
consideration of RMB62,000,000. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, Hunan Yatai becomes the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Hunan Yatai is principally
engaged in property development in Changsha, the PRC. The
major asset of Hunan Yatai is a piece of land with minimal
construction costs incurred. The transaction was accounted
for as acquisition of asset.

BRERZEREESRAR
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36. ACQU'S'T'ON OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

On 19 June 2018, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party (“Party B"),
pursuant to which the Group acquired additional 11% equity
interest in W EZEZHFMR A A ("Hunan Zhenghao") at
the consideration of RMB60,000,000. On 21 September 2016,
a maximum amount of available financing of approximately
RMB900,000,000 (the “2016 Trust Financing Arrangement”)
was provided by a trust company (“Party C") to Hunan
Zhenghao. As part of the securities for the repayment
obligations of Hunan Zhenghao under the 2016 Trust
Financing Arrangement, Party B had transferred 49% equity
interest in Hunan Zhenghao to Party C. On 19 June 2018,
HrEREEBEARZAR] ("Hunan Fullsun Group”), Party B,
Party C and Hunan Zhenghao entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which, the parties agree that after all repayment
obligations of Hunan Zhenghao under the 2016 Financing
Arrangement are fulfilled in full, Party C shall release and
transfer the 49% equity interest in Hunan Zhenghao to
Hunan Fullsun Group or a third party as designated by
Hunan Fullsun Group. Upon completion of the acquisition
of additional interest in Hunan Zhenghao, the Group is
interested in a total of 100% equity interest in the Hunan
Zhenghao and Hunan Zhenghao is reclassified from an
associate to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The major asset of Hunan Zhenghao is a piece of land with
minimal construction costs incurred. The transaction was
accounted for as acquisition of asset.

On 25 July 2018, BMBEREEBR AT (“Fuzhou
Fullsun Group”) entered into equity transfer agreement
pursuant to which Fuzhou Fullsun Group acquired 95%
equity interest in f@MNELFIEREBR AR (‘"Fuzhou
Kangan”) from an independent third party, at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB953,000,000. Prior to
the acquisition, the Group has advanced RMB94,977,000 to
Fuzhou Kangan and included in other receivables. This loan
advance was accounted for as 5% capital contribution to
Fuzhou Kangan. The cash consideration of RMB953,000,000
together with the loan advance of RMB94,977,000 to
Fuzhou Kangan are considered as the total considerations
paid for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Fuzhou
Kangan. Fuzhou Kangan owns a piece of land for property
development with minimal construction costs incurred in
Changsha, the PRC. The transaction was accounted for as
acquisition of asset.



36. WIBFIEB 2 B (&)
BRWENBARIKWBEERA]

(4Z)
(g )/

AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

il

BZ2018F12831H k9@ B (&)

v)

(vi)

R2018%F9A6H - EEBREXEAR
AR EBEREXEHETEIE
= AR MR R B EEE
REFENBREAR430,500,0007T
WiEEEmiteEX AR AR ([FH
e 1) 75% I H#E o AR ¥ 67,000,000
JCRA2018F 12 A3 1 HENEBE 8 T
B AR #363,500,0007T 51 A E b & £
FIE e RENS T BERBNT AR
EEMEME - ZEASHNEFEELE
BB BT EEERATY
MARE - ZRIEEREEWEA
EE °

R201853 168 » KRATE2EH B
X A]Giant Astute Limited * Delano Hills
LimitedB2Park Gi YounZ + (458 [ 32 %
B EKERBEBRFR AT (Z
EEHERANILEEHE - Bt
Giant Astute Limited A = W B & B R
BEAEBAR([E£E]) - BDelano Hills
Limited ¥ 5 R & B £ A 2 819 B BR
A7) & EBRLHE LA K2 Wise Think Global
Limited ( ([ Wise Think 1) » F Park Gi
YounZ #5512 T B 4 R 2 B & w1
MYBBERAR)ZEPEE  2RE
R AB #75911,000,00058 7T (15 R4
A R #804,0000007T) ° Z R HE R
2018F 1016 B5ERK » — B REE
NEMAXHENEEDESHEE R
Wise Think#F B 75% K 25% s ° %X
SetEAEERBAR -

B Z2019%12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(V)

(vi)

On 6 September 2018, /8@ RE B AR (“Shanghai
Fusheng Property”) entered into the equity transfer
agreement with certain independent third parties, pursuant
to which Shanghai Fusheng Property acquired 75% equity
interest in FFHEMAES EEFR A A (Jiaxing Bojin’) at
a total consideration of RMB430,500,000. RMB67,000,000
was settled before 31 December 2018 and the remaining
consideration of RMB363,500,000 was included in other
payables. Jiaxing Bojin is principally engaged in property
development in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The major asset
of Jiaxing Bojin is a pieces of land with minimal construction
costs incurred. The transaction was accounted for as
acquisition of asset.

On 16 March 2018, Giant Astute Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale and purchase
agreement with Delano Hills Limited and, Ms. Park Gi Youn
(collectively known as the “Sellers”) and Easyknit International
Holdings Limited, the Sellers’ guarantor pursuant to which
Giant Astute Limited agreed to acquire the 100% equity
interest in Gold Asset Investment Limited (“Gold Asset”), a
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong held by Delano
Hills Limited and 100% equity interest in Wise Think Global
Limited (“Wise Think”), a limited company incorporated in
BVI held by Ms. Park Gi Youn at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$911 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB804 million). The transaction was completed on 16
October 2018. A block of residential properties located in Ho
Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong is held by Gold Asset and Wise
Think as to 75% and 25% respectively. The transaction was
accounted for as acquisition of asset.

BRERZEREESRAR
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36. WEEIB AT (&) 36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRAWEBHMEATRWBEENRERE ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(#&) THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the above

HZ2018F12831 019 B (&)
F R GREREREEEFEF ISR

mr transactions are summarised below:
HaEt
Total
ARETTT
RMB'000
ENEEEFE Net assets acquired
ME - BE MK Property, plant and equipment 7,012
MEFE Inventory of properties 3,796,279
FEURERE &Eﬁﬂ%uﬁz RIE A K& Trade and other receivables and prepayments
TRt 95,868
RIT4 ﬁ%&fﬁi Bank balances and cash 99,832
FEASTBRFR N EAth FEAST FRIE DA I Trade and other payables and accruals
fEstE M (205,842)
JES e Hxﬂxﬁw\lﬁ Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders (265,536)
JE AR B KT Amount due to the Group (30,000)
ABHAE Contract liabilities (90,345)
=g Borrowings (700,000)
2,707,268
AR5 RERB R EERE Total consideration satisfied by:
BENRESNRE Cash consideration paid 2,021,862
FT AFE T BR R H A RS 5/ Consideration payables including in trade and
AKX EET B R FER R (E other payables and accruals 363,500
BEFERBENRE QR Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries in previous years
XFHET 2 80,955
BEFEERIAR Loan advance in prior year 94,977
NI O = T Interest in an associate 120,000
FEIE AR 2 Non-controlling interests 25,974
2,707,268
W EESETAFREAIRS B E © Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions:
BENESNRE Cash consideration paid (2,021,862)
BUEERITHESRRIES Bank balances and cash acquired 99,832
(1,922,030)
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38.

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
amount due to non-controlling shareholders, borrowings and
convertible bonds, as disclosed in notes 29, 30, and 31, respectively
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the management reviews
the planned construction projects proposed by engineering
department and prepares the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. The management of the Group then
assesses the annual budget and consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The management of the
Company also balance its overall capital structure through issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

20194 20184
12A31H 12H318
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEE The Group
THEE Financial assets
IR EMNEREE  Financial assets at amortised cost 1,672,635 1,512,003
BAREBEFAERN Financial asset at FVTPL
TREE 8,283 =
BERBEAABEA Equity instrument designated at FVTOC|
Hih 2 EKESHRATA 500 500
THEes Financial liabilities
b N Amortised cost 4,760,369 4,974,631
TSR T A Derivative financial instrument - 67,969
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial instruments
include long-term deposits, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, financial assets
at FVTPL, equity instrument designated at FVTOCI, trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, convertible bonds, borrowings and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risk assessment which analyses exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. The risks included market risk (including
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk management

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rate. There
has been no significant change to the Group's exposure
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances, restricted bank deposits and variable rate
borrowings which carry at interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China or HIBOR.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to the fixed-rate borrowings, convertible
bonds and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances and restricted bank
deposits is not presented as the management of the Group
considers that the exposure to interest rate fluctuation is
insignificant.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk management (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the above-mentioned
variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period
which was assumed to be outstanding for the whole year
and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout the
year in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50 basis
points and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year/period, after taking into
account the capitalisation of the finance costs in properties
under development, would have increased/decreased by
RMB6,572,000 (31 December 2018: RMB3,496,000).

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s sales of properties and rental income are
denominated in the group entity’s respective functional
currency. However, certain bank balances, amounts due
from subsidiaries, borrowings and convertible bonds
denominated in HKS were held by the entities with the
functional currency of RMB, which expose the Group to the
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
respective reporting periods are as follow:

20195 20184
12H31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
BT HKS 22,596 942,343
=V Liabilities
BT HKS (3,608,013) (971,080)

AREE BRI BT AEMOTE S DA
BEREKEEERR - Al - BEEES
REFBBREEHTEAEHEAR -

The Group currently does not enter into any derivative
contracts to minimise the currency risk exposure. However,
the management will consider hedging significant currency
risk should the need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to the effects of fluctuation in HK$S
against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in the RMB against HKS. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used in the current year when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes bank balances, amounts
due from subsidiaries, borrowings and convertible bonds. A
positive number indicates an increase in profit for the year/
period where the RMB strengthens 10% against HKS. For a

e o 10% weakening of the RMB against HKS, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss.
20194 2018%F
12A31H 123181
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIT HKS
F /BT N Increase in profit for
the year/period 358,542 2,874

FERBREERBENG

MR2019%12 8318 - BZESHREEER
XIAHRARAEERBRNSBEE
S REBFEHERAEERERES
AREEBEE A AL B TR M IS E R A
R ABESEMEEMEEE  ©
B EF43 L BE o

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment

As at 31 December 2019, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from
the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 43.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group only
passed the control of property to the customer when the
consideration has been substantially received by the Group
and the Group has delegated a team to monitor the progress
for the approval of mortgage loans of customers by banks
or Housing Provident Fund Bureau. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
purchasers and the trade debts will be recovered from the
Housing Provident Fund Bureau.

Lease receivables, other receivables, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances

The credit risk of lease receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders is managed
through an internal process. The credit quality of each
counterparty is investigated before an advance is made.
The Group also actively monitors the outstanding amounts
owed by each debtor and identifies any credit risks in a
timely manner in order to reduce the risk of a credit related
loss. Further, the Group closely monitors the financial
performance of the subsidiaries of the Company with these
relevant non-controlling shareholders. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on the outstanding balances
individually. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 34.9% (2018: nil)
of the total trade and other receivables is due from a third
party. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has closely monitors the financial performance of
the third party.

The Group's credit risk on bank balances and restricted bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings and good reputation established in the
PRC.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Financial guarantees

For properties that are still under construction, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with
the purchasers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance their
purchase of the properties for an amount up to 60% to 70%
of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term
of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and
any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances,
the Group is able to retain the customer's sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In addition, the directors of the Company reviewed and
assessed the Group's existing financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts for impairment using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9. The
amount of the loss allowance at each reporting period were
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)
Financial guarantees (Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

BB IER(E)
AEBRDBEERRIREIEATE
Al

ASBEEFR  Hil

Internal

credit rating

Description

P& e R X

Trade receivables

HttemEE
Hihm |

Other financial assets/
other items

KRR

Low risk

ERER

Watch risk

5

Doubtful

S

Loss

HsH

Write-off

RpEFRORRBE - WEEM
BHEIRIE

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due
amounts

BEEASREREIH B RER -
BREE& TR

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle after due date

RIBAB KNG ERNFAFE RV E
FERR LA AE & [ B A BE 42 AN

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources

EERBTEERREERE
There is evidence indicating the asset is

credit-impaired

REEE A] R R Y B 5R0R

There is evidence indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and

the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

FEPEREERL
—IEERE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

FEMBEHEERRX
—JEEERIE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

FEMBEHEERRX
—JEEERIE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

FEPRHREERX
—EERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

WsH IR

Amount is written off

2{EABREERK

12-month ECL

R{EABEREERK

12-month ECL

FEPRRAGEERE
—3EEERE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

FEPRREERE
—EERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

i sH IR

Amount is written off

BREBZREEGRAE
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38. T A (%)

(B

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

) BEEREEBERBERE) (B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FERBEERBENEE) Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

TRAFMANER S EE E NI EER The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the

BHRNEERR c BRARAKRBEETE Group's financial assets and financial guarantee contracts,

H{EEBKFE ¢ which are subject to ECL assessment:

HhEB R 12 A EEH 20195 20186
EEFR EEFIR BAEERL BEEE HERE(E
2019 2018
External Internal 12-month or Gross Carrying  Gross carrying
credit rating credit rating life-time ECL amount amount
ik ARETR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RBERATTEN Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost
Hft MR Other receivables U TR st 12EAREREERR 322,072 93711
N/A Note 1 12-month ECL
RRHIRITRER Restricted bank balances 2% TR TER NERRBEERL 64,245 126,448
N/A N/A 12-month ECL
RITHEER Bank balances 2% TEA TER NEARHEERL 879,478 1,290,224
N/A N/A 12-month ECL
FE iRt Trade receivables 24 TR Wi FEMESEER 25,116 5752
N/A Note2  (SHEEWRE)
Life-time ECL (not credit
impaired)
FESEERIREZUE  Amounts due from 25 TEA M nEARREERL 374,056 =
non-controlling N/A Note 1 12-month ECL
shareholders
HibiER Other Items
fEkRERE Lease receivables 24 TR Wi FEHRHEEERA 23,566 4132
N/A Note2  (FEEERE)
Life-time ECL (not credit
impaired)

HBERED Financial quarantee 4 TR M3 REARBEEEL 2,346,667 1323956

contracts N/A Note 3 12-month ECL

gz Notes:

1 RABEERREREMS @ XEER 1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
BEBAENEERRL  BRELR based on their past credit worthiness, repayment history
BEEHATEEERRESEVS and subsequent settlement to assess whether credit risk has
WRIARBEEEN - XRAIEFR increased significantly since initial recognition. In the opinion
R ZERSGHFEANRRIT TS of the directors of the Company, the risk of default by these
R BAREEVEZEEHRNTESE counterparties is not significant and the Group assessed that the
BBRABMTRE - ECL on these balances are insignificant.

2 MEBERR R ERHEEREMS © A 2. For trade and lease receivables, the Group has applied the
EBEREBMIEHREERFFAG simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
SEFEFEREAEERANELR lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on
Bl o AN B E 8 B FE UL BR R A individual trade debtors balances.

WIEEEERX -
3 MU BEREAMES - AREEER 3. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount

SENERSNTERNZSER

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its cash position resulting from its operations and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and convertible bonds as significant
sources of liquidity.

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

HEEEEK Liquidity table
mERYS  RERY AMR
BRAIE  ReoARm 61Z180A 181Z365A 122F 225F REBAR Bk
Weighted
average Ondemand Total
effective  orwithin 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years  cashflow amount
ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR%Tn ARMTR ARETR ARET:
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
182019512 831H As at 31 December 2019
ERERR Trade and other payables
Hh AR - 225764 96,757 - - -5 35
&8 Borrowings
-E8 — fixed rate 6.0-14.0 60,433 1,346,147 199,811 1,755,273 - 3361664 3,032,232
-%8 - variable rate 42-104 1,094,682 367,361 - - - 1,462,083 1,382,216
A#RES—  Convertible bonds-debt
B component 225 1,000 28,261 - - 29,486 23,400
HEaR Lease liabilites 5.3-10.0 195 390 586 462 - 1,633 1,581
HIHER Financial guarantees 2,346,667 - - - - 2,346,667 -
3,727,966 1,811,655 228,658 1,755,735 - 7524014 4,761,950

BREKZEREEERAF
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38. @ T A (%)

(B)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

R EREEEREEE) (B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
REBETRAREE(E) Liquidity risk management (Continued)
BB S X (&) Liquidity table (Continued)
MER  RERE REZ
ERME  Re0ARm 6121808 1812365 1825 155 HEREER e
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years cash flow amount
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARETR
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2018F 12318 Asat 31 December 2018
TR R Trade and other payables
EtbERFHE - 379598 150,231 - - - 529829 529829
RE Amounts due to non-
KRR controlling shareholders - 93263 - - - - 93263 93263
- Borrowings
-E8 - fixed rate 6.7-140 1052490 96,459 267,555 2,281,008 290,203 3,987,715 3,565,798
-28 - variable rate 34-117 6,928 2877 28,855 383406 407,983 850,049 760,621
M#ARES—  Convertible bonds-debt
BHHH component 18 - 1,180 1186 28658 - 31,024 25,120
BT ER Financial guarantees - 13239% - - - - 132396 -
2,856,235 210,747 29759% 2693072 698,186 6,315,836 4974631

18577 B 2 5 By 7 RUA 4 5 35 45 B K
FRBS TR fkat + BIEF A Ei 30T
S B ENIHFE T AKETT
25 -

£ LMERR D AT - IR FH EE KK
RITEFRBREE [REEEX L
@78 |8ARR A = 7R2019F 12 H31H
ZERTERNEEABEAARE
1,016,891,0007C (20184F : &) - Z &
BAEBT BN - EFREBIRT
PARAIRETHEEBE R E K ZAE
B NRRESHE  RFRITER
BRIFEHRBIZER WD TH A TE
FTEXRAHEE—Z==F  FHEHI
R :

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to RMB1,016,891,000 (2018: nil). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid
one to three years after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the table
below:
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FEESRBEEEZ) Liquidity risk management (Continued)
R
PME 1225 2555 REREBAH fREE
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
1year years years cash flow amount
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019F12831H As at 31 December 2019 51,530 1,027,552 8,734 1,087,816 1,016,891

AL BREARS OO SERAE
IEA?{%X%%LT%EE%%%EHTT“L\
REZEEFRESBELHEENRSE
B RERSHREHRNOEA - $’§
B R AR B ARE LB EM
R o A - WLIRMGEAI TES - R
FRPUFRBEERIBHARAOAEE
HEME - MUt e RIR T iR 5%
FRENEERVBRIFRAEER
RIEEBEAME

THTENQIAEBENE

AEERGCEMEELN DN ABET
EH’J&@!{%E&%@EFE’J'D\ LB
TR FHENRNEEAABE(L
H 2 AR i E Rl R A B8R ) AR
BARBEAEMABASENAE
RRERAABEAESEEZMER
/Lfﬁfﬁﬁi&(% EZRINER -

BAREEFTEDARER
éf?“ﬁz%faﬁ"/ﬂémiﬁﬁ’]i&ﬁ
(REHE)FH -

E_RonBEAENBE
AP BREREAIERE (BIE
%) (R ER) TER
BEEXREBARESH -

FE=RrrRBEFEHARE
IiFﬁﬁ’\\—I?ﬁﬁ, IS BURNE
ELBBERABBR(TABERE
ABB)WEERMEH -

(Q)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the
fair values are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

BREKZEREEERAF
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

Y

RN BHIA 7

Fair value as at

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

LEE DAREE

=E

20194
12A31H

31 December
2019
AR¥T T
RMB’000

31 December

20184
12H31H
Fair value
2018  hierarchy
ARET T
RMB'000

fEERM K
TER[ARE

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

BAREER ABRN

Financial asset at FVTPL

BERAABESAHMEE
Was B AR T A

Equity instrument designated at
FVTOCI

AR ES — TR
Convertible bonds — derivative
components

8,283

500

- E=%
Level 3

500 FE=4
Level 3

67,969 HE=

Level 3

%JW:.A%'H RRE
- REBEEBERARRRE

m(&ﬁ%ﬁ )

Based on credit interest

rate, surrender charge,

policy charge and

insurance charge (note 1)

BRI SR — R RE D
mE JHRIRTEHAE 8 &
BHRERAGHE - I
ERETFREETEE
E’%P\PM&/\I%EE(W%I
2

Discounted Cash flow-
future cash flows are
estimated based on
expected return, and the
contracted investment
costs, discounted at a rate
that reflects the internal
rate of return of various
property projects (note 2).

—EA BT ER -
AR BEEFH K
F EIRE - EERA

- JrIRE - FEARKIE
&J’EHEHX SfhEt o
Binomial option pricing
model-fair value is
estimated based on life-
to-maturity, stock price,
conversion price, risk-
free rate, discount rate,
expected volatility and
expected dividend.
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Notes:

1. The significant unobservable input is credit interest rate and if the
credit interest rate increases, the fair value would increase and

vice versa.

2. The significant unobservable input is discount rate and if the
discount rate increases, the fair value would decrease and vice

versa.
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38. TR TR (®)
() £MIAMNARBENER)

FEEREEMHEEUQNABER
ENTREERSHMAGENAIAE
B(#&)

BRIRBEES  EERA/NEGAE
BHRrEANCREELRSRAER
EEEEAAEERES -

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)
Except as disclosed in the following table, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

2019%12A31A 2018%F12H31H

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
RAEBEER REE RREE REE AR
Fair value Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
hierarchy amount value amount value
ARBTRE AR%TRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ES—E#HDD  Convertible bonds - debt F= 23,400 22,465 25,120 22,837

components

Level 3

AEEEEERAURBSRESN
BEHREHERAGTENEMSREE
EE@MBENDAEE-

39. EEEKF
THEERSREGREREAREEE
BEFRAIREMBEURAERE SR
BIRIBERNER -

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of
other financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised costs using the discounted cash flows analysis.

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking
and other facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage loans
granted to the customers of the Group at the end of each reporting

period.
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FERREPYE Properties under development for sale 2,986,543 1,885,383
REHEER I Completed properties held for sale 1,427,046 1,064,516
M - BE N ERE Property, plant and equipment 100,957 132,047
KEYE Investment properties 1,857,793 1,857,126
6,372,339 4,939,072
ETHBARNEEFE Net assets of certain subsidiaries 1,818,821 626,314
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40, KEHERIE 40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

REBEREBEA
AEERBETAIHGEE L HER 2 K E
MEARREEHENFORENAT ¢

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

20184
12H31H

31 December
2018
AREET T
RMB'000

—F A Within one year

F_E2ERF(BEEEMF)

1,582

In the second to the fifth year inclusive 198
REE More than five years

1,780

REMENFEAEERETHAEMERE
e - HENZEERNT FMEEN
F - HYAESEE -

REBEFESHEA
REBHREHRR  AEEREYEAFH

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain offices premises. Leases are negotiated for terms ranged
from 2 to 6 years with fixed rentals.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
At the end of respective reporting periods, the Group had

THIRRRERENKETH

contracted with tenants of its properties for the following future
minimum lease payments:

2019F

12A31H

31 December

2019

AR¥TR

RMB’000

—F A Within one year 65,613
FEF In the second year 53,288
E=F In the third year 1,080
Epikes In the fourth year 1,032
FERHF In the fifth year 999
hF& After five years 3,527
125,539

] 80 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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40, REHEFRIE 2

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

REBFESEEANE) THE GROUP AS LESSOR (Continued)
AEBEEAE AR T RREEBE K The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future
HESK minimum lease payments.
20195
12H31H
31 December
2019
ARETT
RMB’000
—F A Within one year 68,801
E_RERFE(BHEERERE) In the second to the fifth year inclusive 117,921
AFNUE Over five years 3,286
190,008

R2018F 124318  AEBAWERBESM
BEAENKEDWENHEAZENT—=
THE - HEREMERXBXRAAS K
Mo DR AEEETEOLE
o ARELNZETHAFMRKEKA -
WEMRT A BEEAERATRES  MERSP
25 H SRR E AR o

At 31 December 2018, the investment properties held by the
Group for rental purpose have committed tenants one to fifteen
years. Lease of an investment property has clauses of contingent
rentals determined by a certain percentage of turnover earned
by the tenant. As the future revenue of the tenant could not be
reliably determined, the relevant contingent rentals have not been
included above and only the minimum lease commitments have
been included in the table above.

41. HAhAEE 41. OTHER COMMITMENTS
20195 20184F
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERA G RR D 5T AERBHER Commitments for property development
B R R R contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 2,197,960 2,506,201

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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42,

182

iB IR ST 2
AAFR2017F12 81 BIRB AR RIRERD
2017411 A 20 B #L/E R B R R R AR
T EI([5r8]) - srElEERBE AR
SEELERNSEE  YHEREER
AR REBREERETZ  SOARAEAR
AIRERGEE -

FE2EEAEASERTES  FERT
EX BUNATESKREEURESS
ERPERSB /I RAEEFEL AR
MEABER - EXRER - DHEB - AR
moHER - K2 TP XBEH A
EREXBEBA  BEAAKE TN
X8 A RIH) RIS HLRE R

FHEI R AR R KA B A R AR
HMBERETZEETETFRENE ERK
ERETERA FRITHRMER 651
BRBIBRMN B BT EELEER10%
(T10%PREE]) o 5HE10%R 5B - I Fat K&
B8 R AR T K&,/ SAEAH B A F &
H BB AT B A IR TR B S R sk s 8 K9
BEARHE - 10%MREERIFEA N Bl ER AL AR T
¥ o stEETAAD KRB EEARITENR
TEEREERAQ AL SKEMRMBA
AN ER A EREAEE TREERE
B RITEARRITEEREE TR T
BITHRM AR LR - TEBBTEER
TR D 2B #30% ©

BrIEAC PR AL E - B AR EM 1218 B
M 5B RARD A K, ST A B B A A EY
FRHEMBREFSBETS2EEDER
M ERHNMEBRE(BEETE B
HREARTTERERE) EBITEREETR
BEITHRMDEE  TERBRERNAE
HAE 1T BB /1% °
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 1
December 2017 pursuant to a special resolution approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 20 November 2017. The purpose
of the Scheme is to reward participants who have contributed
to the Group and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors and
employees of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% (the “10% Limit") in nominal amount of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the adoption date. Options
lapsed or cancelled in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and such other share option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
10% Limit. The 10% Limit may be refreshed with the approval of
the shareholders of the Company. The limit on the total number of
the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme,
together with all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option schemes of the Company
and/or any subsidiary, must not exceed 30% of the number of
issued shares from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to each participant under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company and/
or any subsidiary (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed grant date unless the
same is approved by the shareholders.
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BRETTE ()
MEMETBRETNS  EEENEHE
Y0 45 28 T R AR S A B IR R RIS
HEMRTHEAER - SRRENAT
BRI B H408 B BhE B R A S T A
BB o

TEESHESEET B TP T
FENREE  (@BRONER L B R
BREXRARETE  0RORERRER
HEHAAEEXRAEBIATHERER
FORFHUTE © ROBRMDEE °
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

In respect of any particular option, the period to be determined
and notified by the board to the grantee at the time of making an
offer shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of grant. Each
participant must pay HK$1 as consideration for the grant of options
not later than 28 days after the grant date.

The exercise price shall be determined by the board of directors,
being not less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the grant
date; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date, i.e. 1 December 2017.

No share options have been granted by the Company since the
adoption of the Scheme.

HAREE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR®T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

LA N R IERBITIELE AER - Guarantees given in favour of banks for:
BRI AREBMEBERH Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of

IR E (MisE) the Group's properties (note) 2,346,667 1,323,956

st AKEpE TRITREAIRIBHERMIE
R ZERBERESMBAAEENEERM
RIS EIRIBE K © REERER  WZFE
RERZBAR - AEBEAEEMRITEE
RABRERNRERRIBEFEREER
MEREMFMER - EF - AREEREER
FRYIREVAEMA#E - ERIIR A EREIZE
BERE B AR - YRNRTERPIEE
EMEEEERIZBERNERRER - &
ERB - AR EERRFEERVMBEREH
MARBEBRTRE  BERERSOE
B

Note: The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the Group's properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with accrued interests thereon and
any penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group
is then entitled to take over the legal title of the related properties. The
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and released upon the banks obtained the building
ownership certificate from the customers as a pledge for the mortgage
loans. In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the guarantee
contracts is made as the credit risk is low and the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is insignificant.
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44, BB R EBRRR S

(a)

184

HZE2019F12831HILEE - A&
WA ARNERNBERS @ HES
B HRERESININT

44. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the following
parties are identified as related parties to the Group and the
respective relationships are set out below:

MBS s £B BA&
Name of related party Relationship
EIERNTE AR IR R

Mr. Pan Haoran

EEARE
Mr. Pan Weiming

BRI+
Ms. Chen Weihong

BEANEEEAERAR(MRENZE]D
Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Liujian”)

BREE
Fusheng Group

RAORBRMEARABI(RAIREME])
Changsha Fusheng Property Co., Ltd
(“Changsha Fusheng”)

BERREEARAR([ERERER )
Fujian Fullsun Group Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Fullsun Group”)

EMNER

Guangzhou Fusheng

RERERR - NEE LB H A
TR

Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

AT SARIEIRAR SR R 2019F9 A7 ABHEME S
Former Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and the director
resigned on 7 September 2019

R E AR
Spouse of Mr. Pan Weiming

RS RIEIRAR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

BEAKERERIR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

BRALERERBR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

BERSTERERER

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

RS RIEIRAR R

Mr. Pan Weiming is the controlling Shareholder

The Group had the following balances with related parties at
the end of each reporting period:

2019 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ARBT R AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EERGRYESIERIEA  Trade payables in respect of construction
FEfTERFK services and property management service
f=S =AY e Fujian Liujian 5,766 29,061

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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44, BB R ERRR S (#)

(0 HZE209F12831BIEEREZ
2018%F12A31HIL9E A » AEEHE

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

44, RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c)  The Group entered into the following transactions with its
related parties during the year ended 31 December 2019 and

ERAW T ETATRS ¢ the nine months ended 31 December 2018:
2019F1A1BZE 2018F4H1RE
BB HE EB REME 2019128310 20185 12831H
1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
Name of related party Nature of transaction 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RIENE RS 308,809 94,920

Fujian Liujian Construction service

AR M ERK 2,600 =

Changsha Fusheng

Property management service

(d) AEBEEEMNERREEER
o AR L IR 100 % AR HE -
B RE36 B EE

© HBARAEELERSFHFEENTIEE

(d)  The Group entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Guangzhou Fusheng to acquire 100% equity interest in
Zhongshan Zhengpei, the details are disclosed in note 36.

(e)  Remuneration of key management personnel, who are the

BEAEHNMSMT : top five highest paid employees of the Group, is as follows:
20191 H1HZE 2018F4F18E
2019%F12831H 20185 12A31H

1.1.2019 to 14.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ARET R AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Hra KERL Salaries and allowances 3,715 2,519

B R IBHMYRTEAT Performance related bonus 59 101

RIRTE R R Retirement benefit contributions 50 65

3,824 2,685

H wEREE FREREE- - BE A
BERRLAE -« BRIBA LT MEEREAE
(BAARARINEES) B (R
BRlH) HIJRTFAEBNSBEERE
BRANEBRENEH BZHEANE
1% 2 R20195F12 8318 » ZEERE
=+ AR #4201,536,0007T (20184127
318 : AR#53,987,0550007T) °

()  Fusheng Group, Fujian Fullsun Group, Tongda, Mr. Pan
Weiming, Ms. Chen Weihong and Mr. Pan Haoran, all being
related parties of the Company, have (jointly or severally)
provided guarantees to the Group in favour of lenders in
respect of various loan facilities granted to the Group. Such
guarantees amounted to an aggregate of RMB4,201,536,000
(31 December 2018: RMB3,987,055,000) as at 31 December
2019.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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45.

186

3B AR AT
AEBAEAAEEAERIERRTIRH
MAMSHE - REHEANEERALE
MEESHRE T EATENERLE
SATEEE o AR AIRAAMH S A 5%
ZEBEK - SREET A LRA50008
T AR K

AN AEETERBARNES SR E
FEBAERNBERE BRKEMNE -
ZENBRRARFERAN F2%E15%
FER IR AT EIMER - (EREFIZA - K
SBEERKENG O - BEERELE

TE K -

HE2019F12A3BLIEFE  RIERER
B4R S A R#770,0007T (i ZE20184E12 A
31H A A + AR®623,0007T) HEAEH
ZEr 813 B P AR T b 3R M 5z H At &l e A it

-
e
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45. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Company contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the scheme with a cap of HK$1,500 per employee per month, in
which contribution is matched by employees.

In addition, the employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute range from 2% to 15% of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB770,000 (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: RMB623,000) represent the
contribution payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the plans by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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BB BRI - RARIR2019F12H31H Particulars of principal subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise
MEFAENEEWNBARFBOT stated, by the Company as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:
REBAUATAH
BRI E AR REEL P
Effective equity interest  Proportion of voting power
attributable to the Groupat held by the Company
L/ 20195 20185 20195 W018F
WELREH AL L1 12A38 NANAR 12A3R ANE FEEH
Place of/
incorporation 31December 31 December 31December 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment  Paid-up capital 2019 2018 2019 2018 Principal activities
% % % %
L) i 50000000% 7 100 100 100 100 AR
Fuzhou Fullsun Group (ii) PRC 15$50,000,000 Investment holding
HEREREE EF AR 44500000070 100 100 100 100 HEER
Hunan Fullsun Group PRC RMB445,000,000 Investment holding
HEBERRERZERLR 9 AR 4000000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB400,000,000 Property development
HEPERRESRERLR 9 ARH 1588200007 100 100 100 100 YEER
PRC RMB158,820,000 Property development
HERRRRERZERRR 9 AR 40080650070 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB400,806,500 Property development
HEERFRERZERRR 9 ARE590000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB59,000,000 Property development
HERERRERZERRR A ARE303000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
PRC RMB30,300,000 Property development
HEEEHEREERLE 4 ARES500000007 51 100 51 100 YEER
([#HmL] ) PRC RMB550,000,000 Property development
HRE N EHEREERAR
(‘Hunan Xingru')
EEZR (i) EF AEH100000007 34 34 67 6 NEEE
Ningde Bisheng (ii) PRC RMB10,000,000 Property development
BAER f ARE100000007 100 100 100 100 YEER
Fuzhou Kangan PRC RMB10,000,000 Property development
FRRE o ARE12092675070 75 75 75 5 ONEEE
Jiaxing Bojin PRC RMB120,926,750 Property development
EEYN q: ARE250000007 100 100 100 100 WEEE
Hunan Yatai PRC RMB25,000,000 Property development

BREBZREEGRAE
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46. AMIE L TIRER (#) 46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
KEEHUT RS
EEEREE KATAFERERLA

Effective equity interest  Proportion of voting power
attributable to the Groupat  held by the Company

iR/ 20195 018F 20195 WI8E
HEARRE RILEE LEEE 128318 1A%R  1ANA NANR FEER
Place of/
incorporation 31December 31 December 31December 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment  Paid-up capital 2019 2018 2019 2018 Principal activities
% % % %
WEER f AR 300000007 100 100 100 0 NEEE
Hunan Zhenghao PRC RMB30,000,000 Property development
£E Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 MEXE
Gold Asset Hong Kong HKS1 Property development
Wise Think ARAAREE 68T 100 100 100 100 NEEE
BvI HKS16 Property development
ENREESARAT f ARH#1380100007T 7 100 7 100 REER
( [EMEE] ) PRC RMB138,010,000 Investment holding
BAREE ABRAT
(‘Guangzhou Pinli")
RE(RRERER f ARH#104299007T 100 100 100 100 HERE
AR PRC RMB10,429,900 Property investment
ATREARAT Bt 17 100 100 100 100 HERE
All Brilliant Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
EHRERRAT Bt 17 100 100 100 100 HERE
Candidwell Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
LRREBRAT Bt 1T 100 100 100 100 YERE
Gainer Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
REREARAT Bt 18T 100 100 100 100 YERE
Leadfirst Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Enterprise Carpark Limited A 18T 100 100 100 100 HERE
Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Wisdom Bloom Investments BE 1T 100 100 100 100 MERE
Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Property investment
Splendor Keen Limited EBAARHE 100005 100 100 100 100 YERE
BVI U5$10,000 Property investment

] 8 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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46. AMIE L TIRER (#) 46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BfsE : Note:

0) FERBARAERAT - 0) The PRC subsidiaries are of limited liability.

(i) MEARARPEKINIIEEERE - (i)

The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

iy BEAEBEBRAEEERMWRE K& (i) Although the Group only has 34% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng,

B8 S SN R BRIR AT SL A8 - Tz FRRE
BEERARHAFABWRE  F=2RREH
FAEERBR/VEE  FRARRARME
HERERBRRAGREFERARIRL
BERADE  ARENEAREE  &HER
TR - REBEEFERNEABEERMAR
BRANE B - AREARISH EE
EREBAEGOIEGIRE  MEEZERRES
ARRFEEMBAR o

the Group has entered into an agreement with two other shareholders
who in total have 33% shareholding in Ningde Bisheng such that three
shareholders altogether holds 67% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng
agree that should there be any differences in view on the resolutions
in shareholders’ meeting and board meeting of Ningde Bisheng, the
Group's opinions are overriding, final and conclusive. According to the
memorandum and articles of association of Ningde Bisheng and the
abovementioned agreement, the Group can obtain control over the
relevant activities of Ningde Bisheng, which is considered as a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

BEEEAFEFIEENIEZERBRATHN
FH1E o TRIIRARQ A R20194F K& 20184
12A3BAEEEREEHIEENIEZEN
BARIRES o

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests. The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 that have material non-controlling interests.

M2A31 B EERES HEN2AMBLEE
FrsfaRERK PEEFERER M2A318
FrERELL TR B okl RSt R ES

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling
interests at 31 December

Accumulated
non-controlling interests
at 31 December

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests for

Proportion of ownership the year end 31 December

) PNGEEE ES/ 50k 20195 2018%F 2019% 2018%F 2019% 2018%F
Name of subsidiary Place of business 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ARBTR ARETRT AR®TR ARETR
% % RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
W EL HE 49 TEm 2,638 T 502,638 TER
Hunan xingru PRC N/A N/A N/A
EMmie HE 29 TEA (11 TR 399,989 TER
Guangzhou Pinli PRC N/A N/A N/A
BRIERERNERNTEX 738 16,364
tEAR
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests
903,365 16,364

BERARRABERFZFRENNER
A B EBARLINAT - A THHE
Rt 15 S B A RR L SH A B S8

Summarised financial information in respect of Company’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represented
amounts before intra-group eliminations.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3
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46. NME N RIS (#) 46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FRERELL Bl () PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP (Continued)
T K Hunan Xingru
20195
12H31H
31 December
2019
ARETT
RMB’000
IEMENEE Non-current assets 11,556
mENEE Current assets 1,084,193
mEIBE Current liability 69,957
RAEIHB ANELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 523,154
FEIE IR = Non-controlling interests 502,638
WA Revenue 33,302
Fs Expense (2,669)
FAFE Profit for the year 5,383
NARER AEENE Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 2,745
FEFE R R o FEAG AN Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests 2,638
KR RENIR SRR Net cash outflow from operating activities (50)
HEEEIRERAFEE Net cash inflow from investing activities 107,669
RMEEHR SR FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (56,174)
e m 58 Net cash outflow (51,445)
EAARRIABENFEFIERNNER Summarised financial information in respect of Company’s
RIS E R ST T o AT EE subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out
Bt E B A IR AT S EE o below. The summarised financial information below represented

amounts before intra-group eliminations.
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EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

46. NME N AR () 46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FRERELL Bl () PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP (Continued)
EMRE Guangzhou Pinli
20195
12H31H
31 December
2019
ARETT
RMB’000
EREEE Non-current assets 270,000
MENEE Current assets 2,018,013
mEIBE Current liability 908,741
FERBEE Non-current liability -
RRABEE AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 979,283
VAR 2 Non-controlling interests 399,989
X Expense (38)
FREE Loss for the year (38)
RAEIHB AELEBE Loss attributable to the owners of the Company (27)
JETE IR HE = PR A B 1E Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests (11)
K EEFIR S RA SRR Net cash inflow from operating activities 9,966
HEESRSRLFRR Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,385,882)
RE SRS RAFRE Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,375,900
& SRR Net cash outflow (16)
BEERA - MN2018F128318 - MEAE In the opinion of the Directors, none of the Group’s non-wholly
F2EMBAREANEEEE S NI owned subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests to the
fetER o Group as at 31 December 2018.
FRITFTEEMRRIBTELRSE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
FHRRNEBERBERAEBEEFEEA opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the year/
MAOMAAGMEBEAR - EFRAFIE period or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the
B ARIMERSEHRIEBRITE Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
RE/BR - M B AR B AR ERE None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of the

o year/period.
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47. BREAER A B BARRZRNE R 47. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BREREHRANNBHER AR ER S Information about the statement of financial position of the
& Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
20194 20184F
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
RHE R AR R E Investments in subsidiaries 68 68
A NG Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,364,625 1,888,352
1,364,693 1,888,420
REEE Current assets
H At FEYGRIE Other receivables 1,944 1,795
A YNGR Amounts due from subsidiaries 345,330 206,302
PRITER LIRS Bank balances and cash 1,267 2,578
348,541 210,675
REBEE Current liabilities
Fh &SRR Other payables 296 _
R — —FREIH Borrowings — due within one year 29,435 _
29,731 -
REEERE Net Current Assets 318,810 210,675
EEABRARBERS Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 1,683,503 2,099,095
RS EQUITY
RATEE AR Equity attributable to owners of the Company
PR (FH3E33) Share capital (note 33) 96,031 95,916
it Reserves 1,542,627 1,910,090
1,638,658 2,006,006
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
B — —F A E Borrowings — due after one year 21,445 =
Al AR (E 5 Convertible bonds 23,400 25,120
A RE S OTAE R D Derivative components of convertible bonds - 67,969
44,845 93,089
1,683,503 2,099,095
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AR MRS AR MY AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. EBEA QA M BARRRHNESR

EZE2019612A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

47. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

(#) FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
AEBEREEBEEENOT ¢ The movements of the reserves of the Company are as follows:
(REHE8)/
IR EE AR Hinf e REFE @t
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed Other retained
premium surplus reserve profit Total
ARETFT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(P& (P i)
(note i) (note i)
201854 A1H At 1 April 2018 4,682,051 35,355 2646 (4581,557) 138,495
HAFE Profit for the period - = = 873,776 873,776
ERn B ES Conversion of convertible bonds (note 31)

(B3zE31) 808,924 - - - 808,924
PR (Fi13E33)  Placement of new shares (note 33) 88,895 = = - 88,895
R20186128318  At31 December 2018 5579870 35,355 2646 (B707781) 1910090
AP BB E (Fff3il)  Share premium reduction (note i) (5,500,000) 500,000 = 5,000,000 -
FRERE Loss for the year = = = (373,533) (373,533)
#EHRBRES Conversion of convertible bonds (note 31)

(F¥zE31) 6,070 - - - 6,070
R20196128318  At31 December 2019 85,940 535,355 2646 918,686 1,542,627
BI5E Notes:

(@)

(i)

(ifi)

BMABRKRIERERERFBARR ARG 20005
10A16 B R EBRAT EmmETHNERSE
HFKENB AR ERNA I FEEBEA
ARAFBBETEARENRAIEENDS -
REARZEIGIERARE  AARINHAR
BREETERTAERRBES KK REWND
K °

HipFEEHEAR AN BEFEETHR A
RENERES  AEARRRENRISA
HARESTRE -

BIERARENEBEEZE  BAARREH
- AR R BRI 5 B A AR B R A
B BREENEGHREARESER - B
201945 A + AR AR AR DB B A
R #5,000,000,0007C AR 85 R 5T E5 18 R AR
500,000,0007CARA R FIHEE ©

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the then combined net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange completed on 16 October 2000 over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor. In accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus is available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie in
certain circumstances.

Other reserve represents the equity component of the convertible notes
issued by the Company in prior years, which remained unexercised at the
maturity date.

According to the related laws of the Bermuda, the share premium of the
Company can be used to offset accumulated losses, expand the scale
of production and business and transfer to capital upon approval from
the shareholders of the Company. In May 2019, the shareholders of the
Company approved to reduce the share premium of RMB5,000,000,000
to offset the accumulated losses and RMB500,000,000 applied to capital
contribution of the Company.

BREKZEREEERAF
20194 3

193



iR MRS R MY AT
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20199F12A31HLESFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

48, FHEHIEREE 48. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

R2019F 12 A30H + REEE—FZE A
TR REEERE - B AEEWE
MENERESB AR AR ([HArEAE])
30%H) A% #E - M 2019512 A308 - HE
MERNZBBIATERT - 2EK
REFWEATA#EZ - Flzm RIEMH AR
51,000,0007T * #BRE A AR 270,000,000
T e RAREBH  WEMATK - RS
FEEHRA AT HEA2019F 12 H30H #

At -

B2020F1 A  FRAERITEEMRES
(M20198MmER])RIEEE - Bt - FE
PR RESE LR RBAERRE T
S BIRETRNERIKERS - E&
BREAEEBEREIEEEEBE - A%
BIABRFHESER  AEENYBEE
REXHFE  ERERAREAHESE
HE  -EERTYERELETE TS
KRE2019BRFERNEBRSTEHAEE
B ¥ 75 4 08 R B S AR R s AR AT E KR F)

B/ 48R
2

BRERBEEN  ARERBERRIE
EXRRE RS EEMNERRRKEE -

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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PERIOD

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 30% equity interest in Hunan Heda Investment
Group Co,, Ltd.* ("Hunan Heda") and all the interests, benefits and
rights of and in the unsecured, interest-free shareholder’s loan
amounting to approximately RMB51,000,000 owed by Hunan
Heda to such independent party as at 30 December 2019 at the
aggregate consideration of RMB270,000,000. The acquisition
has not been completed at the date of this report. Details of the
transaction were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2019.

Since January 2020, the PRC has encountered an outbreak of
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19"). As a result, certain measures have
been undertaken by the PRC central government and various
provincial or municipal governments including but not limited to
implementation of travel restrictions, extension of national holidays
and suspension of construction projects. Pending development
of such subsequent non-adjusting events, the Group's financial
results may or may not be affected, the extent of which could not
be estimated at the date of this report. The Directors will closely
monitor the potential impacts, and inform the shareholders if the
outbreak of COVID-19 will cause any material adverse impact on
the business operations and financial conditions of the Group.

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent events after the reporting period and up to
the date of this report.



TR E Y PR AN F M B E XM RERAD

LEHBHRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

—&5 o statements included in this Annual Report.
ES RESULTS
HBZE2018F
HZ22019% 128318 220167
12A31A 1F9f@A 128318
ILEE For the BE3ANBILEE IEFE
For the nine months For the year ended For the
year ended ended 31 March year ended
31December 31 December 20185 2017% 31 December
2019 2018 2018 2017 2016
ARET R ARETTT ARETTT ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Fffza, ) D) (FizE o) (HizE ) (FizE b, o)
(Note a, c) (Note a) (Note c) (Note ¢) (Note b, ¢)
WA Revenue 1,596,181 1,255,548 553,549 602,607 768,363
BRARRIFIE (E51E) Profit (loss) before taxation 277,438 765,867 (4,546,904) 112,137 120,800
Fr{5Ri = Income tax expense (153,553) (263,409) (79,024) (58,024) (54,048)
REFECEEBNTEN Profit (loss) for the year from
FE(EE) continuing operations 123,885 502,458 (4,625,928) 54113 66,752
REBREEEEBENEA Loss for the year from
B discontinued operation - - (426) - _
ERFE(ER) Profit (loss) for the year 123,885 502,458 (4,626,354) 54113 66,752
st - Notes:

BMBBF AR ERE -
BT HEREBERARNMEHRFET RH

SFEARAR B A2017510 827 B EBIEE EAUW
BE R I8 &% Koo B R R R I E R K o

I TS BRI R B AR 2{E A A R AL -

(a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements.

(b) The financial figures were restated to those of the Vivalink Limited and have been
extracted from the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 in connection
with the very substantial acquisition and reverse takeover involving a new listing
application.

(©) The above financial figures were prepared in a 12-month basis for each of the
financial year.

AR e | 195



AFHHHE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
120195 M20185F 20165
12A31A 12A31H R3A318 12A318
Asat As at At 31 March As at
31December 31 December 2018 2017F 31 December
2019 2018 2018 2017 2016
ARET R ARBTT ARBTT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FifzEa) GBS (B3t b)
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b)
BEE Total assets 13,905,599 11,676,137 5,860,960 2,833,920 2,703,958
mefE Total liabilities 11,054,418 9,894,744 5,572,395 2,506,213 2,389,263
ARAIHE NEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,947,816 1,765,029 288,565 327,707 314,695
BiaE - Notes:
(a) B E T o558 A A B SR - (a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements.

(b) e IRBRBEE AN EEETEY LT (b) The financial figures were restated to those of the Vivalink Limited and have been

HAAATIBEA2017FE10827BEBIEEE AW extracted from the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 in connection
BEEESRF ETBREES RSB - with the very substantial acquisition and reverse takeover involving a new listing
application.
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